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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
REIfZE TEEREZER (58) BRAA

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

MBERE

Year ended 31 December

BE+T-A=1T—HLEE
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—EB-RE —T—ARF —E—MmEF
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET
Revenue from continuing REFERLEELZ
operations = 102,786 2,154,988 17,443
Profit/(loss) attributable to BRRIFTE &R
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per share ar(EE) L) poall gl
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Net assets (net of BEFE (k
non-controlling interests) VTR RS ) 1,973,272 2,737,534 2,783,371
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited

FEMZETXEREZER (58) BRAF

CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited (the
“Company”), | am pleased to present the annual results of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2016.

OVERALL REVIEW

During the year, the Group disposed of #TiT 5 & 4F &t4%
BXABMR AT (“Zhejiang Dongyang Jinniu”), a 51%-owned
subsidiary, to an independent third party at a cash
consideration of HK$5,650,000. Zhejiang Dongyang Jinniu
engaged in the production and distribution of knitting and
textile products, knitted fabrics and clothing. The Group
decided to dispose of this subsidiary and cease its knitting and
textile business because it had been loss-making in recent years.
In 2016, the revenue of this discontinued operation amounted
to HK$18,616,000 (2015: HK$43,602,000). Together with
the gain on disposal of a subsidiary of HK$32,453,000 (2015:
Nil) recorded, the profit from this discontinued operation was
HK$27,362,000 (2015: loss of HK$14,056,000).

In 2016, the Group recorded revenue and gross profit
from continuing operations of HK$102,786,000
(2015: HK$2,154,988,000) and HK$28,517,000 (2015:
HK$180,534,000), respectively, which were contributed mainly
by the property development and investment business. The
Group recorded loss for the year from continuing operations
of HK$736,293,000 (2015: profit of HK$97,516,000),
which arose mainly from the fair value losses on an equity
investment at fair value through profit or loss and derivative
financial instruments in an aggregate of HK$306,652,000
(2015: gain of HK$26,942,000), as well as the share of
losses of the joint venture and associates in an aggregate of
HK$218,382,000 (2015: HK$68,615,000) and the impairment
of an available-for-sale investment of HK$134,107,000 (2015:
HK$311,137,000). Loss attributable to owners of the parent
was HK$685,842,000 (2015: profit of HK$41,820,000) and
basic loss per share was HK¢12.43 (2015: basic earnings
per share of HK¢0.76). The return on equity, calculated on
the basis of profit attributable to owners of the parent as a
percentage of equity attributable to owners of the parent, was
-35% (2015: 2%).
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
REIfZE TEEREZER (58) BRAA

CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FTEBREUAREEENWR DM

BUSINESS REVIEW
Property development and investment business

Currently, two projects are in progress for the property
development and investment business. One is located at the
Southern side of Zhongshan Road of the Shahekou District of
the Dalian City (”"Dalian Project”), and another is situated in a
newly developed residential area with communal facilities in the
Liangjiangxin District of Chongging (“Chongging Project”).

In 2016, influenced by the policies of the Chinese government
and the domestic monetary environment, the “930 New Policy”
set a demarcation line in the real estate market between a
booming one and a cooling one. Before the implementation
of the new policy, driven jointly by the supply-side structural
reform and the easing monetary environment, the demand
in first-tier and some second-tier cities was steadily released,
thereby leading to significant de-stocking results. However, due
to the serious regional differentiation, no apparent increase in
price and volume was observed in the market of Dalian City
where Dalian Project is located. Upon adoption of the “930
New Policy”, capital flows of financial institutions were subject
to strict policy control, causing capital liquidity to become
tightened. In several cities, a series of macro-economic control
measures were introduced in succession and restrictions on
property purchases and mortgage loans were re-launched.
Affected by this external environment, the trading volume in
Dalian and Chongging showed a downward trend.

Annual Report 2016 —Z — /XFEH
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited

FEMZETXEREZER (58) BRAF

CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Dalian Project comprises four parcels of land having a total
site area of approximately 46,938 square meter (excluding
communal site area). A large-scale development project, the
International Square, is being constructed comprising offices,
retail shops and residential buildings. The total saleable area
of Dalian Project upon completion is approximately 350,488
square meter. Dalian Project is currently in the normal
development and construction phase, and pre-sale of certain
residential and office space of the International Square has
commenced since June 2013. Saleable area of 142,311 square
meter has been completed as at 31 December 2016, of which
90,649 square meter was sold, 18,299 square meter was leased
out and included in investment properties, and the remaining
was included in completed properties held for sale. As at 31
December 2016, the total saleable area of properties under
development was approximately 208,177 square meter.

Chongqging Project comprises twelve parcels of land with a
total site area of approximately 375,252 square meter and is
currently in the early development phase.

As at 31 December 2016, the properties under development
and completed properties held for sale amounted to
HK$4,105,317,000 (2015: HK$4,070,648,000) and
investment properties amounted to HK$315,866,000
(2015: HK$373,425,000). The customer deposits, which
represent the proceeds of the pre-sale of properties,
amounted to HK$920,238,000 (2015: HK$248,310,000).
Dalian Project recorded revenue of HK$102,786,000 (2015:
HK$2,147,344,000) and gross profit of HK$28,517,000 (2015:
HK$180,303,000) for the year. In 2016, enhanced de-stocking
efforts remained prevailing in the market of Dalian City where
Dalian Project is located. Under the circumstances, the Group
controlled the property development progress in a moderate
manner by reasonably allocating sales of completed properties
and properties under development to capture the market share.
Therefore, revenue for the year decreased as compared to
last year. The property development and investment business
segment recorded loss of HK$47,058,000 (2015: profit of
HK$35,065,000) for the year.

FTEBREUAREEENWR DM
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
REIfZE TEEREZER (58) BRAA

CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FTREBEUAREEENRR DM

Trading business

The trading business segment recorded no revenue (2015:
HK$7,644,000) and no profit or loss (2015: profit of
HK$175,000) for the year.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Convertible bonds

The Group held convertible bonds issued by Peace Map Holding
Limited (“PMH") and AVIC Joy Holdings (HK) Limited (“AVIC
Joy”), respectively, both are listed companies in Hong Kong.
These convertible bonds are hybrid instruments that include
non-derivative host contracts and the embedded derivatives.
The non-derivative host contracts, representing the bond
components, have been designated as available-for-sale
investments. The embedded derivatives, representing the
conversion options, have been designated as derivative financial

instruments.

The Group’s derivative financial instruments are managed and
their performance is evaluated on a fair value basis. Any fair
value gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss. Fair values
are stated based on valuations performed by independent
professionally qualified valuers, which are mainly influenced by
the prices of the underlying securities and the time value of the
derivative financial instruments.

The Group’s portfolio of derivative financial instruments as at
31 December 2016 consisted of the derivatives at fair values
of HK$9,277,000 (2015: HK$90,444,000) and HK$2,061,000
(2015: HK$29,452,000) embedded in the convertible bonds
issued by PMH and AVIC Joy, respectively. During the
year, a fair value loss of HK$108,558,000 (2015: gain of
HK$28,146,000) was recognised in respect of the embedded
derivatives, which was mainly due to the drop in the share
prices of both PMH and AVIC Joy.
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited

TEMZETERREZER (F8) ARLA

CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Equity investment at fair value through profit or
loss

The Group held shares issued by PMH and classified the
investment as an equity investment at fair value through profit
or loss. During the year, the Group recorded a fair value loss
on an equity investment at fair value through profit or loss of
HK$198,094,000 (2015: HK$1,204,000) due to the drop in the
share price of PMH.

Impairment of an available-for-sale investment

The Group held shares issued by AVIC Joy and classified the
investment as an available-for-sale investment. Due to the
significant decline in the share price of AVIC Joy during the
year, an impairment of an available-for-sale investment of
HK$134,107,000 (2015: HK$311,137,000) was recorded.

Joint venture and associates

During the year, the Group recorded share of losses of the joint
venture and associates in an aggregate of HK$218,382,000
(2015: HK$68,615,000) mainly because the joint venture made
significant impairment provisions on its certain investments and
other assets.

LIQUIDITY, CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND
FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group has consistently maintained sufficient working
capital. As at 31 December 2016, the Group had current assets
of HK$4,969,966,000 (2015: HK$5,127,503,000),
cash and bank balances and time deposits in an aggregate of
HK$605,925,000 (2015: HK$473,689,000). The Group’s current
liabilities as at 31 December 2016 were HK$1,692,802,000
(2015: HK$763,972,000).

including
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
PEMZE TEEREZER (58) ARAFH

CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FTEBREUAREEENWR DM

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s equity attributable
to owners of the parent amounted to HK$1,973,272,000
(2015: HK$2,737,534,000), comprising issued capital of
HK$551,959,000 (2015: HK$551,959,000) and reserves
of HK$1,421,313,000 (2015: HK$2,185,575,000). The
Group’s interest-bearing debts, including loans from fellow
subsidiaries of HK$1,234,637,000 (2015: HK$1,864,671,000),
interest-bearing bank borrowings of HK$230,134,000 (2015:
HK$37,964,000) and loans from an intermediate holding
company of HK$475,419,000 (2015: HK$509,581,000) are
mainly denominated in Renminbi and arranged on a fixed rate
basis. The Group’s gearing ratio, calculated on the basis of the
interest-bearing debts as a percentage of equity attributable to
owners of the parent plus the interest-bearing debts, was 50%
(2015: 47%).

The Group’s banking facilities are mainly utilised for general
working capital requirements.

CHARGES ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

Details of the charges on the Group’s assets are set out in
notes 35(a) and 35(b) to the financial statements.

EXPOSURE TO FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

The Group's foreign currency exposures primarily arise from
certain sales or purchases by operating units in currencies
other than the units’ functional currency. In view of the fact
that the Group tries to match its assets and liabilities with the
same currency, the Group's exposure to foreign currency risk is
minimal.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

Save for the transactions described elsewhere in this annual
report, the Group had no other material acquisitions or
disposals during the year.
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited

TEMZETERREZER (F8) ARLA

CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Details of the significant contingent liabilities of the Group are
set out in note 44 to the financial statements.

ENVIRONMENTAL AND REGULATORY
COMPLIANCE

Environmental protection and the effective use of natural
resources have gradually become an important concept in
modern economic growth. The Company follows the major
trends in environmental protection around the world. Our
operations are also in an effort to increasingly integrate this
concept. Based on new technology and management approach,
the Company strictly controls its environmental impact and
resource usage, in an effort to forge cleaner production
featuring lower pollution and lower emissions toward
sustainable development.

The Company strictly follows all applicable laws and regulations
released by the relevant authorities which are material to the
Company. Throughout the year 2016, there was no incidence
of non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the Company.

The Company’s environmental policies and performance are
summarised in the Environmental, Social and Governance
Report on pages 34 to 42 of this annual report.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2016, there were 73 (2015: 156) employees
in the Group. The employee wages and salaries for the
continuing operations, excluding directors’ remuneration,
amounted to HK$28,586,000 (2015: HK$22,179,000) for the
year ended 31 December 2016. The Group recognises the
importance of good relationship with employees. The Directors
believe that the working environment and benefits offered to
employees have contributed to building good staff relations and
retention. The Group’s remuneration policies are formulated
based on the performance of individual employees and market
conditions and are reviewed regularly. The Group also provides
other staff benefits including medical and life insurance, and
grants discretionary incentive bonuses and share options to
eligible staff based on their performance and contributions to
the Group.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FTREBEUAREEENRR DM

OUTLOOK

In 2017,
of 2016, the Chinese real estate market will continually

sustaining the macro-economic control trends

strengthen the return to the residential attributes of properties.
The regulators will, through revision of regulatory policies,
restrict capitals inconsistent with policies from flowing into the
real estate market. As affected by such policies and monetary
environment, property supply and sales will be characteristic
with
decreased volume and price”.

“reduced investment, decelerated construction, and
Nevertheless, on the whole,
the first-tier and second-tier hotspot cities will have steady
economic growth due to remarkable policy orientation, and the
ongoing urbanisation as well as the “two-child policy” dividend
will also drive the rigid demand and the demand for better
housing. Based on the overall judgment, the real estate market
will witness stable operation amid moderately reduced volume
and price.

Apart from being closely concerned with the public bid
invitation, auction and listing markets, the Group will also pay
attention to the possibilities of merger and acquisition. We
believe that more opportunities will emerge with the industry
differentiation and integration.

APPRECIATION

I would like to take this opportunity to express my appreciation
to my fellow Directors and all our staff for their support, hard
work and dedication.

By order of the Board
AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited

Liu Hongde
Chairman

Hong Kong, 14 March 2017
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TEMZETERREZER (F8) ARLA

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Liu Hongde, aged 56, was appointed as an Executive
Director, the Chairman of the Company, and member of the
Remuneration Committee of the Company on 30 December
2016. He is a PhD in Management Science and Engineering
of Harbin Engineering University (" & T 2 X &) and a
professoriate senior engineer. He enjoys the special government
allowances of the State Council. Mr. Liu has extensive
working experience in the areas of operation management,
scientific research management, organisational and cultural
development. Mr. Liu is currently the chairman of the board
of directors of AVIC International Holding Corporation (“AVIC
International”), a director of AVIC International (HK) Group
Limited (“AVIC International (HK) Group”) and the supervisor
of Aviation Industry Corporation of China (“AVIC"), all
being substantial shareholders of the Company. Mr. Liu was
appointed in February 2017 as an executive director of AVIC
International Holdings Limited (“AVIC IHL"), a company listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). Prior to joining AVIC International, Mr. Liu was the
deputy general manager of Harbin Dongan Engine Corporation
(WBRBRE LB /A F]), the general manager and chairman of
Harbin Dongan Auto Engine Co., Ltd. ("R EE R 2R E &) %D
BBRAF], which shares are listed and traded on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange), the director and the deputy executive general
manager of Harbin Aviation Industry (Group) Co., Ltd. (%&
B T¥(5%£E)EMR AR, the chairman of Jiangxi Changhe
Automobile Co., Ltd. (T 7 EFE KR BR A F], which shares
are listed and traded on the Shanghai Stock Exchange), the
general manager of AVIC Automobile Industry Corporation
(FBEIfnz= /R8T 8 Q7)) the deputy general manager of
AviChina Industry & Technology Company Limited, which shares
are listed on the Stock Exchange, the head of the corporate
cultural departments of the China Aviation Industry Corporation
I (REIfnZE T35 — % B /A7) and AVIC, and the vice executive
chairman of the trade union of AVIC.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENREESECEE

Mr. Pan Linwu, aged 52, has been an Executive Director of
the Company since February 2008 and a Deputy Chairman
of the Company since January 2013. He holds a Master’s
degree in Aeronautical Engineering, an EMBA, a Bachelor's
degree in Engineering and a Postgraduate Diploma in Financial
Accounting, and is a professional senior accountant. Mr.
Pan served at the Ministry of Aviation Industry and the audit
department of the Ministry of Aero-Space Industry. In 1993,
he was transferred to AVIC International and served as deputy
director and director of the audit division. Mr. Pan had been the
chief financial officer of AVIC International since 2001, and he
was also appointed executive vice president and chief financial
officer of AVIC International in March 2012 until December
2016. He is currently a director of Tacko International Limited
("Tacko”), which is a substantial shareholder of the Company.
Mr. Pan has many years’ experience in financial management,
supervision and audit, and has substantial experience in the
area of finance, capital operation and risk management. Mr.
Pan had been an executive director of AVIC IHL until February
2017.

Mr. Lai Weixuan, aged 52, has been an Executive Director
of the Company since June 2015. He is a senior accountant,
holding doctorate degree in Management of Tongji University
and an EMBA of Guanghua School of Management, Peking
University. Mr. Lai is now the Chief Executive Officer of
AVIC International and a director of AVIC International (HK)
Group. Mr. Lai joined AVIC International Shenzhen Company
Limited (“AVIC Shenzhen”, a wholly owned subsidiary of AVIC
International) in 1983. He previously served as the deputy
general manager of AVIC Shenzhen, the Chairman of Fiyta
Holdings Limited (“Fiyta”), the deputy chairman of Tianma
Microelectronics Co., Ltd.(“Tianma”) and the chairman of
Rainbow Department Store Co., Ltd. (“Rainbow Department
Store”).
companies listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange. He is also

Fiyta, Tianma and Rainbow Department Store are

a director of a subsidiary of the Group. Mr. Lai has rich
experience in finance and operation management, and once
acted as an executive director of AVIC IHL from 2004 to 2012
and was appointed as an executive director again in 2014.
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TEMZETERREZER (F8) ARLA

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Zhou Chunhua, aged 51, was appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company on 30 December 2016. She is a
professorate senior accountant, EMBA of Cheung Kong
Graduate School of Business. Ms. Zhou has extensive working
experience in the areas of financial management, capital
operation, audit supervision and risk management. Ms. Zhou
was appointed as the deputy general manager and the chief
accountant of AVIC International in December 2016. She is
currently an executive director of AVIC IHL, a director of AVIC
International and AVIC International (HK) Group. Before that,
she was the assistant to manager and vice chief accountant
of Shenyang Liming Aero-Engine Group Corporation Ltd. (&
[5ZRRAM o Bt B =@ H PR A 7)), the director, deputy general
manager and chief accountant of AVIC Beijing Keeven Aviation
Instrument Co., Ltd. (FMITEIREEMEREBRAF),
the deputy manager of the audit department of AVIC and
the deputy general manager and chief accountant of AVIC
Electromechanical Systems Company Limited (FHIHEERGH
FR /A 7)) as well as a director, deputy general manager and chief
accountant of AVIC Electromechanical Systems Co., Ltd. (1
TEKERZGMDBR AR, which shares are listed and traded
on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange).

Mr. Xu Hongge, aged 45, has been an Executive Director and
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company since June 2015.
He holds a Bachelor’s degree in architecture from Southeast
University. He also completed the Post-EMBA program from
Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business in 2010. Mr. Xu
previously served as an executive vice president of China
Vanke Co., Ltd, a company listed on the Stock Exchange and
Shenzhen Stock Exchange. He has over 23 years of experience
in property development industry.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENREESECEE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Chow Wai Kam, sr, aged 69, has been a Non-executive
Director of the Company since June 2015. He obtained a
Bachelor of Arts degree in Architectural Studies and a Bachelor
of Architecture degree from the University of Hong Kong in
November 1970 and November 1972, respectively. He has
been an Authorised Person (List of Architects) and a Registered
Architect since July 1976 and January 1991, respectively. He
was also admitted as a Fellow of The Hong Kong Institute of
Architects since August 2001. He is currently an Executive
Director of Cheung Kong Property Holdings Limited (“CKPH"),
a company listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Chow joined the
Hutchison Group in July 1995 and was the Group Managing
Director of the property and hotels divisions of the Hutchison
Group since 2000. He is now the Group Managing Director of
Hutchison Property Group Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of CKPH. He has over 40 years of experience in project
management and architectural design for various developments,
including hotel, residential, commercial, industrial and school
projects in Hong Kong, the Mainland China and overseas.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chu Yu Lin, David, /r, s8s, aged 73, has been an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since
May 1999. He is also a member and the Chairman of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the Company.
Mr. Chu received his Master of Business Administration degree
from Harvard University after degrees in Electrical Engineering
and Management at Northeastern University and was awarded
an honorary Doctor of Public Service degree from Northeastern
University. He worked for a number of sizeable international
corporations such as Bank of America, General Electric Co.
and Jardine Matheson & Company Limited. Mr. Chu is an
independent non-executive director of Chuang’s China
Investments Limited, Chuang’s Consortium International Limited
and Zhuhai Holdings Investment Group Limited, all being listed
on the Stock Exchange.
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited

TEMZETERREZER (F8) ARLA

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Li Ka Fai, David, aged 62, has been an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since December
2007. He is also a member of the Audit Committee and
the Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Li holds
a Bachelor of Science honours degree in Chemistry and
Administration. He is the deputy managing partner of Li, Tang,
Chen & Co. CPA (Practising). Mr. Li is also a fellow of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, The Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants, UK, The Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators, UK as well as The
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England & Wales. He is
an independent non-executive director of China Merchants
Port Holdings Company Limited, China-Hongkong Photo
Products Holdings Limited, Cosmopolitan International Holdings
Limited, Goldlion Holdings Limited, Shanghai Industrial Urban
Development Group Limited and Wai Yuen Tong Medicine
Holdings Limited, all being listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Li Zhaoxi, aged 69, has been an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since September 2004.
He is also a member of the Audit Committee of the Company.
Mr. Li holds a Master’s degree in Business Administration. He
is a senior research fellow of and served as a deputy director at
the Enterprise Research Institute of the Development Research
Center under the State Council of the People’s Republic of
China. Mr. Li has carried out research on corporate reforms
and management for over 32 years. He was an independent
director of Liaoning Hongyang Energy Resource Invest Co., Ltd,
a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, until 18
April 2014.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENREESECEE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Zhao Yang, aged 46, joined the Group in January 2017
as the Chief Financial Officer and is responsible for the Group's
corporate finance, accounting and treasury functions. He is also
a director of Tacko and certain subsidiaries of the Company.He
holds a Bachelor’s degree in Finance from Nankai University and
EMBA degree from China Europe International Business School.
Mr. Zhao is a senior economist. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Zhao held senior management positions in different companies,
of which two are Shenzhen listed companies. Mr. Zhao has
over 23 years of experience in accounting and finance.

Mr. Zhong Rong, aged 40, Deputy Chief Financial Officer,
joined the Group in July 2015 and is responsible to assist the
Chief Financial Officer for the Group’s corporate finance,
accounting and treasury functions. He holds a Master’s degree
in management and is a member of The Chinese Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. He has over 17 years of
experience in accounting and finance.

Ms. Wu Shaohua, aged 31, joined the Group in January 2017
as Deputy Chief Financial Officer and is responsible to assist
the Chief Financial Officer for the Group’s corporate finance,
accounting and treasury functions. She holds a Master’s degree
in accounting from University of International Business and
Economics and MBA degree from Missouri State University.
Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Wu held senior management
positions in different companies. She has almost 10 years of
experience in accounting and finance and international aviation
business.
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited

TEMZETERREZER (F8) ARLA

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintain good standards of
corporate governance practices by emphasising transparency,
accountability and responsibility to its shareholders.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company applied
the principles of, and complied with all the code provisions
and, where applicable, the recommended best practices of the
“Corporate Governance Code” (the "CG Code"”) as set out in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), except as noted

hereunder:

1. Except for the Non-executive Director appointed on 23
June 2015, all Non-executive Directors are appointed
without specific terms (code provision A.4.1), details

of which are mentioned under the section headed

“NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS” in this report; and

2. the Company does not have a nomination committee
(code provisions A.5.1 to A.5.4), details of which are
mentioned under the section headed “"BOARD OF

DIRECTORS” in this report.

The Company will periodically review and improve its corporate

governance practices with reference to the latest development

of corporate governance.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

“Model Code for Securities
(the “Model Code")
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the Company’s

The Company has adopted the
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers”

code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions.
A reminder is served by the Company to each Director twice
annually of the black out period that Director cannot deal in
the securities and derivatives (if any) of the Company.
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Directors are required to notify the Chief Executive Officer (who
is also a Director) and receive a dated written acknowledgement
before dealing in the securities and derivatives (if any) of the
Company. In the case of the Chief Executive Officer himself,
he must notify the Chairman and receive a dated written
acknowledgement before any dealing.

Having made specific enquiry, all Directors have confirmed that
they have complied with the required standard as set out in the
Model Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2016.

The Company has also established a written guideline no less
exacting than the Model Code for securities transactions by
relevant employees (including any employee of the Company
or director or employee of a subsidiary who, because of his
office or employment in the Company or a subsidiary, is likely
to possess inside information in relation to the securities of the
Company). No incidence of non-compliance was noted by the
Company.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is governed by the Board which has the
responsibility for leadership and control of the Company. The
Directors are collectively responsible for promoting the success
of the Company by directing and supervising the Company’s
affairs.

Currently, the Board comprises five Executive Directors,
including Chairman and Deputy Chairman, and four
Non-executive Directors, including three Independent
Non-executive Directors. An Independent Non-executive
Director has appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise as
prescribed by the Listing Rules. 7 out of the 9 Directors
served the full year for the year ended 31 December 2016.
The biographical details of the Directors are set out on
pages 11 to 16 of this annual report. There is no relationship
(including financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship) between Board members.
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At each annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors
for the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of
three (3), the number nearest to but not less than one-third)
shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director
shall be subject to retirement at least once every three years.
The Directors to retire in every year shall be those who have
been longest in office since their last election but as between
persons who became Directors on the same day those to retire
shall (unless they otherwise agree between themselves) be
determined by lot. The retiring Directors shall be eligible for
re-election. A new Director appointed by the Board after the
preceding annual general meeting shall hold office only until
the next following general meeting of the Company (in the case
of filling a casual vacancy) or until the next following annual
general meeting of the Company (in the case of an addition to
the existing Board) and shall then be eligible for re-election at
that meeting.

The Company does not have a nomination committee. The
Board is directly in charge of nomination of Directors. In
accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company, the Board shall
have the power from time to time and at any time to appoint
any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an
addition to the Board but so that the number of Directors so
appointed shall not exceed the maximum number determined
from time to time by the members in general meeting. For
nomination, consideration will be made to the qualifications
and capabilities of the nominated individual. During the year,
the Board selected and recommended the appointment of Mr.
Liu Hongde and Ms. Zhou Chunhua as Executive Directors.

At present, the Company does not consider it necessary to
have a nomination committee as the Board is responsible for
reviewing the structure, size, diversity and composition of the
Board and the appointment of new Directors from time to
time to ensure that it has a balanced composition of skills and
experience appropriate for the requirements of the businesses
of the Company, and the Board is also responsible for assessing
the independence of each Independent Non-executive Director
and reviewing the succession plan for the Directors, in
particular the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer.
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The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the
“Policy”) which sets out the approach to achieve and maintain
diversity on the Board in order to maintaining a competitive
advantage of the Board. The Company seeks to achieve board
diversity through the consideration of a number of factors,
including but not limited to the talents, skills, regional and
industry experience, background, gender and other qualities.
The Board will consider and if appropriate, set measurable
objectives to implement the Policy and review such objectives to
ensure their appropriateness and ascertain the progress made
towards achieving those objectives. The Board will review the
Policy, from time to time, to ensure its continued effectiveness.

The Board formulates overall strategy of the Group, monitors
its financial performance and maintains effective oversight over
the management. The Board members are fully committed
to their roles and have acted in good faith to maximize the
shareholders’ value in the long run, and have aligned the
Group’s goals and directions with the prevailing economic and
market conditions.

The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions under the requirements of the CG
Code. The major role and functions of the Board regarding its
corporate governance include:

1. to develop and review the Company's policies and
practices on corporate governance;

2. to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management of the Company;

3. to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

4. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and

compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees of
the Company and Directors; and

Annual Report 2016 —Z — /XFEH

ARBCEMT —NEIN BRI RFEFENK
BZTLaEMESTEREZTEBR ([ AR
R URFHEFENHRFEY - ARAEBR
ZRZIERE  BEETRNARE - KL - it
BRETELR B MAIREMIKE AT
FREREFSZTL - EETERERAAEEE
BRTHERI T E B RARITARE - Wi
ZEREUARREGERMEEESNER -
EFERH IR ARERER - UREREFEER -

EXSHEAEB 2 BREBRE  ERAPKR
BERHERERRARCEE -EFENEE
DETREHTE  FRRRREZANES -
WAEARLEE 2 BAR N J7 A8 E [ & kW5
SR —E -

ExeRRAERTEEEARTRETERDN
TEEERME EFSRECXEANEIEA
BB - B

AN
/A

1. HERigR AR AR EEERRRLE
M

2. BAREREERARAEESENTE
IEBEEEER

3. B RERARRERBTAEREER
ENENBRREER

4. HE B MERARFEEREEH
BTEARARTM (ME) Rk



AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited

TEMZETERREZER (F8) ARLA

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

5. to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in this report.

The following is a summary of the work of the Board in respect
of corporate governance matters during the year ended 31
December 2016:

1. performed corporate governance duties under the CG
Code;
2. reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies

and practices;

3. reviewed the connected transactions and the continuing
connected transactions of the Group;

4. reviewed the compliance with the CG Code; and

5. reviewed the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Company through the
Audit Committee.

The senior management of the Company is delegated
with responsibilities in the day-to-day management and
administration of the Company and makes operational and
business decisions within the control and delegation framework
of the Company.

The Company has issued formal letters of appointment for
Directors setting out the key terms and conditions of their
appointment.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of legal actions against its Directors and officers. The
Company reviews the extent of this insurance each year.
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All Directors have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary who is responsible for ensuring that
board procedures, and all applicable rules and regulations, are
followed; and also regularly updates the Board on governance
and regulatory matters. Any Director, in the furtherance of
his or her duties, may take independent professional advice
in appropriate circumstances through the Chairman at the
expense of the Company. The availability of professional advice
extends to the Audit and Remuneration Committees.

Minutes of Board meetings are taken by the Company Secretary
and, together with any supporting Board papers, are available
to all Board members. During the year ended 31 December
2016, six regular Board meetings were held by the Company.

The attendance of individual Directors at regular Board
meetings and other Committee meetings as well as general
meetings during the year ended 31 December 2016 are set out
in the table below:

Number of regular meetings or
meetings attended/held

FIBEESHAESARMENEEMRE - &
ANERRRRERESERFLAMEERR
ARG YEMRERREZREEERNES
SRESFNER - EAREFATEEENBR
TEBIFESRBUEERER  UBBEBEE
ERTHARRNEE  BERBHARRA -
SKEXEAMERRNBEZZEGRFMESR

‘@o

E=Zeed B ARIMELT - EREME
RMEFEX AIHESEMAKEER -
RBEE_T-—RE+_A=+—HILFE &

NRABRINREETSEREH -

BEERBE_TR"Ft-_A=1+—HL#F
ERALFESETHeRNEMZERERN
KR A G B RSk EN Tk ¢

Number of general
meetings attended/held

HE/ BTEHERASERY HE/ BIRRAERE
Remuneration Audit

Board Committee Committee Annual Special
Director Ex Bzg FMZEES ERERS BE 5l
Executive Directors HITEF
Liu Hongde** D o mn 0/0 - 0/0 0/0
Pan Linwu MR 6/6 - - 11 0/0
Lai Weixuan BES 5/6 - - 171 0/0
Zhou Chunhua** EEE 11 - - 0/0 0/0
Xu Hongge B 4/6 - - 1”1 0/0
Wu Guangquan* Rt~ 4/5 171 - 171 0/0
Xiao Nan* H* 3/5 - - 1/1 0/0
Non-executive Director HNTEE
Chow Wai Kam [E&% 6/6 - - 11 0/0
Independent Non-executive B #0177

Directors EZ

Chu Yu Lin, David El 6/6 11 3/3 11 0/0
Li Ka Fai, David TRIE 6/6 il 3/3 il 0/0
Li Zhaoxi FIER 6/6 - 33 N 0/0
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* Mr. Wu Guangquan and Mr. Xiao Nan resigned as directors of
the Company on 30 December 2016. Up to the date of their
resignation, five Board meetings, one Remuneration Committee
meeting and one general meeting were held during the year.

*x Mr. Liu Hongde and Ms. Zhou Chunhua were appointed as directors
of the Company on 30 December 2016. One Board meeting and no
Remuneration Committee meeting and general meeting was held
during the period from the date of their appointment up to the end
of the year.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, a meeting was held
by the Chairman with the Non-executive Directors (including
Independent Non-executive Directors) without presence of the
Executive Directors. Save for the annual general meeting, no
special general meeting was held during the year 2016.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Every newly appointed director is given a comprehensive,
formal and tailored induction training to ensure that he is fully
aware of his responsibilities under statute and common law,
the Listing Rules, legal and other regulatory requirements.

All directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. During the year ended 31 December
2016, the Company arranged an in-house training on risk
management and internal control and on environmental,
social and governance reporting for the Directors and senior
management of the Group. According to the records provided
by the Directors, the Directors received the following training
during the year 2016:

EEERBRE
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TEERRSE
Type of continuous professional
development programmes
BESXREEER
Reading materials  Attending briefing
and updates sessions/seminars
FEMER HEENE S
Director BEE BHER W
Executive Directors HITEE
Liu Hongde** DU v/ v
Pan Linwu EME v v
Lai Weixuan BEE v/ v/
Zhou Chunhua** ABEEE** v v
Xu Hongge Rk v -
Wu Guangquan* RyerE* v v
Xiao Nan* B g > v -
Non-executive Director IFHITEE
Chow Wai Kam EiE% v v
Independent Non-executive Directors — BV IF#HiTEF
Chu Yu Lin, David Al v v/
Li Ka Fai, David ERIE v v
Li Zhaoxi ZJKER v/ v
* resigned on 30 December 2016. * RZZE-RF+-_RA=1THEIE -
o appointed on 30 December 2016. > RZE—ARE+-_A=THEZT-
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

To ensure a balance of power and authority, the role of the
Chairman is separated from that of the Chief Executive Officer.
Currently, the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company are Mr. Liu Hongde and Mr. Xu Hongge respectively.

The Chairman is responsible for the leadership of the Board,
ensuring the effectiveness of the Board in all aspects of its role
and for setting its agenda and taking into account any matters
proposed by other Directors for inclusion in the agenda.
Agendas and accompanying Board papers are circulated where
possible at least three days before the time of a Board meeting.
The Chairman is also responsible for making sure all Directors
are properly briefed on issues arising at Board meetings. The
Chief Executive Officer is delegated with the authorities to
manage the business of the Group in all aspects effectively.

The division of responsibilities between the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer has been clearly established and set out
in writing.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Non-executive Directors bring a wide range of skills and
experience to the Group. They serve the important function
of providing adequate checks and balances for safeguarding
the interests of shareholders and the Company as a whole.
The Board considers that three out of the four Non-executive
Directors are independent in character and judgment and fulfill
the independence guidelines set out in rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.

Except for the Non-executive Director appointed on 23 June
2015, all Non-executive Directors including Independent
Non-executive Directors are appointed without specific terms,
but are subject to retirement by rotation as explained above
under section headed "BOARD OF DIRECTORS”.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises one Executive
Director, Mr. Liu Hongde, and two Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Chu Yu Lin, David (as chairman)
and Mr. Li Ka Fai, David. The Remuneration Committee is
responsible for making recommendations to the Board on
the Company’s policy and structure for the remuneration of
Directors and senior management and on the establishment
of a formal and transparent procedure for developing policy
on such remuneration. The role, authority and duties of the
Remuneration Committee are clearly set out in its terms of
reference.

The Remuneration Committee met once during the year 2016
to review and recommend the remuneration of Non-executive
Directors and to review and approve the remuneration
packages of Executive Directors and senior management. The
attendance of each member is set out in the table above under
section headed “BOARD OF DIRECTORS”.

The primary goal of the remuneration policy on executive
remuneration packages is to enable the Company to retain
and motivate Executive Directors by linking their compensation
with performance as measured against corporate objectives.
Under the policy, no director or any of his associates is allowed
in deciding his own remuneration. During the year 2016,
the Remuneration Committee has adopted the model “to
determine, with delegated responsibility, the remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior
management”.
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Details of remuneration of members of senior management of
the Company by band for the year ended 31 December 2016
are set out below:

EEERBRE

BHE_Z-—RFTA=1T—HILEFE A2
AEESEzMeSRIAIIMT

Number of
individuals
Remuneration [ k7 A
Nil to HK$1,000,000 (Note) 2 1,000,00058 7T (A7:E) 1

Details of Directors’ remuneration and the five highest paid
employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16
to the Listing Rules are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the financial
statements respectively.

Note: Included the remuneration payable to the member of senior

management who resigned during the year.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has an Audit Committee which was established
in compliance with rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules for the
purposes of reviewing and providing supervision over the
Group’s financial reporting process, risk management and
internal control systems and the effectiveness of the Company’s
internal audit function. It currently comprises three Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chu Yu Lin, David (as
chairman), Mr. Li Ka Fai, David and Mr. Li Zhaoxi. The Audit
Committee met three times during the year 2016 to review
the interim and final results, the interim and annual reports
and the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group. The attendance of each member is set out in the table
above under the section headed “BOARD OF DIRECTORS"”. The
duties of the Audit Committee are clearly set out in its terms of
reference.

Full minutes of meetings are kept and sent to all members of
the Board. Matters raised at the meetings were reported back
to the Board so that due consideration was given as to the
action to be taken.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

Ernst & Young are the auditors of the Company. The services
provided by them include audit and non-audit. Fees for auditing
and non-auditing (including interim review, taxation and other
professional services) services for the year ended 31 December
2016 amount to HK$1,500,000 and HK$466,500 respectively.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Directors are responsible for monitoring the preparation of
financial statements of each financial period and ensuring those
financial statements provide a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flow for the
relevant financial period. In preparing the financial statements,
the Directors have selected appropriate accounting policies
and applied them consistently, adopted Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, made a prudent and reasonable
judgment and estimation, and, prepared the financial
statements on a going concern basis.

The Company has timely announced and published its financial
results in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.

The auditors are responsible for forming an independent
opinion, based on their audit, on those financial statements and
to report their opinion solely to the members of the Company,
as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda (the “Companies Act”), and for no other
purpose.

A statement by the auditors about their reporting

responsibilities is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report of
this annual report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group's risk
management and internal control systems and for reviewing
their effectiveness through the Audit Committee. These
systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement, losses or fraud. Procedures have been
designed for safeguarding assets against unauthorized use or
disposition, for maintaining proper accounting records; and for
the reliability of financial information used within the business
or for publication. Procedures have also been designed for
compliance of applicable laws, rules and regulations.

Reviews of the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems covering all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance
controls, were conducted by the internal audit section of the
Group from time to time. The results and recommendations
were reported to the Audit Committee and thereafter to the
Board. The adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the Group’s
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions have
also been reviewed by the Board and Audit Committee. During
the year ended 31 December 2016, internal audit section of the
Group evaluated the effectiveness and adequacy of the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems by adopting an
integrated risk assessment approach, and the review report was
presented to the Audit Committee and the Board for review
in December 2016. No material deficiency was identified.
The Board considered that the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems were adequate and effective and the
Company has complied with the provisions on risk management
and internal control of the CG Code. The Board confirms that
systems and procedures are in place to identify, control and
report on significant risks involved in achieving the Company’s
strategic objectives. Exposures to these risks are monitored by
the Board with the support of Audit Committee, internal audit
section and senior management.
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The Company has implemented Corporate Disclosure Policy,
which set out the reporting procedures for the handling and
dissemination of inside information.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Tsui Choi Yee, Connie, the Company Secretary, is an
employee of the Company and responsible directly to the
Board. She has complied with all the qualification, experience
and training requirement under the Listing Rules.

The Company Secretary reports to the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The updated Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws of
the Company had been posted on the Company’s website at
www.avic.com.hk and the Stock Exchange’s designated website
at www.hkexnews.hk. During the year 2016, there was no
change in the Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws of the
Company.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Convening of a special general meeting by
shareholders

Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company and the Companies
Act, the Board shall, on the requisition of shareholders holding
at the date of the deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of such of the paid-up capital of the Company as at
the date of the deposit carries the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company, forthwith proceed duly to convene a
special general meeting of the Company.

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and
must be signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the
registered office of the Company (the “Registered Office”),
which is presently situated at Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria
Street, Hamilton HM 12, Bermuda, and may consist of
several documents in like form each signed by one or more
requisitionists.

Annual Report 2016 —Z — /XFEH

ARFRERLEMEEEERERR  HPRE
THARBENREREMNRSEEF -

DEHWE
RERNERVELTRAAREES  YEER
BERAE - BUT—HEETETRAETHR
BHNEE  EHRREVER -

RAWEREFE R THRAARESR -

REERZ

KRBT EMREANBREESHN AR
748 BEwww.avic.com hk R Bt X FriE © 48 B
www.hkexnews.hk e R =ZE—XHFR » KA 7]

ARG R AR RN S S o

R R AE R
BRERBMARRESRIAE

RIBEARBAAERARNE - REFAAIRARQF
BERAEREZEHBERATINtDZ—XZ
BREREXZFEEZH  EF2ABANBRKRR
FrhlAg o

EREEVEVFEEZREN  UNEABEFAZE
ERBEXANRGFMRER ([sEM#EER] -
IHEFHAE A Canon's Court, 22 Victoria Street,
Hamilton HM 12, Bermuda) * M 2&Er A%
FHREBR ZXHEARK  MEHXHEHHE—%
SN E2FAESE -



AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited

TEMZETERREZER (F8) ARLA

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

If the Board does not within twenty-one days from the date
of the deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a
meeting, the requisitionist, or any of them representing more
than one half of the total voting rights of all of them, may
themselves convene a meeting, but any meeting so convened
shall not be held after the expiration of three months from the
said date.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at
shareholders’ meetings

Pursuant to the Companies Act, either any number of
shareholders representing not less than one-twentieth of the
total voting rights of all the shareholders having at the date
of the requisition a right to vote at the meeting to which the
requisition relates; or not less than one hundred shareholders,
can request the Company in writing to (a) give to shareholders
entitled to receive notice of the next annual general meeting
notice of any resolution which may properly be moved and
is intended to be moved at that meeting; and (b) circulate to
shareholders entitled to have notice of any general meeting
sent to them any statement of not more than one thousand
words with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with at that meeting.

The requisition signed by all the requisitionists must be
deposited at the Registered Office with a sum reasonably
sufficient to meet the Company’s relevant expenses, not less
than six weeks before the meeting in the case of a requisition
requiring notice of a resolution; and not less than one week
before the meeting in the case of any other requisition.
Provided that if, an annual general meeting is called for a date
six weeks or less after the requisition has been deposited, the
requisition though not deposited within the time required shall
be deemed to have been properly deposited for the purposes
thereof.
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Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for
election as a Director

Regarding the procedures for proposing a person for election
as a Director, please refer to the procedures made available
under section Corporate Governance of the Company’s website
at www.avic.com.hk.

Procedures for directing shareholder’s enquiries to
the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns
to the Board in writing through the Company Secretary whose
contact details are as follows:

Unit B, 15th Floor, United Centre
95 Queensway, Hong Kong
Fax: (852) 2915 0867

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at
general meetings of the Company.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company is committed to fair disclosure, comprehensive
and transparent reporting. Effective communication with
shareholders has always been one of the Company’s priorities.
Information in relation to the Group is disseminated to
shareholders in a timely manner through various formal
channels, which include interim and annual reports,
announcements and circulars.

The Company has established a shareholders’ communication

policy which is subject to review on a regular basis to ensure its
effectiveness.
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General meetings of the Company provide good opportunities
for direct communications between the Board and its
shareholders. The Chairman of the Board, all other
Directors and senior management endeavor to attend any
general meeting of the Company and answer queries from
shareholders. Separate resolution is proposed for each issue by
the chairman of the meeting at each general meeting. Notice
of general meeting is served together with the circular to the
shareholders at least twenty clear business days or twenty-one
clear days, whichever is the longer, before an annual general
meeting and at least ten clear business days or twenty-one
clear days, whichever is the longer, before a meeting called for
passing of a special resolution, and, at least ten clear business
days or fourteen clear days, whichever is the longer, before a
meeting other than an annual general meeting or a meeting for
the passing of a special resolution.

Detailed procedures for conducting a poll are to be explained
by the chairman of the meeting at the commencement of
the general meeting. Any questions raised from shareholders
regarding voting by way of a poll may also be answered by the
chairman of the meeting.

The 2016 annual general meeting of the Company was held
on 27 May 2016. At the meeting, separate resolution was
proposed by the chairman of the meeting in respect of each
separate issue, including re-election of retiring directors, and
voted by way of poll. The Company announced the results of
the poll in the manner prescribed under the Listing Rules. All
Directors except for an Independent Non-executive Director, the
chairman of the audit committee and remuneration committee
and a member of the audit committee and remuneration
committee attended the 2016 annual general meeting and have
effective communication with shareholders.
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THE SCOPE OF THE REPORT

This report covered the Dalian-based property development and
investment business of AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
(hereinafter the Company).

The time frame of the report is the 2016 fiscal year (from 1
January to 31 December 2016), which is consistent with that of
the Company’s annual report.

This report was compiled in accordance with Appendix 27
of the Rules for the Main Board of the Stock Exchange:
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide. It
is the Company’s first environmental, social and governance
report compiled based on this guide. General disclosures are
made based on the “comply or explain” provision of the guide.
The 2017 report will be extended to cover key performance
indicators.

COMMUNICATION WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Company is committed to fair disclosure, comprehensive
and transparent reporting. Effective communication with
stakeholders has always been one of the Company'’s priorities.
Information in relation to the Company is disseminated in a
timely manner through various formal channels, which include
interim and annual reports, announcements and circulars.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
PERFORMANCE

The low-carbon economy has gradually become an important
concept in modern economic growth. The Company follows
the major trends in environmental protection around the world.
Our operations are also in an ongoing effort to increasingly
integrate this concept. Based on new technologies and a
supportive management approach, the Company strictly
controls the environmental impact and resource usage, in an
effort to forge cleaner production featuring lower pollution and
lower emissions toward a low-carbon economy.
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Meanwhile, corporate social responsibility has also become
a growing concern. The employment at the Company is
based on the principle of equality. The Company focuses on
occupational health and safety, fulfills product responsibilities
as well as social responsibilities such as the implementation
of anti-corruption measures. The company also considers the
fulfillment of social responsibilities as a priority to become more
competitive.

A. ENVIRONMENT

A.1 Emissions

The Company has integrated the low emission policy in its
growth, in an effort to further pollution prevention and
continuous improvement. The Company also complies with
applicable government decrees and requirements, follows the
environmental protection trends around the world and works
hard to protect the environment. The Company considers
factors such as environmental control and emissions reduction
in all its operational decisions, including the reduction of
greenhouse gas emissions, the improvement of energy
efficiency, the reduction of the wastewater emissions, and the

promotion of recycling to reduce waste.

The Company avoids the use of non-necessary appliances
with high energy consumption. Priority is given to energy
efficient appliances in order to reduce the emissions of
greenhouse gases. Meanwhile, the Company adopts grey water
recycling technology to collect wastewater which will then be
precipitated and filtered for reuse, which can effectively reduce
wastewater discharge.
As for waste control, in order to minimize environmental
impact, the Company devotes itself to reducing waste.
Recycling is adopted whenever possible and non-recyclable
waste is disposed properly. The Company recycles rubber and
glass parts for reuse. Priority is given to prefabricated material
including concrete and glass products to avoid wastage in
in-situ fabrication.

The Company strictly complies with relevant environmental
legislation. During this period, there were no cases of

prosecution for violating relevant environmental legislation.
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A.2 Use of Resources

The Company attaches great importance to cleaner production
and promote resource efficiency. Efficient use of resources in
upstream and minimization of downstream waste effectively
help controlling and reducing pollutants discharge, which
prevents pollution and benefits the transformation of the entire
production process.

Priority is given to appliances that are more energy efficient.
The Company selects lighting systems carefully for a better
use of power. The Company pays close attention to water
efficiency as well. The Company uses proper pipelines for water
source. It has installed a rainwater collection system to fully
utilize rainwater, and reduce the consumption of water from
other sources. Meanwhile, the Company collects downstream
wastewater efficiently. Water is reused after precipitation
and filtration, which has greatly reduced the consumption
of raw water. Priority is given to prefabricated parts during
the construction process to reduce the consumption of raw
materials.

The Company also promotes a paperless office. Documentation
is encouraged to be done in electronic form. The Company
adopts the green office approach. When a hard copy is
necessary, double-side printing is encouraged in order to
reduce the use of paper and conserve forest sources.

The efficient use of energy and other resources reduces costs,

and helps the Company to become a sustainable partner for
customers.
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A.3 The Environment and Natural Resources

The Company attaches great importance to the prevention and
mitigation of its impact on the environment and surroundings,
and it is therefore working on effective measures to mitigate
the impact of dust, noise and indoor air pollution. For example,
landscaping in construction site, watering and wetting to
reduce fugitive dust, prohibition of construction work at night
and adopted the aluminum formwork construction technology
to reduce noise pollution were put forward. On the other hand,
the Company uses environmental-friendly materials for interior
decoration to reduce indoor emissions and improve indoor air
quality.

B. SOCIAL
B.1 Employment

The Company’s employment policy is based on the principle
of fair competition and selection of the finest. The Company
ensures a fair and equal recruitment process. All decisions
are made based on the candidates’ skills, knowledge and
job-related experience. All of the applications receive fair
treatment regardless of sex, age, race, family status, religion
or disability, etc. Any appointment and termination is based
on the qualification requirements for the relevant position.
The Company’s Guidelines for Appointment, Termination
and Transfer has detailed information on the process and
requirements. Close relatives are excluded from decision-making
to avoid any conflict of interests. Employees are provided with
equal opportunities for promotion and career development
without discrimination. The Company has female employees
holding director, department manager and manager positions
at the Company, manifesting its concept of equality in
promotion and career development.
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RE - HERERHRE

Employees enjoy holiday, statutory paid annual leave,
marriage leave, maternity leave, paternity leave, nursing leave,
bereavement leave, injury leave, sick leave, etc. Employees
working on the holiday are paid triple the normal wage;
those working on the weekend enjoy compensation days
off. Additionally the Company provides benefits, work-hour
benefits, employee care, health checkups and employee
activities for all employees. On top of social security insurance,
employees are also covered with group accident insurance for a
full coverage.

The Company strictly complies with the relevant employment
legislation. During the reporting period, there were no cases of
prosecution for violating relevant employment legislation.

B.2 Health and Safety

The Company attaches great significance to employees’
occupational health and safety, working to create a sound
working environment including the formulation of safety
system, educating employees on safety awareness, providing
protective equipment, monitoring and audit of safety
performance, etc.

The project management office directly manages safety
production of projects, responsible for the establishment
of site safety management systems and daily control, and
setting and implementation of project safety management
objectives. The management division assembles the production
team and supervision team for a detailed communication of
safety mechanisms and standards, and establishes a safety
management system. The Supervision team reviews and audit
the safety measures reported by the production team, and
responses with suggestions and requirements as needed.
The team works with the management division for joint
safety review with the main contractor, subcontractors, etc.
Risks associated with on-site construction are analysed and
summarized, and actionable corrective actions are implemented.
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Safety training is regularly held, focusing on safety regulations,
fire drills, etc. A booth for safety experience is erected on
the site to educate workers to properly use safety products
and seriously implement safety protective measures to ensure
employees understand related safety operations.

The Company strictly complies with the relevant occupational
health and safety legislation. During the reporting period, there
were no cases of prosecution for violating relevant occupational
health and legislation.

B.3 Development and Training

Promotion is awarded based on the performance, experience
and personal competence of employees. Employees are
provided with fair opportunities for promotion, ensuring a fair
and equal process for career development of each individual.
The Company holds a quarterly and yearly performance
assessment, and instructions to the employees are released
based on the outcome of the assessment.

All new employees are provided with orientation and guiding
activities, those already under employment are provided
with various training opportunities, including in-house and
outsourced training. The Company also creates opportunities in
various project for employees to communicate, learn and grow.

B.4 Labour Standards

The Company attaches great importance to the prevention of
child labour and stipulates that all employees must be at least
18 years old. Relevant documents are reviewed to verify the
age before a candidate is hired in the recruitment process. The
Company ensure all employees are employed on a voluntary
basis, and prohibit any form of forced labour. Recruitment
is performed on a fair and voluntary basis. Any forced or
fraudulent recruitment is prohibited. Employees are allowed
to leave the post for the moment on reasonable grounds.
Employee representatives or the employee himself is consulted
for extra work hours during the production within the statuary
limit. Management will never ask employees to engage in illegal
operations or those with significant safety or health risks.
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The Company follows applicable regulations regarding the
prevention of child labour and forced labour, and does not
have any child labour or forced labour incident in the period.

B.5 Supply Chain Management

Suppliers are required to follow our Suppliers Code. They
are expected to implement sound environmental and social
management measures, and treat employees fairly and
reasonably. When screening suppliers, in addition to their
proficiency and pricing, the Company examines its qualifications
through a checkup on website of the Administration of Industry
and Commerce, ensuring the compliance, legitimacy and
proven track record of the supplier. Any supplier with a bad
record or overdue inspection is removed from the approved
supplier list.

The Company performs an annual review of suppliers and
contractors for their cooperation and coordination. Such
a mechanism links business opportunities with its aspects
of performance, ensuring an effective improvement and
enhancement on suppliers’ end.

B.6 Product Responsibility

The Company understands product responsibility lays a
foundation for its long-term growth. Any housing product
before its handover to customers is subject to rounds of
in-house review and rounds of external examination by the
quality control authority for a completion certificate. The
five-year maintenance guarantee covers the foundation and
major structures, roof waterproofing, leak-proof of bathrooms,
rooms and exterior walls which require a water proofing, and
exterior insulation. The two-year maintenance guarantee covers
electrical piping, drainage pipe, equipment installation and
renovation works, and a maintenance guarantee of two heating
seasons and cooling seasons for air conditioning system.
The Company has a customer service centre. Designated
staff receives the comments or complaints from customers.
Suggestions or complaints are referred to divisions for
treatment or settlement.
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The Company pays great attention to information security.
Anti-virus software is deployed at the Company level. Customer
data are recorded by designated staff in a password protected
system. Any unauthorized access is prohibited. Sensitive
data are protected for confidentiality. At the same time, the
Company attaches significance to the protection of intellectual
property rights and definitely not use any unauthorized third
party designs or products.

The Company complies with the relevant product responsibility
legislation. During the reporting period, there were no cases
of prosecution for violating relevant product responsibility or
privacy-related legislation.

B.7 Anti-corruption

The Company has a corruption prevention mechanism in place.
Preventive measures and countermeasures are constantly
improved in such aspects as personnel management, approval
authorities, and financial management, forming an effective
internal and external supervision and counterbalance system.
The company uses a variety of forms of education to provide
officials with legal training, anti-corruption education and
preemptive education, designed to reinforce self-discipline
and clean conduct to ensure strong professional ethics and
occupational discipline.

Strict provisions at the Company apply to receiving reception
and entertainment in official activities. Any banquet, travel,
fitness or high-end entertainment is prohibited. It is also
forbidden to accept gifts, gift cards, securities, payment
vouchers, etc. in any capacity. Construction projects and
procurement of bulk equipment and material are subject to
open tenders or tender negotiation. Contractors and suppliers
are selected fairly to avoid abuse, corruption and other
misconduct.

The Company complies strictly with the relevant anti-corruption
and bribery legislation. During the reporting period, there were
no cases of prosecution for violating related legislation.
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B.8 Community Investment

The Company reviews its targets and objectives for community
investment regularly, and supervises its community investments,
sponsorships and donations and approval policy. The Company
reviews its social performance yearly to see whether it matches
the community investment policies and goals, and monitor and
enhance capability to ensure the community investment policy
is well implemented.

OUTLOOK

The Company plans to continue to introduce more
environmental, social and governance friendly approaches to its
operations.

On top of the general disclosures under Guidelines on
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting (Appendix
27 to Main Board Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange), the
Company plans to incorporate more metrics including key
performance indicators in its 2017 Environmental, Social and
Governance Reports, manifesting the Company’s commitment
to environment and society.
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The Directors present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are
set out in note 1 to the financial statements.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required by
Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Cap 622 of the laws
of Hong Kong), including a description of the principal risks
and uncertainties faced by the Group and an indication of likely
future development in the Group’s business, can be found in
the Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and
Analysis set out on pages 3 to 10 of this annual report. This
discussion forms part of this directors’ report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2016 and
the Group’s financial position at that date are set out in the
financial statements on pages 64 to 224 of this annual report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend
in respect of the year ended 31 December 2016.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and
non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial
years, as extracted from the audited financial statements, is set
out on page 226 of this annual report. This summary does not
form part of the audited financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

There were no movements in either the Company’s authorised
or issued share capital during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2016, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions
of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, amounted to
HK$934,094,000. In addition, the Company’s share premium
account, in the amount of HK$609,080,000, may be distributed
in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The percentages of the Group's purchases attributable to the
Group’s major suppliers are as follows:

EIRE 3R]
EREREARNE NN BXHRETE  »©
ZE-RF+ZA=FT—8  ARRZA#ES
IR 83 934,094,000/8 7T ° th4h » RAF Z /%
175 E8k609,080,000/8 7T A LA R AL AR X T
LASIK ©

BA BElHERAQIT LEHES

ARRARHEERMEBRARRFARERA - &
Blek HEARARBEA LHES

FTEREBREF

AEETEHEFMEASECRBEADLL
e

2016 2015
—EB—RE —T—hF
% %

Percentage of purchases: HEREBEEO
From the largest supplier RERARER 18 4
From the five largest suppliers RE R AREER 47 1

The percentages of the Group’s sales attributable to the
Group’s major customers are as follows:

AEEFEEFPMEAERZHER D LA
T

2016 2015
—E-RF —ET—hEF
% %
Percentage of sales: EHEERD
To the largest customer RARAEF 26 3
To the five largest customers REAKREF 57

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any
shareholders (which, to the knowledge of the Directors, own
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
interest in the Group’s five largest suppliers and customers.
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DIRECTORS

The Board during the year and up to the date of this report
comprises:

Executive Directors:

Liu Hongde (appointed on 30 December 2016)
Pan Linwu

Lai Weixuan

Zhou Chunhua (appointed on 30 December 2016)
Xu Hongge

Wu Guangquan (resigned on 30 December 2016)

Xiao Nan (resigned on 30 December 2016)

Non-executive Director:

Chow Wai Kam

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Chu Yu Lin, David
Li Ka Fai, David
Li Zhaoxi

Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company, Mr. Lai Weixuan, Mr.
Li Ka Fai, David and Mr. Li Zhaoxi will retire by rotation. Mr.
Liu Hongde and Ms. Zhou Chunhua, the Directors appointed
by the Board on 30 December 2016, shall hold office only until
the next following general meeting of the Company. All of
them, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Company has received an annual confirmation from
each of the Independent Non-executive Directors of his
independence pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules on the
Stock Exchange. The Company, as at the date of this report,
still considered all the Independent Non-executive Directors as
independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management
of the Group are set out on pages 11 to 16 of this annual
report.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has an unexpired service contract with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable
by the employer within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration of employees (including Directors and senior
management of the Group) is determined with reference to
their qualification, expertise and experience in the industry,
competence, duties and responsibilities within the Group,
the performance and profitability of the Group as well as
the market benchmark and the prevailing market conditions.
Employees shall also be eligible to receive a discretionary
year-end incentive bonus, which shall be determined by the
Group at its absolute discretion taking into account, inter alia,
the Group's operating performance, market conditions in which
the Group operates and the individual’s performance, payable
at such time as the Group may consider appropriate, and
discretionary share options.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No Director or entities connected with the Directors had
a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to
the business of the Group to which the Company’s holding
companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party
during or at the end of the year.
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DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

Except for certain Directors who had non-beneficial interests
in certain subsidiaries of the Company held for the benefits of
the Company, as at 31 December 2016, none of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company had an interest or short
position in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (a) as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO"); or (b) as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 of the
Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section of “DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES” above and in the
section of “SHARE OPTION SCHEME" below, during the year no
rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in or debentures of the Company had been granted to any
Director or their respective spouses or children under 18 years
of age; no such rights had been exercised by them; and none
of the Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries was a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

At the annual general meeting held on 28 May 2014, the
Company adopted a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
to contribute to the business development and growth of
the Group and to enable the Group to recruit high-calibre
employees and attract or retain human resources that are
valuable to the Group. The share option scheme is valid and
effective for a period of 10 years from the date of its adoption.
Further details of the share option scheme are disclosed in note
38 to the financial statements.
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Since the adoption of the share option scheme, no options
have been granted, exercised, lapsed, cancelled or outstanding
thereunder as at 31 December 2016.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2016, the following interests of 5% or

HERAZBREEIAR  R_F—RF+=
A=1+—8 BERBEZFERL  T7E %
R RS ARTTE 2 FE AR

FERRREMALIARG REER
7 2 s

RZE-—RF+TZA=1+—0  XRFAREZE
7 MEIBEGRDIF 33616 FE 2 m B o Aracex

more of the issued share capital of the Company were recorded
in the register of interests required to be kept by the Company

pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions:

"R

AN AR5 % HIA LB BITRAE ST

Percentage of
the Company’s
issued share
capital as at
31 December

2016
Capacity and Number of R=E—RF
nature of ordinary shares +=-A=+—H
Name of shareholders Notes interest held 1{5FRATEERT
BRERERB btaE SORERME FEEEREE BAEzBEDEH
Tacko International Limited (“Tacko”) (a) Beneficial owner 1,895,559,000 34.34
EmEEA
AVIC International (HK) Group Limited (a) Through a controlled 1,895,559,000 34.34
("AVIC International (HK) Group”) corporation
FRER (58 SEBRAE BR—EXEEE
([RMmBE () &8 ])
AVIC International Holding (a) Through a controlled 1,895,559,000 34.34
Corporation (“AVIC International”) corporation
R B 2 ST B R i B B PR A ) B —EXEEAE
([FRATEIRR ])
Aviation Industry Corporation of (a) Through a controlled 1,895,559,000 34.34
China ("AVIC") corporation
FREMZEIEEE QT MR —EXEEE
(Tl
Cheung Kong (Holdings) Limited b) Through controlled 450,000,000 8.15
("CKH") corporations
RIEX (58) ARAA RBZIEEAE
(RIEZE]
CK Hutchison Holdings Limited (b) Through controlled 450,000,000 8.15

("CKHH")
BIMREEZERAA ([RIME])
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Notes:

(a)

(b)

According to notices of disclosure of interests filed with the
Company, Tacko is a wholly-owned subsidiary of AVIC International
(HK) Group, which in turn is a wholly-owned subsidiary of AVIC
International. AVIC International is a non wholly-owned subsidiary
of AVIC (62.52% interest controlled by AVIC as at 31 December
2016). Accordingly, each of AVIC International (HK) Group, AVIC
International and AVIC is deemed to be interested in the shares held

by Tacko.

According to notices of disclosure of interests filed with the
Company, 225,000,000 shares are held by Worsdale Investments
Limited (“Worsdale”) and 225,000,000 shares are held by Hutchison

International Limited (“HIL").

Worsdale is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Arra International Limited,
which in turn is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Cheung Kong
Investment Company Limited (“CKIV"). CKIV is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of CKH. CKH is deemed to be interested in 225,000,000
shares held by Worsdale. Meanwhile, HIL is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Hutchison Whampoa Limited (“HWL"). HWL is deemed
to be interested in 225,000,000 shares held by HIL. CKH is entitled
to exercise or control the exercise of more than one-third of the
voting power at the general meetings of HWL. Accordingly, CKH
is also deemed to be interested in 225,000,000 shares held by
HIL. In addition, CKH is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CKHH and
accordingly, CKHH is deemed to be interested in the aggregate
shares directly held by Worsdale and HIL.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, no person
had any interest or short position in the shares or underlying

shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to
be kept under Section 336 of the SFO.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group had the following continuing
connected transactions, certain details of which are disclosed in
compliance with the requirements of Charter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

(a) Pre-handover real estate management services

On 31 May 216, the Company and CATIC Property
Management Co., Ltd ("AVIC Real Estate Management”),
an associate of a controlling shareholder of the
Company, namely, AVIC International, entered into a
framework agreement for the engagement of AVIC
Real Estate Management to provide pre-handover real
estate management services for the relevant properties
in real estate development projects of the Group.
The management fees comprises the management
costs based on the annual budget proposed by the
relevant developers of the Group and the management
commission of 10% of the total management costs
incurred for each development project.

(b) Tender agency services

On 31 May 216, the Company and China National
Aero-Technology Trade and Economic Development
company Limited (“AVIC TED"), an associate of AVIC
International, entered into a framework agreement for
the engagement of AVIC TED to provide tender agency
services for the construction projects of the Group.
The fees for tender agency services is calculated by
applying the marginal rates to the relevant actual sum
of the tender awarded or contracted on a progressive
scale as prescribed by the Provisional Measures on the
Administration of Service Fees Charged for Tender
Agency Services (FRIZRERBEW B EBETHE) with
such further discounts as the parties agree to in each
engagement.
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The continuing connected transactions contemplated under
the framework agreements for pre-handover real estate
management services and tender agency services would only
be subject to reporting, announcement and annual review
requirements but exempt from the independent shareholders’
approval requirement under the Listing Rules. The Group has
followed the pricing policies and guidelines set out in the
relevant announcement of the Company dated 31 May 2016
when the pricing and terms of the above continuing connected
transaction were determined. Further details were disclosed in
that announcement.

These continuing connected transactions of the Group are
disclosed as related party transactions in note 45 to the
financial statements.

The Independent Non-executive Directors have reviewed
the above continuing connected transactions pursuant to
Rule14A.55 of the Listing Rules, and have confirmed that these
continuing connected transactions have been entered into:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

(2) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(3) according to the terms of the two framework
agreements on terms that are fair and reasonable and
in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a
whole.

The total amounts of the pre-handover real estate management
services fees and tender agency services fees disclosed above
during the year under review have not exceeded the annual
caps amounts of HK$18 million and HK$3.5 million respectively.
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Ernst & Young, the Company’s external auditors, were engaged
to report on the Group’s continuing connected transactions
in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (Revised) Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information,
and with reference to Practice Note 740 Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Ernst & Young have issued their unqualified
letter containing their findings and conclusions in respect
of the continuing connected transactions disclosed above in
accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of
the said letter has been provided to the Stock Exchange by the
Company.

Save as disclosed above, related party transactions that did
not constitute connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions of the Company made during the year are
disclosed in note 45 to the financial statements. The Directors
confirm that the Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year, the following Director had interests in the
following businesses conducted through the company named
below which are considered to compete or be likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the
Group, as defined in the Listing Rules:

Name of Director Name of company

Nature of interest

ARRCREZEEM L K EHEI =R &
RELGMASELMN(ERZELRER
3000>>(ﬁ‘«1l‘<aT) i) TR S 81 7% & L | ET R E I
AN R] X2 R(EBHA) 5740
FIEARETECLETRA) M BERERS

MZEBE R RARENFERER S E
H¥RE - LKA EHAMDREBE ETRRNE

T4A56(FE N EBRBBER KM EPHAH
BERAASEN EXARBEZHERER SN

RN o AR AR A AT IR A% B oK
2z BIAS o
B AT RNFEANETETERARE R

BMRXPGRFERHELIIO BRI IEER
B SRR 5545 - EFEHRA AT D ET LT
HAIBUUAZEZRTE FLAFE -

EERBFEURT L 2ERS

FA- THNESFFEBTARAIEE NI EBH
e MZEXEBBRELMHRBERERE
AEENEBERFXAIEAEERENEERS
%

Nature of competing business

EEnE NCIEZE FEEME BREEBME
Chow Wai Kam Cheung Kong Property Executive director — Property development
A% Holdings Limited HITES and investment
RIBHEMERRAA (“Excluded Businesses”)
—MEBEREKKE
([#ARERD
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The Board is of the view that the Group is capable of carrying
on its business independently of, and at arms length from the
Excluded Businesses. When making decisions on the businesses
of the Excluded Businesses of the Group, Mr. Chow, in the
performance of his duties as Director, has acted and will

continue to act in the best interest of the Group.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the directors of the
company is currently in force and was in force throughout the
year 2016.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public as
at the date of this report.

AUDITORS

The financial statements of the Company and the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2016 have been audited
by Ernst & Young who shall retire and a resolution for their
reappointment as auditors of the Company will be proposed at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited

Liu Hongde
Chairman

Hong Kong
14 March 2017
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Ernst & Young RGNS Tel T +852 2846 9888
22/F, CITIC Tower EEPBREBE1YE Fax {8H: +852 2868 4432
ﬁ i 1 Tim Mei Avenue h{E KE2218 ey.com
7 Central, Hong Kong

To the shareholders of AVIC International Holding (HK)
Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of AVIC
International Holding (HK) Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 64 to 224, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2016, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2016, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited

TEMZETERREZER (F8) ARLA

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT B & E TR &

EY:

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. For each matter below, our description of
how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements. The results of our audit procedures, including
the procedures performed to address the matters below,
provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
REIfZE TEEREZER (58) BRAA

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT & Y & EEi 3R &

EY:

Key audit matter

BEETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BRNFANAEEEARETSE

Recoverability of trade and bills receivables

JEW B 2 58 50 K 2 % 79 A K B 1%

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had trade and bills
receivables of HK$90 million. Management performs

an impairment assessment on a regular basis, with the
impairment provision estimated through the application
of judgement and use of subjective assumptions.

Relevant disclosures are included in note 24 to the
financial statements.

RIZB—RF+ZA=1t—H > EXENEKRZESKE
A% R ¥ 7390,000,000/8 7T » BIEEE HAETTRER
- BRAAE R EBERR A ARBERE

MR BRI S MR M 524 -

We have evaluated the inputs and assumptions used
by management in their impairment assessment,
and management'’s procedures over aged receivables
or amounts in dispute. We have also tested the
ageing classification of receivables and assessed the
reasonableness of the impairment provision as of
the end of the reporting period, taking into account
factors such as the payment history, the subsequent
settlement of the receivables and other relevant

information.
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
PEfZE TEEBREZER (§8) GRAH

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT B & E TR &

EY:

Key audit matter

HAREETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BANFANAIEERARETSE

Valuation of investment properties

REYFEIE1E

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had investment
properties measured at fair value amounting to
approximately HK$316 million, with the corresponding
fair value loss of HK$34 million recognised in profit

or loss. The valuation process is inherently subjective,
and dependent on a number of estimates. The Group
engaged an external valuer to perform the valuation for
the properties.

Relevant disclosures are included in note 14 to the
financial statements.

RZE-—RF+ZA=+—H > EBEERQATVEAE
IR E Y 4/3316,000,000/8 7T - REm T HERNEE
N F{EEIE£34,000,000/8 7T © HEBEFESANET
B MEURRZEMBFEZ - SRERETINEG
ERMEMEEITHEE -

BRI IR M 514 -

We have evaluated the objectivity, independence
and competency of the external valuer. We have also
involved our internal valuation specialists to assist
us to assess the reasonableness of the bases and
assumptions adopted in the valuation for estimating
the fair value of the investment properties and
performed benchmarking the value of investment
properties held by the Group to other comparable
properties.

B G A EMOFENL  BUERED - &
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
REIfZE TEEREZER (58) BRAA

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT & Y & EEi 3R &

EY:

Key audit matter

BEETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BRNFANAEEEARETSE

Impairment provision in a joint venture

RE BN aIm Bl E R

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had interest in

a joint venture amounting to HK$59 million. As the
joint venture sustained losses, management performed
an impairment assessment on the assets of the joint
venture. The determination of the recoverable amounts
of the assets of joint ventures is dependent on a

range of estimates (amongst others, estimated sales,
estimated future cash flows and discount rates).

Relevant disclosures are included in note 17 to the
financial statements.

RZEBE—XRF+-_A=+—H > BEBEREEQAZ
%5 £59,000,000/87C - ANAE B AFIFERIE B2
BHagaRmARETRETE - BTABANEE
KU B R EE THBURR Z (5T (R RS M HEEE -
HETARKRRETRERITIRE) -

MR BE BN M MAMFET ©

We have evaluated the appropriateness and
application of the valuation methodology and

key valuation parameters. We have involved our
internal valuation experts to assist us in considering
management’s assumptions, including the discount
rates, revenue growth rate, profit margins and other
key indicators.

BMEEAETEAREZERESENES T RER
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Re& - BEFREE  KRERE  HEXRAMEE
1BIZ -
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
(&#8) BRAHE

PEIMZE T XEREZER

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT B & E TR &

EY:

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
REIfZE TEEREZER (58) BRAA

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT & Y & EEi 3R &

EY:

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the directors of the Company either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit
Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing
the Group's financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
PEfZE TEEBREZER (§8) GRAH

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT B & E TR &

EY:

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group'’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
REIfZE TEEREZER (58) BRAA

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT & Y & EEi 3R &

EY:

consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited

TEMZETERREZER (F8) ARLA

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT B & E TR &

EY:

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Ms. Chau Suet Fung, Dilys.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
14 March 2017
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
PEMZEIXEREZER (B8) ARAFH

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS iz 8185 &
Year ended 31 December 2016 BE—Z—NE+-_A=+—HILFE

2016 2015
—E-RF —E-RF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
0z FE FET
(Restated)
(E45)
CONTINUING OPERATIONS BELEER

REVENUE = 5 102,786 2,154,988
Cost of sales SHEM AR (74,269) (1,974,454)
Gross profit EH 28,517 180,534
Other income and gains H AU A K F 5 12,765 34,550
Selling and distribution expenses HERZHER (31,694) (22,998)
Administrative expenses THERER (41,611) (54,059)
Other operating income/(expenses), net Hipgeg A /(%) 358 6 (54,633) 15,299
Finance costs ISR 7 (77) (47,638)
Net gain on deemed disposal of associates BRALEHE DT FHE 18 3,386 433,380

Share of profits and losses of: AEEFREE :

Joint venture RN (215,369) (27,278)

Associates [l /NE] (3,013) (41,337)
Impairment of an available-for-sale investment At & KR E 2 FME (#E 7T

(transfer from available-for-sale investment HEEREEHFEBEAN)

revaluation reserve) 20(d) (134,107) (311,137)
Gain on derecognition of available-for-sale BRI ENREZ

investments i 20(a),(b) = 224
Fair value gain/(loss) of available-for-sale AHNENEEZ A TFET

investments (transfer from equity on B/ (BE) (NRIEERE  20@)

derecognition) HERBA) (b),(c) (490) 19,091
Fair value gain/(loss) on derivative financial TELBRIEZRAFEEF

instruments, net 8/ (BE) F8 21 (108,558) 28,146
Fair value loss on an equity investment at fair BATEGABE ZBAKE

value through profit or loss ZATEEE (198,094) (1,204)
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX FROM CONTINUING R B E KL £~ BRBIAT %

OPERATIONS A/ (BR) 6 (742,978) 205,573
Income tax credit/(expense) RS/ (FAX) 10 6,685 (108,057)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR FROM CONTINUING R B ERE 215~ K &%

OPERATIONS A/ (58) (736,293) 97,516
DISCONTINUED OPERATION CRIEEEER
Profit/(loss) for the year from a discontinued REDRIEEEEK 2 KEGR

operation I/ (E8) 11 27,362 (14,056)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR XERF/(BR) (708,931) 83,460
Attributable to: THIALER

Owners of the parent (SYNSIiPEy (685,842) 41,820

Non-controlling interests eSS (23,089) 41,640

(708,931) 83,460
EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO B ARIEBEREZEE AELS

ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT REF /(BE) 12

Basic and diluted ERNEE

— For profit/(loss) for the year - KFHF/(ER) (HK12.43 cents) HK0.76 cent

(12.437%41L) 0.7671L

~ For profit/(loss) from continuing operations ~ REFELEXBZ
wH L (EE) (HK12.97 cents) HK0.89 cent
(12.973%4L) 0.8978 11l
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
PEfZE TEEBREZER (§8) GRAH

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME #r&82HIWER
Year ended 31 December 2016 HE—T— R NFE+_-_A=+—HILtFE

2016 2015
—E-xE “T-8%F
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
Wi FET FHET
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR KERF(BR) (708,931) 83,460
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hib2E W
Other comprehensive income to be reclassified to REZHEEeENHEERE
profit or loss in subsequent periods: w2 AR EE
Available-for-sale investments: AHHENRE
Changes in fair value NFEZD 20 (119,876) (307,190)
Reclassification adjustments for losses/(gains) FAGABRRZER )/
included in the consolidated statement of (FH) cEFDEHE
profit or loss
- Loss/(gain) on derecognition —R\HER 2R,/ (FIIE) 20 490 (19,091)
— Impairment loss —REFHE 20 134,107 311,137
14,721 (15,144)
Exchange differences: B 55
Exchange differences on translation of foreign ~ HMEGIEBREL Y
operations ENEH (125,145) (76,206)
Reclassification adjustment for a foreign AENEZGIEBZ
operation disposed of during the year BRI BRAE 41 (1,223) -
(126,368) (76,206)
Share of other comprehensive income of a joint ~ AE&4 R E 2 Hith 2 EUkzS
venture (8,905) -
Share of other comprehensive income of DEBE AR 2 Bt 2 E RS
associates - 16,028
Release of share of an associate’s other BEAREG AL ERRERE
comprehensive income upon deemed disposal  SIEZZEE AT 2 Hi
of the associate 2EME = (38,241)
NET OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME REZBBKEENRIBEER
TO BE RECLASSIFIED TO PROFIT OR mHEMZANSFER
LOSS IN SUBSEQUENT PERIODS AND REHMEEWE (MBRH
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME H#%)
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX (120,552) (113,563)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME REREKEAR
FOR THE YEAR (829,483) (30,103)
Attributable to: THALZEL -
Owners of the parent BARAEE (764,262) (45,837)
Non-controlling interests g (65,221) 15,734
(829,483) (30,103)
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
PEMZEIXEREZER (B8) ARAFH

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION &4 B &4k R &

31 December 2016 —E— X F+_-_A=+—H

2016 2015
—B-RE —E-NfF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
i3 FAETT FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - BREMEE 13 24,975 31,595
Investment properties KEYE 14 315,866 373,425
Prepaid land lease payments AT A ER 15 - 2,814
Intangible asset | EE 16 - 380
Investment in a joint venture BENBZIKE 17 58,602 290,621
Investments in associates BENRZ2IRE 18 13,378 24,146
Financial asset under Project EC120 EC120lBE v I &E 19 = -
Available-for-sale investments AHEERERE 20 278,745 400,421
Derivative financial instruments TESBMTA 21 11,338 119,896
Trade receivable FEWE 5 BRX 24 20,178 21,628
Due from a fellow subsidiary FEUR [B] Z B B A A 32 = 3,178
Loan to a related company AR A TIRHENE R 25 - 11,976
Prepayments TERTIE 26 - 278
Deferred tax assets EIEFIEE B 36 10,025 9,685
Total non-current assets FRBEERE 733,107 1,290,043
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Properties under development and BEAMERBELREZ
completed properties held for sale [REDE7ES 22 4,105,317 4,070,648
Inventories FE 23 - 4,564
Trade and bills receivables TEWE FERERRERE 24 69,442 155,450
Due from fellow subsidiaries LGS IEYNS 32 10,960 46,016
Due from a non-controlling shareholder — FEUI B AR~
of a subsidiary JEIERE IS R 30 = 323
Due from an intermediate holding FEUR P R % A A
company 31 5,282 -
Loans to associates M A R E X 18 9,497 -
Loans to related companies MEEE A RREHER 25 16,760 17,230
Prepayments, deposits and other FERTRIE - e REAME
receivables WBRK 26 42,978 61,714
Equity investment at fair value through 2 QAP (EzT A B2 IRA
profit or loss & 27 87,619 285,713
Prepaid taxes TERTELIE 28 16,186 12,156
Pledged time deposits B E BT 3K 29 - 359
Cash and cash equivalents HeMREeEE 29 605,925 473,330
Total current assets RENEEARE 4,969,966 5,127,503
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited

TEMZETXEREZER (F8) BRAF

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION & & B i ik R &

31 December 2016 —E—"F+-_A=+—H

2016 2015
—E—RE —ET—RHF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
ks FET FET
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBEE
Due to non-controlling shareholders of ENHEA R Z
subsidiaries FEERR AR 30 88,444 64,301
Due to an intermediate holding company  F&{f 1 R1ER& A 7 31 - 14,164
Due to fellow subsidiaries e R R E A A 32 1,643 4
Loans from fellow subsidiaries KEARZEZWBATHNER 32 586,592 205,988
Trade and bills payables BB SRR RER 33 41,213 92,358
Other payables and accruals HibENRIERETER 34 17,223 32,744
Customer deposits BPES 920,238 248,310
Interest-bearing bank borrowings SRERTER 35 - 37,964
Tax payable FERTRR IR 37,449 68,139
Total current liabilities mEAREAE 1,692,802 763,972
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEERE 3,277,164 4,363,531
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES ZEEMAERABEE 4,010,271 5,653,574
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Loans from an intermediate holding REREERARNER
company 31 475,419 509,581
Loans from a fellow subsidiary KEARZWEBATNEK 32 648,045 1,658,683
Interest-bearing bank borrowings SEIRITER 35 230,134 -
Deferred tax liabilities BELEFRIEAE 36 129,920 153,652
Total non-current liabilities FRBEERE 1,483,518 2,321,916
Net assets BEEE 2,526,753 3,331,658
EQUITY B
Equity attributable to owners of the R ATFIEEELES
parent
Issued capital BEITIRA 37 551,959 551,959
Reserves i 39 1,421,313 2,185,575
1,973,272 2,737,534
Non-controlling interests IR AR 553,481 594,124
Total equity WS BE 2,526,753 3,331,658
Pan Linwu Lai Weixuan
AR BrE
Director Director
EBFE EBE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY ZRE R B EIR

AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
REIfZE TEEREZER (58) BRAA

Year ended 31 December 2016 HE—T— R NFE+_A=+—HILtFE

Share
Issued premium
capital account
BEITIRA W&t 4 (B B
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET F&T
At 1 January 2015 R-_ZE—HF—A—H 551,959 609,080
Profit for the year IR 7 - -
Other comprehensive income for the year: REHMEEE
Changes in fair value of available-for-sale AHEENREZ A TES
investments, net of tax (OB IE%) - -
Share of other comprehensive income AhEE ARz B2 E iz
of associates - -
Release of share of an associate’s other B A AR A L ERER
comprehensive income upon deemed ENthzZBEREZ
disposal of the associate Hth 2 o - -
Exchange differences related BEUBINEB R ERZE
to foreign operations - -
Total comprehensive income for the year REPEWREE - -
Transfer to reserve fund EBREFED - -
At 31 December 2015 R-_ZE—RE+-HA=+—H 551,959 609,080*
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
PEfZE TEEBREZER (§8) GRAH

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY RE R B EIR
Year ended 31 December 2016 BE T —NE+-_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BRAIMAEEEER

Available-
for-sale
Share  investment Exchange Non-
option  revaluation Reserve  fluctuation Retained controlling Total
reserve reserve fund reserve profits Total interests equity
AHHE &)
BREREE REELEFE EHEE f# Bran B JRIERER EHEE
HK3$'000 HK3$'000 HK$'000 HK$7000 HK3$'000 HK3$'000 HK3$'000 HK3$'000
T TET T TET T#&T T#&T TE7T T
(note 39)
(#1:%39)
5,193 31,546 7,882 38,384 1,539,327 2,783,371 578,390 3,361,761
- - - - 41,820 41,820 41,640 83,460
- (15,144) - - - (15,144) - (15,144)
- 17,211 - (1,183) - 16,028 - 16,028
(5,193) (22,948) - (10,100) - (38,241) - (38,241)
- - - (50,300) - (50,300) (25,906) (76,206)
(5,193) (20,881) - (61,583) 41,820 (45,837) 15,734 (30,103)
- - 10,595 - (10,595) - - -
—* 10,665* 18,477* (23,199)* 1,570,552* 2,737,534 594,124 3,331,658
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY ZRE R B EIR

AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
REIfZE TEEREZER (58) BRAA

Year ended 31 December 2016 HE—T— R NFE+_A=+—HILtFE

Share
Issued premium
capital account
ERITRAE B 1R E R
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
i FET FET
At 1 January 2016 RZZE—R"E—A—H 551,959 609,080
Loss for the year REFE = =
Other comprehensive income for the year: REEMmEEUE
Changes in fair value of available-for-sale AHHEMNREZ
investments, net of tax NEEES (NBRHEE) = =
Share of other comprehensive income DMEEE AR Eh R E R
of a joint venture - -
Exchange differences related BN EBERCELER
to foreign operations = =
Total comprehensive income for the year REPEWNGAE = -
Transfer to reserve fund EREEES = =
Disposal of a subsidiary HEME AR 41 = =
At 31 December 2016 RZZE—RE+A=+—H 551,959 609,080*
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$1,421,313,000 (2015: HK$2,185,575,000) in the consolidated
statement of financial position.
* ZERBEBRESUBRARPOEEFEE,421,313,0008 7T (ZF—HF : 2,185,575,00087T) °
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited

REIMZE TEERER (F8) BRLF

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY RE R B EIR

Attributable to owners of the parent

Year ended 31 December 2016 &,

E2-F—

RETZA=+—HILFE

BARMEERLESR
Available-
for-sale
investment Exchange Non-
revaluation Reserve fluctuation Retained controlling Total
reserve fund reserve profits Total interests equity
S
REEMRE #EE ELRDRE BEaF &t FERER EnAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FAET FET FET
(note 39)
(H#7£39)
10,665 18,477 (23,199) 1,570,552 2,737,534 594,124 3,331,658
- - - (685,842) (685,842) (23,089) (708,931)
14,721 - - - 14,721 - 14,721
- - (8,905) - (8,905) - (8,905)
- - (84,236) - (84,236) (42,132) (126,368)
14,721 - (93,141) (685,842) (764,262) (65,221) (829,483)
- 121 - (121) - - -
- (93) - 93 - 24,578 24,578
25,386* 18,505* (116,340)* 884,682* 1,973,272 553,481 2,526,753
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
REIfZE TEEREZER (58) BRAA

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS &8 HERER
Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —F— R NF+_HA=1+—HBItFE

2016 2015
—-A~E —hF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
o FET FAET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES ReZBReRE
Profit/(loss) before tax: BRERTER(B8) -
From continuing operations REBEREER (742,978) 205,573
From a discontinued operation REBRILBREER 11 (5,075) (14,259)
Adjustments for: HE
Finance costs ﬁﬁ%ﬁ;ﬁi 1,265 50,353
Share of profits and losses of a joint SEEERF REE DT
venture and associates 2T R EE 218,382 68,615
Bank interest income RITRLEMA (2,176) (11,907)
Interest income on a convertible bond AR ES 2 F 2 A 5 (1,036) (518)
Interest income on loans to associates B R AR E B
ZMEBA 5 (577) (1,229)
Interest income on loans to related companies A A BIRENER
ZFEHA 5 (1,076) (1,994)
Net gain on deemed disposal of associates BEALEHENRIFMNE 18 (3,386) (433,380)
Depreciation nE 13 2,487 3,969
Amortisation of customer relationship REMEEE 16 95 190
Recognition of prepaid land lease payments BREM T HAER 15 13 73
Provision for impairment of a loan B D AR B & K
to a related company ZRERE 6 12,608 -
Provision for impairment of trade and W E FEFREE
bills receivables 2 AEEE = 6,871
Provision for impairment/(recovery) of prepayments T8/ 5718 [ E 4t fE Y BE 3%
and other receivables ZRERE /(YE) 4,345 (6,152)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of property, HEWE  BEMRBEE
plant and equipment ZER /(7)) 56 (222) 105
Provision of impairment of items of property, M - BEMREEE
plant and equipment ZREEE = 6,924
Fair value losses/(gains) on investment properties & ME 7 A FEEE
(FIE) 56 34,047 (757)
Reversal of impairment of loans to associates A E RN BIRENER
2R ERE 6 - (11,677)
Impairment of an investment in a joint venture BERRIZRAEZRE 6 7,745 -
Fair value loss on an equity investment at BATEGABRZZBA
fair value through profit or loss REZRFEES 198,094 1,204
Gain on derecognition of available-for-sale BIEER AL ENRE 20(a),
investments ZFIE (b) = (224)
Fair value loss/(gain) of available-for-sale AHREENKEZRATE
investments (transfer from equity B8,/ (FIE) (RERLE 20(a),
on derecognition) HREREREA) (b),(c) 490 (19,091)
Impairment of an available-for-sale investment A ENIRE ZRE 20(d) 134,107 311,137
Fair value loss/(gain) on derivative financial THEEMIAZAYE
instruments, net EE/(FH) F8 21 108,558 (28,146)
(34,290) 125,680
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
A 22 TR PR IE AR

(F#&) BRAA

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS &8 HERE R
Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —F— R NF+_HA=1+—HBItFE

2016 2015
—AE —h%F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
oS FET FET
Decrease/(increase) in properties under development #EHWERIFIEHEZD
and completed properties held for sale SERIER L/ (3Em) (172,696) 1,594,911
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERD /() 502 (1,797)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and bills receivables EWEZFEZRERRL /
() 83,708 (164,791)
Decrease in prepayments, deposits and FERRE - ke kA EIGR
other receivables R 12,108 84,455
Decrease/(increase) in amounts due B R R B R R FIERD
from fellow subsidiaries (3%1hn) 34,671 (49,194)
Decrease/(increase) in an amount due from a NI 22§
non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary BRA /() 323 (323)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and bills payables ERESETRRZEEN,/
CRi) (31,988) 84,127
Increase/(decrease) in other payables and accruals — E {7008 o JE &1 & R 1%
mn/CRd) 6,696 (21,514)
Increase/(decrease) in customer deposits ZRReEN /i) 689,909 (1,454,289)
Cash generated from operations BEELXVRSE 588,943 197,265
Overseas tax paid BAEHNIIR (41,544) (40,756)
Net cash flows from operating activities RETHEECRENETE 547,399 156,509
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETDELEZRERE
Purchases of items of property, BAME  BEANRERE
plant and equipment 13 (96) (1,926)
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, HEDE  BEMZEBEEM
plant and equipment BrE 746 -
Proceeds from disposal of HEMHNENRERERE
available-for-sale investments 1,800 3,090
Additional investment in an associate BENRZEIMNTE - (4,500)
Repayment of a loan from an associate HENRIBRER - 1,078
Repayment of loans to related companies B AREEER 22 19,656
Advance of a loan to a related company REBARREER - (11,976)
Disposal of a subsidiary HEMBA 41 3,716
Bank interest received BUERTTHIE 2,072 14,836
Interest received on a convertible bond Bl ES 2 FE 1,036 518
Interest received on loans to associates BB DRI SR B 427 975
Interest received on other receivables B b U AR 3K B = 2,528
Interest received on loans to related companies BRBEB L RERA S 790 4,445
Decrease/(increase) in pledged time deposits EEBTEETRD,/(3Em) (2,815) 4
Decrease in a time deposit with original maturity ~ EUSE R HEBB=HEA 2
of more than three months when acquired TEFEZRD - 155,588
Net cash flows from investing activities RERHEACRERETE 7,698 184,316
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
REIfZE TEEREZER (58) BRAA

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 4R &8 &

Year ended 31 December 2016 HE—T— R NFE+_A=1+—HILtFE

B R

2016 2015
ZE-RE —T-1F

Note HK$°000 HK$'000

o FET FET
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES RETHZRERE
New bank loans FRITER 230,134 37,964
Repayment of bank loans BERITER = (675,148)
New loans from an intermediate holding company % B iR A R ST E = - 509,581
Repayment of loans from fellow subsidiaries EBEXRBRZNBRANER (495,008) (443,090)
Increase in amounts due to non-controlling FERBRE 2 B 2 SRR AR SR 3K

shareholders of subsidiaries TEE 28,817 16,111
Increase/(decrease) in an amount due to an & {5 Fh 4R B A B SNBSS A0

intermediate holding company CR) (15,189) 14,164
Increase in amounts due to fellow subsidiaries I E G NG bl 713 360
Interest paid BFE (162,359) (392,434)
Net cash flows used in financing activities METHAZESREFH8 (412,892) (932,492)
NET INCREASE/ADECREASE) IN CASH AND ReRBELEEEM(HD)

CASH EQUIVALENTS R 142,205 (591,667)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year FzReRkBAeEE 473,330 1,093,361
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net EXEETEFE (9,610) (28,364)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ATEND OF YEAR SR HERBL%E 605,925 473,330
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH RERRAESERBZINM

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances HeERBTER 29 307,215 461,354
Non-pledged time deposits with original maturity of ESEREIBETE=EE 2

less than three months when acquired EEA TR 29 298,710 11,976

605,925 473,330
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
PEfZE TEEBREZER (§8) GRAH

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mi &

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited is a limited
liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The

registered office of the Company is located at Canon’s
Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton, HM 12, Bermuda.

During the year, the Group was mainly involved in the

following activities:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

the property development and investment
business;

the trading business; and
the knitting and textile business*.
The Group disposed of the knitting and textile business

during the year. Details of the disposal are included in note

41 to the financial statements.

In the opinion of the directors, the ultimate holding

company of the Company is Aviation Industry

Corporation of China, which is incorporated in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

1.

31 December 2016 —E—"XF+-_A=+—H

RAIREEER

AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
PRIz TRERRER (B8) BRAF
HRERBREIMEAIZBRAA -
NAaElz s M EE ACanon's Court,
22 Victoria Street, Hamilton, HM 12,
Bermuda °

FA - AREEERFUATES
(i) VIRB R MIE X

iy EBIEK K
(i) BHER AR TS -

* NEBRERHE BN E
%o BREEFBENUBEERE
BosEar o

EERR/ARRRKERAB BT EM
ZTXEERNF ZRRARHPEARK
ME ([ B ) FEfMASL
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
REIfZE TEEREZER (58) BRAA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mt &
31 December 2016 —ZE— R F+_-_A=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.
(continued)

RARKEER (&)

FEMERARNER
AR EEZMBRRZFBELT

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

76

follows:
Place of Issued Percentage
incorporation/ ordinary/ of equity
registration registered  attributable to Principal
Name and business share capital the Company activities
ML, BRITEER/ ERFES
a8 EREYEESE dfRE  RAEZEESL TEXH
Direct  Indirect
H# &
CATIC Helicopter Development PRC/Mainland China HK$42,000,000 - 100  Investment holding
(Shenzhen) Limited Bl E A 42,000,0007%7C RAZR
("CATIC Helicopter S2")*
RREEARENRS (RY) BRA
al (T E R
Billirich Investment Limited* British Virgin Islands/ Us$1,000 100 - Investment holding
Hong Kong 1,000% 7T REZKR
EEREAEE /R
Ease Triumph International Limited ~ Hong Kong/Hong Kong ~ HK$250,000,002 100 - Investment holding
hEERBRAR B/ BE 250,000,002/ 7T REER
EEMEBXBRAA PRC/Mainland China US$62,530,000 - 99  Property developer of
([EEMmE]) FE/ RER 62,530,000 7 residential and
commercial
projects
EERBRERNY
E 3095
KNEMEEZER LA PRC/Mainland China US$96,000,000 - 52.08  Property developer
([KEm=E]) HE /B 96,000,000 7% of residential and
commercial projects
FERHEEENY
FRR
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
PEfZE TEEBREZER (§8) GRAH

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mi &
31 December 2016 —E—~F+-_A=+—H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. 2RAREEER (&)
(continued)

FEMBRRANER (&)
ARREEZMBRBZFHBLT « (&)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

follows: (continued)

Place of Issued Percentage
incorporation/ ordinary/ of equity
registration registered  attributable to Principal
Name and business share capital the Company activities
ML, BRITZER AP EER
£ AR E X HAfRA  REAEZEDL TEXRH
Direct Indirect
Ef &
CATIC General Aviation British Virgin Islands/ Uss$2 100 - Investment holding
Holdings Limited* Hong Kong 2ETT REER
ERELHE /BB
Wahman Investment Limited* British Virgin Islands/ Us$1 100 - Investment holding
Hong Kong (E" REER
RERUHE /BE
Smartcon Investment Limited? British Virgin Islands/ US$1 100 - Investment holding
Hong Kong ESH REER
ERELHE /BB
Sanba Investment Limited* British Virgin Islands/ Us$1 100 - Investment holding
Hong Kong (E REEK
RREAHE /BE
Welly Investment Limited* British Virgin Islands/ us$1 100 - Investment holding
Hong Kong Ev REZR
RERUHE /B
Sumber Investment Limited* British Virgin Islands/ Us$1 100 - Investment holding
Hong Kong ESH REER
ERALHE /BE
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
REIfZE TEEREZER (58) BRAA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mt &
31 December 2016 —ZE— R F+_-_A=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. 2ATREEER (&)

(continued)
Information about subsidiaries (continued) ERMBATINER (£)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as RAABFEMBARZFHBNT : (&)

follows: (continued)

Place of Issued Percentage
incorporation/ ordinary/ of equity
registration registered  attributable to Principal
Name and business share capital the Company activities
E e BRITEER AP EER
% AR &R ks REAERASL TEXRH
Direct  Indirect
Ef A&
Kingspot Investment Limited* British Virgin Islands/ HK$1 100 - Investment holding
Hong Kong 1757 REER
ERELHE /BB
Sino-Aviation Investments Limited British Virgin Islands/ Us$1 100 - Investment holding
("Sino-Aviation Investments”) Hong Kong Ep BEER
EEREUEE/BF
Yipon Investment Limited? British Virgin Islands/ US$1 100 - Investment holding
Hong Kong E REER
RERUHE /B
CATIC Helicopter (H.K.) Limited* British Virgin Islands/ us$2 100 - Investment holding\
Hong Kong 2ETL BEER
ERALHE /BE
* CATIC Helicopter SZ is registered as a wholly-foreign-owned * R E A ORYIIR B R BDE AR A
enterprise under PRC law. INEBERE -
o S EM#E and KEME are registered as sino-foreign o B M BE ROAE AR 5 o BUA B
co-operative joint ventures under PRC law. RPIMEEDRE -
# None of the statutory financial statements of these # PR U S M B R R AR M S K19 3E
subsidiaries was audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or BT KBRS LR KEHRBEEMKER
another member firm of the Ernst & Young global network. AEZ
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2.1

AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited

TEMZETERREZER (F8) ARLA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mi &

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

The above tables list the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally
affected the results for the year or formed a substantial
portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

During the year, the Group disposed of its 51% equity
interest in AT RGEFHEBRKXER QR (“Zhejiang
Dongyang Jinniu”). Further details of the above disposal
are included in note 41 to the financial statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs"”) and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA™), accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except
for investment properties, an equity investment at fair
value through profit or loss, certain available-for-sale
investments, and derivative financial instruments which
have been measured at fair value. These financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

1.

2.1

31 December 2016 —E—"XF+-_A=+—H

ERMBARNESR (&)
ERINHEEER /U AEELFEE
BEEAFENEAKREEEREZE
RBOZARBZHBAR - EERE
W HEMH B AR ZEMN  BEREE
BRTTE -

FR AEELEEEBS1 % B A KR
ZANTRGEFHEBRXERAR (I
IRBeF)) BRLMHEZE—F
EREE S pv e e

mRERE

APMBHERIBRBEEEGHAE ([&F
BEFMAE]) Bh 2B BEWHMmE
ZQ ([FRMBHRESEL]) (HPEE
2HBRBWHRE LN - FEETER
(IEAEFER]) MRE) BEER
RAZ G5 RRIAREE QR &5
BRERE - AMBHRRRBEL KA
AR EREWME  BAFER AR
BmZBAKRE FETAHEENKRE -
ARITHE S BT AR (AR FER
B) - AMBHmRIAETEY - BFEE
EYMERAAERE I TAUH (FR3F
HBFHA) °
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
REIfZE TEEREZER (58) BRAA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mt &

31 December 2016 —E— X F+_-_A=+—H

2.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2016. A subsidiary is an entity
(including a structured entity), directly or indirectly,
controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over
the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group
the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than
a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee,
the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether it has power over an investee,
including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(0) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting
rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until
the date that such control ceases.

Annual Report 2016 —Z — /XFEH
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2.1

AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited

TEMZETERREZER (F8) ARLA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mi &

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners
of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary, (i) the carrying amount of
any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises
(i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii)
the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s
share of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or
retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as
would be required if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities.

2.1

31 December 2016 —E—"XF+-_A=+—H

mBLEE (F)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mt &
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2.2

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised
HKFRSs for the first time for the current year’s financial

statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment Entities: Applying
HKFRS 12 and the Consolidation Exception
HKAS 28 (2011)

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions

of Interests in Joint Operations

HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of Acceptable
and HKAS 38 Methods of Depreciation

and Amortisation

Amendments to HKAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer Plants
and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate
(2011) Financial Statements

Annual Improvements Amendments to a number
2012-2014 Cycle of HKFRSs

Other than as explained below regarding the impact
of amendments to HKAS 1 and certain amendments
included in the Annual Improvements 2012-2014 Cycle,
the adoption of the above new and revised standards
has had no significant financial effect on these financial
statements.
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
PEfZE TEEBREZER (§8) GRAH

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mi &

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(a)

Amendments to HKAS 1 include narrow-focus
improvements in respect of the presentation
and disclosure in financial statements. The

amendments clarify:

(i) the materiality requirements in HKAS 1;

(ii) that specific line items in the statement
of profit or loss and the statement of
financial position may be disaggregated,

(iii) that entities have flexibility as to the order
in which they present the notes to financial
statements; and

(iv) that the share of other comprehensive
income of associates and joint ventures
accounted for using the equity method
must be presented in aggregate as a single
line item, and classified between those
items that will or will not be subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss.

Furthermore, the amendments clarify the
requirements that apply when additional subtotals
are presented in the statement of financial
position and the statement of profit or loss. The
amendments have had no significant impact on
the Group’s financial statements.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 2.2 SHBEREBEECEH (&)

DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b) Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle
issued in October 2014 sets out amendments to
a number of HKFRSs. Details of the amendments
are as follows:

o HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale
and Discontinued Operations: Clarifies
that changes to a plan of sale or a plan
of distribution to owners should not be
considered to be a new plan of disposal,
rather it is a continuation of the original
plan. Accordingly, there is no change in
the application of the requirements in
HKFRS 5. The amendments also clarify
that changing the disposal method does
not change the date of classification of
the non-current assets or disposal group
held for sale. The amendments are to be
applied prospectively. The amendments
have had no impact on the Group as the
Group did not have any change in the plan
of sale or disposal method in respect of
the disposal group held for sale during the
year.
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
PEfZE TEEBREZER (§8) GRAH

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} 78 38 3% ff 5%

31 December 2016 —E—"XF+-_A=+—H

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG 23 EEMERERERZEBHBHR

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS HEA|

The Group has not applied the following new and AEBWERNRTBHREABAUATE

revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet BHBEARERZ NG MASIEFTE B

effective, in these financial statements. SR -

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of BRI EREEl ROERZEIFERHE"
Share-based Payment Transactions® E1E0ET

Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments BRIBREE RREE R RS ER 457
with HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts? FARHET FESOE—EFEETE

FEEE95 2B TA
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments? BRABRSEAER FRIA
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between BEURREENE 0N HEEEARLL A0S0
and HKAS 28 (2011) an Investor and its Associate or Joint REAGHENESH CEMEEMER FE

Venture* (Z3——F) Wk

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers? BAUBREENESE  BAAMME:

Amendments to HKFRS 15 Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue from FRNBREE BEERIBHEEAEISE
Contracts with Customers? 21558 BEA Nz

HKFRS 16 Leases® BRUBASENZ 6 HEC

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative' EROnENETRNET  KEPE

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for BASHENERNE]  HALHEERTERPEE

Unrealised Losses'

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January ! RZB—t+HF—-A—RA BRI ZF
2017 EHAR AR

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2 RZB-NF-A—-R BRI ZF
2018 ER e

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 3 RZB-NF-A—RB2BRIAZF
2019 EHAR AR

4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available 4 1) AR 788 E 58 ) A ZR A B I B] AR AR

for adoption
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mt &

31 December 2016 —E— X F+_-_A=+—H

2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are
expected to be applicable to the Group is as follows:

The HKICPA issued amendments to HKFRS 2 in August
2016 that address three main areas: the effects of
vesting conditions on the measurement of a cash-settled
share-based payment transaction; the classification of
a share-based payment transaction with net settlement
features for withholding a certain amount in order
to meet the employee’s tax obligation associated
with the share-based payment; and accounting
where a modification to the terms and conditions
of a share-based payment transaction changes its
classification from cash-settled to equity-settled. The
amendments clarify that the approach used to account
for vesting conditions when measuring equity-settled
share-based payments also applies to cash-settled
share-based payments. The amendments introduce an
exception so that a share-based payment transaction
with net share settlement features for withholding a
certain amount in order to meet the employee’s tax
obligation is classified in its entirety as an equity-settled
share-based payment transaction when certain
conditions are met. Furthermore, the amendments
clarify that if the terms and conditions of a cash-settled
share-based payment transaction are modified, with
the result that it becomes an equity-settled share-based
payment transaction, the transaction is accounted
for as an equity-settled transaction from the date of
the modification. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments from 1 January 2018. The amendments
are not expected to have any significant impact on the
Group's financial statements.
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited

TEMZETERREZER (F8) ARLA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mi &

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

In September 2014, the HKICPA issued the final
version of HKFRS 9, bringing together all phases of the
financial instruments project to replace HKAS 39 and all
previous versions of HKFRS 9. The standard introduces
new requirements for classification and measurement,
impairment and hedge accounting. The Group expects
to adopt HKFRS 9 from 1 January 2018. The Group is
currently assessing the impact of the standard.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address
an inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS
10 and in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale
or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture. The amendments require
a full recognition of a gain or loss when the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For
a transaction involving assets that do not constitute a
business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction
is recognised in the investor's profit or loss only to
the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in that
associate or joint venture. The amendments are to be
applied prospectively. The previous mandatory effective
date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011)
was removed by the HKICPA in January 2016 and a
new mandatory effective date will be determined after
the completion of a broader review of accounting for
associates and joint ventures. However, the amendments
are available for application now.

2.3
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31 December 2016 —E— X F+_-_A=+—H

2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

HKFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model to account
for revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under
HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to
be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services
to a customer. The principles in HKFRS 15 provide a
more structured approach for measuring and recognising
revenue. The standard also introduces extensive
qualitative and quantitative disclosure requirements,
including disaggregation of total revenue, information
about performance obligations, changes in contract asset
and liability account balances between periods and key
judgements and estimates. The standard will supersede
all current revenue recognition requirements under
HKFRSs. In June 2016, the HKICPA issued amendments
to HKFRS 15 to address the implementation issues
on identifying performance obligations, application
guidance on principal versus agent and licences of
intellectual property, and transition. The amendments
are also intended to help ensure a more consistent
application when entities adopt HKFRS 15 and decrease
the cost and complexity of applying the standard. The
Group expects to adopt HKFRS 15 on 1 January 2018
and is currently assessing the impact of HKFRS 15 upon
adoption.
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited

TEMZETERREZER (F8) ARLA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mi &

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int
4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a
Lease, HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating Leases — Incentives and
HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions
Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets
out the principles for the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of leases and requires
lessees to recognise assets and liabilities for most leases.
The standard includes two recognition exemptions for
lessees — leases of low-value assets and short-term
leases. At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee
will recognise a liability to make lease payments (i.e.,
the lease liability) and an asset representing the right to
use the underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the
right-of-use asset). The right-of-use asset is subsequently
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses unless the right-of-use asset meets the
definition of investment property in HKAS 40. The lease
liability is subsequently increased to reflect the interest
on the lease liability and reduced for the lease payments.
Lessees will be required to separately recognise
the interest expense on the lease liability and the
depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset. Lessees
will also be required to remeasure the lease liability upon
the occurrence of certain events, such as change in the
lease term and change in future lease payments resulting
from a change in an index or rate used to determine
those payments. Lessees will generally recognise the
amount of the remeasurement of the lease liability as an
adjustment to the right-of-use asset. Lessor accounting
under HKFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from the
accounting under HKAS 17. Lessors will continue to
classify all leases using the same classification principle
as in HKAS 17 and distinguish between operating leases
and finance leases. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS
16 on 1 January 2019 and is currently assessing the
impact of HKFRS 16 upon adoption.

2.3
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mt &

31 December 2016 —E— X F+_-_A=+—H

2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

Amendments to HKAS 7 require an entity to provide
disclosures that enable users of financial statements
to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities, including both changes arising from cash
flows and non-cash changes. The amendments will
result in additional disclosure to be provided in the
financial statements. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments from 1 January 2017.

Amendments to HKAS 12 were issued with the purpose
of addressing the recognition of deferred tax assets for
unrealised losses related to debt instruments measured
at fair value, although they also have a broader
application for other situations. The amendments clarify
that an entity, when assessing whether taxable profits
will be available against which it can utilise a deductible
temporary difference, needs to consider whether tax law
restricts the sources of taxable profits against which it
may make deductions on the reversal of that deductible
temporary difference. Furthermore, the amendments
provide guidance on how an entity should determine
future taxable profits and explain the circumstances in
which taxable profit may include the recovery of some
assets for more than their carrying amount. The Group
expects to adopt the amendments from 1 January 2017.
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited

TEMZETERREZER (F8) ARLA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mi &

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Investments in associates and a joint venture

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long
term interest of generally not less than 20% of the
equity voting rights and over which it is in a position to
exercise significant influence. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint
control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of
an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about
the relevant activities require the unanimous consent of
the parties sharing control.

The Group's investments in associates and a joint
venture are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at the Group’s share of net assets
under the equity method of accounting, less any
impairment losses. Adjustments are made to bring into
line any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist.
The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and
other comprehensive income of associates and the joint
venture is included in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and consolidated other comprehensive
income, respectively. In addition, when there has been a
change recognised directly in the equity of the associate
or joint venture, the Group recognises its share of any
changes, when applicable, in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses
resulting from transactions between the Group and its
associates or joint venture are eliminated to the extent
of the Group's investments in the associates or joint
venture, except where unrealised losses provide evidence
of an impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill
arising from the acquisition of associates or the joint
venture is included as part of the Group’s investments in
associates or the joint venture.
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2.4

Annual Report 2016 ==

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments in associates and a joint venture
(continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest
is not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues
to be accounted for under the equity method. In all
other cases, upon loss of significant influence over the
associate or joint control over the joint venture, the
Group measures and recognises any retained investment
at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying
amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of
significant influence or joint control and the fair value of
the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is

recognised in profit or loss.

Business combinations and goodwiill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is
the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination,
the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components of
non-controlling interests are measured at fair value.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
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A 22 TR PR IE AR

(F#&) BRAA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mi &

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill
(continued)

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of
the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset
or liability is measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any
fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interests
in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration
and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mt &

31 December 2016 —E— X F+_-_A=+—H

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill
(continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs its
annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units,
or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the
Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) to which the goodwill relates.
Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed
in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when determining
the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in
these circumstances is measured based on the relative
value of the operation disposed of and the portion of
the cash-generating unit retained.
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited

TEMZETERREZER (F8) ARLA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mi &

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties, derivative
financial instruments and certain equity investments
at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair
value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.
The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either in the principal market for the
asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market,
in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability. The principal or the most advantageous market
must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an
asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions
that market participants would use when pricing the
asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in
their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the
use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use
of unobservable inputs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1T - based on quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which

the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement is
observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited

TEMZETERREZER (F8) ARLA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mi &

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required
(other than inventories, financial assets and investment
properties), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair
value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no longer
exist or may have decreased. If such an indication exists,
the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in
the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount
of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net
of any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal
of such an impairment loss is credited to the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it arises.

2.4

31 December 2016 —E—"XF+-_A=+—H

EXRSTERBE (&)

FUBEEZRE

BELBRRETR AR FFREE
(78 MBEERKEMERIN E1T
BERRE  BAMGTZEEZARE
2R BEZAWEZEBAZEERR
TELETZEREBERATFERHEE
RAME 2B EmERE - WAERBEE
BE MHZEELTELERAREE L
BUREMEEXEEMARNZRE R
AIE Rl - EULIER T - B AT m B
MR EEMB R SELELERE °

BEBEEREEREEBRE AT RED
BERHER - AXMERBER - E5
ARFBERETIAAIRRERHISZHE
WIS EEMNEERS A R R EOBRHR
AT IR EZTIRERIE - BEBRIZZR
BEEEZNEMB A DB AEL
HIRBmRT -

BERSHPRHAELFE - UEERE
BEDRBER L CHER ZBERER
ETBEAEIEMED - B ERNZE
g ARG AIREEE ZEE
(BRI 2 AR 2 RERBRER
EEEEAROIZRE B HHIRE S
O #% - HEEBHR 2 BREENMSBBERE
BEFEUERZEERABREBRZ
FREE < 8058 BRI e #H) -
BERR BN EL PR ABRER -

Annual Report 2016 =& — N FF 1R

97



98

AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
REIfZE TEEREZER (58) BRAA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mt &
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that

person’s family and that person

(i)

(i)

(iii)

or

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group;
or

is @ member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of
the Group;

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following

conditions applies:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

the entity and the Group are members of
the same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or of a parent,
subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other
entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures
of the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the
Group;
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
PEfZE TEEBREZER (§8) GRAH

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mi &

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Related parties (continued)

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies: (continued)

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a);

(vii)  a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii)  the entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the parent of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment
are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific
useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mt &
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2.4

Annual Report 2016 ==

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are
as follows:

Over the lease terms
10% — 20%
20% - 33%
20% — 25%

Land and buildings

Plant and machinery

Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Motor vehicles

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of that
item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts
and each part is depreciated separately. Residual values,
useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial
year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including
any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
on disposal or retirement recognised in the statement
of profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
A 22 TR PR IE AR

(F#&) BRAA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mi &

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold interest under an operating
lease for a property which would otherwise meet the
definition of an investment property) held to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for
use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary
course of business. Such properties are measured initially
at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at fair
value, which reflects market conditions at the end of the
reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the statement of
profit or loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to
owner-occupied properties or inventories, the deemed
cost of a property for subsequent accounting is its fair
value at the date of change in use. For a transfer from
inventories to investment properties, any difference
between the fair value of the property at that date
and its previous carrying amount is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.
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31 December 2016 —E— X F+_-_A=+—H

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at cost less any
impairment losses. Cost of properties under development
comprises cost of acquisition, land cost, construction
costs, development costs, capitalised borrowing costs
and other direct costs attributable to the development.
The land cost is recognised on the straight-line basis over
the lease term. Impairment is assessed by the directors
based on prevailing market prices, on an individual
property basis.

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined by
apportionment of total development cost, including
capitalised borrowing cost, attributable to the unsold
units. Net realisable value is determined on the basis of
anticipated sales proceeds, or estimated by management
based on the prevailing market conditions, less all
estimated costs to completion and selling expenses, on
an individual property basis.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value at
the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible
assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible
asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited

TEMZETERREZER (F8) ARLA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mi &

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(continued)

Customer relationship

Customer relationship is stated at cost less any
impairment losses and is amortised on the straight-line
basis over its estimated useful life of 6 years.

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and
risks of ownership of assets to the Group, other than
legal title, are accounted for as finance leases. At the
inception of a finance lease, the cost of the leased asset
is capitalised at the present value of the minimum lease
payments and recorded together with the obligation,
excluding the interest element, to reflect the purchase
and financing. Assets held under capitalised finance
leases, including prepaid land lease payments under
finance leases, are included in property, plant and
equipment, and depreciated over the shorter of the
lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets.
The finance costs of such leases are charged to the
statement of profit or loss so as to provide a constant
periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. When the Group is
the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases net of
any incentives received from the lessor are charged to
the statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms.
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2.4

Annual Report 2016 ==

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on
the straight-line basis over the lease terms. When the
lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the
land and buildings elements, the entire lease payments
are included in the cost of the land and buildings as a
finance lease in property, plant and equipment.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition,
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and receivables, and available-for-sale financial
investments, as appropriate. When financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at fair value plus
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition
of the financial assets, except in the case of financial
assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends
on their classification as follows:
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2.4

AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
A 22 TR PR IE AR

(F#&) BRAA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mi &

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
include the financial assets held for trading and financial
assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial assets are classified as
held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of
sale in the near term. Derivatives, including separated
embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments as defined by HKAS 39.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair
value with net changes in fair value recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. These net fair value changes
do not include any dividends or interest earned on these
financial assets, which are recognised in accordance with
the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.
Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as
at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the
date of initial recognition and only if the criteria in HKAS
39 are satisfied.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted
for as separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if
their economic characteristics and risks are not closely
related to those of the host contracts and the host
contracts are not held for trading or designated as
at fair value through profit or loss. These embedded
derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change
in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies
the cash flows that would otherwise be required or a
reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value
through profit or loss category.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mt &

31 December 2016 —E— X F+_-_A=+—H

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. After initial measurement,
such assets are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated
by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest
rate amortisation is included in other income and gains
in the statement of profit or loss. The loss arising from
impairment is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss in other operating expenses for loans and
receivables.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are
non-derivative financial assets in listed and unlisted
equity investments and debt securities and a financial
asset under Project EC120 as set out in notes 20 and
19, respectively, to the financial statements. Equity
investments classified as available for sale are those
which are neither classified as held for trading nor
designated as at fair value through profit or loss. Debt
securities in this category are those which are intended
to be held for an indefinite period of time and which
may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or in
response to changes in market conditions.
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2.4

AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
PEfZE TEEBREZER (§8) GRAH

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mi &

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
investments are subsequently measured at fair value,
with unrealised gains or losses recognised as other
comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve until the investment is
derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or
loss is recognised in the statement of profit or loss,
or until the investment is determined to be impaired,
when the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from
the available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve
to the statement of profit or loss in other operating
expenses. Interest and dividends earned whilst holding
the available-for-sale financial investments are reported
as interest income and dividend income, respectively
and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss as
other income in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments
cannot be reliably measured because (a) the variability
in the range of reasonable fair value estimates is
significant for that investment or (b) the probabilities
of the various estimates within the range cannot be
reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair value,
such investments are stated at cost less any impairment
losses.
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31 December 2016 —E— X F+_-_A=+—H

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention
to sell its available-for-sale financial assets in the near
term are still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances,
the Group is unable to trade these financial assets due
to inactive markets, the Group may elect to reclassify
these financial assets if management has the ability and
intention to hold the assets for the foreseeable future or
until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the
available-for-sale category, the fair value carrying
amount at the date of reclassification becomes its new
amortised cost and any previous gain or loss on that
asset that has been recognised in equity is amortised to
profit or loss over the remaining life of the investment
using the effective interest rate. Any difference between
the new amortised cost and the maturity amount is also
amortised over the remaining life of the asset using
the effective interest rate. If the asset is subsequently
determined to be impaired, then the amount recorded in
equity is reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4

AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
PEfZE TEEBREZER (§8) GRAH

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mi &

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the

Group’s consolidated statement of financial position)

when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive

cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has

transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the
asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues
to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis
that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group
has retained.
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REIfZE TEEREZER (58) BRAA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mt &

31 December 2016 —E— X F+_-_A=+—H

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and
the maximum amount of consideration that the Group
could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment
exists if one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset have an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence
of impairment may include indications that a debtor or
a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation and observable data
indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears
or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
A 22 TR PR IE AR

(F#&) BRAA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mi &

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group
first assesses whether impairment exists individually
for financial assets that are individually significant, or
collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes
the asset in a group of financial assets with similar
credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them
for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed
for impairment and for which an impairment loss is,
or continues to be, recognised are not included in a

collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not yet
been incurred). The present value of the estimated
future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest

rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the
use of an allowance account and the loss is recognised
in the statement of profit or loss. Interest income
continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount
using the rate of interest used to discount the future
cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment
loss. Loans and receivables together with any associated
allowance are written off when there is no realistic
prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been

realised or has been transferred to the Group.
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
REIfZE TEEREZER (58) BRAA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mt &

31 December 2016 —E— X F+_-_A=+—H

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is increased
or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a
write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to
other operating expenses in the statement of profit or
loss.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that an investment or a group
of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair
value, less any impairment loss previously recognised in
the statement of profit or loss, is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited

TEMZETERREZER (F8) ARLA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mi &

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

In the case of equity investments classified as available
for sale, objective evidence would include a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment
below its cost. “Significant” is evaluated against the
original cost of the investment and “prolonged” against
the period in which the fair value has been below its
original cost. Where there is evidence of impairment, the
cumulative loss — measured as the difference between
the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that investment previously recognised
in the statement of profit or loss — is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in the statement
of profit or loss. Impairment losses on equity instruments
classified as available for sale are not reversed through
the statement of profit or loss. Increases in their fair
value after impairment are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income.

The determination of what is “significant” or
“prolonged” requires judgement. In making this
judgement, the Group evaluates, among other factors,
the duration or extent to which the fair value of an
investment is less than its cost.
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REIfZE TEEREZER (58) BRAA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mt &

31 December 2016 —E— X F+_-_A=+—H

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

In the case of debt instruments classified as available for
sale, impairment is assessed based on the same criteria
as financial assets carried at amortised cost. However,
the amount recorded for impairment is the cumulative
loss measured as the difference between the amortised
cost and the current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that investment previously recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. Future interest income
continues to be accrued based on the reduced carrying
amount of the asset using the rate of interest used
to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss. The interest income is
recorded as part of other income. Impairment losses on
debt instruments are reversed through the statement of
profit or loss if the subsequent increase in fair value of
the instruments can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in
the statement of profit or loss.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, or
as loans and borrowings, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.
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2.4

AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited

TEMZETERREZER (F8) ARLA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mi &

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

The Group’'s financial liabilities include amounts due
to fellow subsidiaries and non-controlling shareholders
of subsidiaries, loans from fellow subsidiaries and an
intermediate holding company, trade and bills payables,
other payables and accruals and interest-bearing bank
borrowings.

Subsequent measurement of loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest
rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as
a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition
of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.
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2.4

Annual Report 2016 ==

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the weighted
average basis and, in the case of work in progress
and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less
any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and

disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral

part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
financial position, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits, and
assets similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted
as to use.
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2.4

AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited

TEMZETERREZER (F8) ARLA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mi &

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past
event and it is probable that a future outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the
end of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising
from the passage of time is included in finance costs in
the statement of profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries
in which the Group operates.
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
REIfZE TEEREZER (58) BRAA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mt &

31 December 2016 —E— X F+_-_A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and a joint venture, when the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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2.4

AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
PEfZE TEEBREZER (§8) GRAH

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mi &

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in
a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and a joint venture, deferred tax
assets are only recognised to the extent that it
is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting
period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
REIfZE TEEREZER (58) BRAA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mt &

31 December 2016 —E— X F+_-_A=+—H

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred
taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same
taxation authority.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and all attaching conditions would be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it was recognised as income on a systemic basis
over the periods that the costs, which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed.
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited

TEMZETERREZER (F8) ARLA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mi &

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when
the revenue can be measured reliably, on the following
bases:

(a) from the sale of properties, when the significant
risks and rewards of the properties are passed to
the purchasers when (i) an irrevocable sale and
purchase contract has been entered into by both
buyer and seller; (ii) the seller has received or
retained the right to receive all the consideration
of the sale; (iii) the construction has been
completed, and its quality has been inspected and
accepted by the relevant government authorities;
(iv) the ready-for-delivery conditions under the
sale and purchase contract have been fulfilled;
and (v) the notices of property delivery have been
sent to the buyer;

(b)  from the sale of goods, when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred
to the buyer, provided that the Group maintains
neither managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership, nor effective
control over the goods sold;

(c) rental income, on a time proportion basis over
the lease terms;
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
REIfZE TEEREZER (58) BRAA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mt &

31 December 2016 —E— X F+_-_A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 EAES:HREHE ()

122

POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)

(d) interest income, on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate,
to the net carrying amount of the financial asset;

(e) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established; and

(f) from the development, manufacture and
distribution of helicopters, when the Group’s
right to receive its share of profit from Project
EC120 has been established (note 19).

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for
the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible participants who contribute to the success
of the Group’s operations. Employees (including
directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payments, whereby employees
render services as consideration for equity instruments
("equity-settled transactions”).
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The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees RZEZ-F+—AEBEEREZHEHE
for grants after 7 November 2002 is measured by BEMTRABERG 2HATDRERY
reference to the fair value at the date at which they are EH AT ERE

granted.
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
A 22 TR PR IE AR

(F#&) BRAA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mi &

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised
in employee benefit expense, together with a
corresponding increase in equity, over the period
in which the performance and/or service conditions
are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for
equity-settled transactions at the end of each reporting
period until the vesting date reflects the extent to which
the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the statement of
profit or loss for a period represents the movement in
the cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning
and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are
not taken into account when determining the grant
but the likelihood of the
conditions being met is assessed as part of the Group's

date fair value of awards,

best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. Market performance conditions
are reflected within the grant date fair value. Any
other conditions attached to an award, but without
an associated service requirement, are considered to
be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are
reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an
immediate expensing of an award unless there are also

service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because
non-market performance and/or service conditions
have not been met, no expense is recognised. Where
awards include a market or non-vesting condition,
the transactions are treated as vesting irrespective of
whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied,
provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
REIfZE TEEREZER (58) BRAA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mt &

31 December 2016 —E— X F+_-_A=+—H

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are
modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised as if
the terms had not been modified, if the original terms of
the award are met. In addition, an expense is recognised
for any modification that increases the total fair value of
the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to
the employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where non-vesting
conditions within the control of either the Group or
the employee are not met. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as
a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the
cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a
modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options, if any, is
reflected as additional share dilution in the computation
of earnings per share.

The cost of cash-settled transactions is measured initially
at fair value at the grant date taking into account the
terms and conditions upon which the instruments were
granted. The fair value is expensed over the period until
the vesting date with recognition of a corresponding
liability. The liability is measured at the end of each
reporting period up to and including the settlement
date, with changes in fair value recognised in the
Group's statement of profit or loss.
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited

TEMZETERREZER (F8) ARLA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mi &

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Other employee benefits
Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the statement of profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the
MPF scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in Mainland China are required to participate
in a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These subsidiaries are required
to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll
costs to the central pension scheme. The contributions
are charged to the statement of profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
central pension scheme.
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
REIfZE TEEREZER (58) BRAA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mt &

31 December 2016 —E— X F+_-_A=+—H

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e.,
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The
capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs
are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements
of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end
of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement
or translation of monetary items are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited

TEMZETERREZER (F8) ARLA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mi &

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transaction.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss
arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured
at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of
the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e.,
translation difference on the item whose fair value gain
or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or profit or loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries,
joint venture and associates are currencies other than
the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the reporting
period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their
statements of profit or loss are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for
the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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31 December 2016 —E— X F+_-_A=+—H

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition
are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of the overseas subsidiaries which
arise throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the
year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and
their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited

TEMZETERREZER (F8) ARLA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mi &

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgement

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
judgement, apart from those involving estimations,
which has the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements:

Classification of equity investments among
investments in subsidiaries, investments in associates
and an investment in a joint venture

In determining whether an equity investment is classified
as investments in subsidiaries, investments in associates
or an investment in a joint venture, the Group considers
a number of factors including (1) whether the Group has
the power to exercise control; (2) whether the Group
can exercise significant influence; and (3) whether
the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control
is required for the relevant activities of the investee
company.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below.

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

3.

ERETHHAB RS (&)

Estimation uncertainty (continued) AN TREY (&)
Deferred tax assets BEHEAEE

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax
losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can be
utilised. Significant management judgement is required
to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that
can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and
level of future taxable profits together with future tax
planning strategies. The carrying value of deferred tax
assets relating to recognised tax losses at 31 December
2016 was HK$38,056,000 (2015: HK$37,448,000).
Further details are included in note 36 to the financial
statements.

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

In the absence of current prices in an active market for
similar properties, the Group considers information from
a variety of sources, including:

(a) current prices in an active market for properties
of a different nature, condition or location,
adjusted to reflect those differences;

(b) recent prices of similar properties on less active
markets, with adjustments to reflect any changes
in economic conditions since the date of the
transactions that occurred at those prices; and
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mi &

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Estimation of fair value of investment properties
(continued)

(c) discounted cash flow projections based on reliable
estimates of future cash flows, supported by the
terms of any existing lease and other contracts
and (when possible) by external evidence such as
current market rents for similar properties in the
same location and condition, and using discount
rates that reflect current market assessments of
the uncertainty in the amount and timing of the
cash flows.

The aggregate carrying amount of investment properties
at 31 December 2016 was HK$315,866,000 (2015:
HK$373,425,000). Further details, including the key
assumptions used for fair value measurement and
a sensitivity analysis, are included in note 14 to the
financial statements.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than
goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of each
reporting period. They are tested for impairment when
there are indicators that the carrying amounts may not
be recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying
value of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value
less costs of disposal and its value in use. The calculation
of the fair value less costs of disposal is based on
available data from binding sales transactions in an
arm’s length transaction of similar assets or observable
market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the
asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken,
management must estimate the expected future cash
flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows.
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3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND ESTIMATES (continued)
Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of trade and bills receivables and
deposits and other receivables

The Group maintains an allowance for estimated losses
arising from the inability of the customers or borrowers
to make the required payments. The Group makes
the estimates based on the ageing of trade and bills
receivables and deposits and other receivable balances,
customers’ creditworthiness, and historical write-off
experience. If the financial condition of the customers
or borrowers was to deteriorate so that the actual
impairment loss might be higher than expected, the
Group would be required to revise the basis of making
the allowance and the future results would be affected.
The carrying amounts of trade and bills receivables and
deposits and other receivables as at 31 December 2016
were HK$89,620,000 (2015: HK$177,078,000) and
HK$15,407,000 (2015: HK$45,064,000), respectively.
Further details are included in notes 24 and 26 to the
financial statements.

Estimation of recoverable amounts of properties
under development

The Group considers information from a variety of
sources, including recent prices of similar properties in
the same location and condition, with adjustments to
reflect any changes in economic conditions since the
date of transactions that occurred at those prices.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mi &

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Estimation of total budgeted costs and costs of
completion for properties under development

Total budgeted costs for properties under development
(ii) building
costs; and (iii) any other direct costs attributable to

comprise (i) prepaid land lease payments;
the development of the properties. In estimating the
total budgeted costs for properties under development,
management makes reference to information such as (i)
current offers from contractors and suppliers; (ii) recent
offers agreed with contractors and suppliers; and (iii)
professional estimation on construction and material
costs.

Land appreciation tax

Under the Detailed Rules for the Implementation of
Provisional Regulations on Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT")
implemented upon the issuance of the Provisional
Regulations of the PRC on 27 January 1995, all gains
arising from the transfer of real estate properties
in Mainland China with effect from 1 January 1994
are subject to LAT at progressive rates ranging from
30% to 60% on the appreciation of land value, being
the proceeds from sales of properties less deductible
expenditures including amortisation of land use
rights, borrowing costs and all property development
expenditures.

3.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 3. EESIHHERMES (&)
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued) AN TREY (&)

Land appreciation tax (continued) T EER (E)

The subsidiaries of the Group engaging in the REBEMRBARRPREANENLEER
property development business in Mainland China BEBINAZMLIBET - Af - A+
are subject to LAT. However, the implementation of B KB A R0 T 6 3R B R 2 B R
LAT varies amongst various Mainland China cities and FAER - A& B3R 5T K A R B
the Group has not finalised certain of its LAT returns WRERmE T Mg EN - Bt - NE
with various tax authorities. Accordingly, significant ETIBEERAENEREFLEXR
judgement is required in determining the amount of FIE - EBEEBBREPEETIEEE
land appreciation and its related taxes. The ultimate tax FETHEN AEEEREEREENR
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course ERFERZEAE EREFTELE
of business. The Group recognises these liabilities based IR RETIASR C BBEHIRER
on management’s best estimates. When the final tax B ZEREZE/RNEAEREETEH
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts RIYI BTS2 1t i E R BB R R 2 o

that were initially recorded, such differences will impact
on the income tax and provisions of LAT in the period in
which such determination is made.

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4., REHWEH
For management purposes, the Group is organised into RABER AEBREREREE S
business units based on their products and services and HEBKEIL WAL THEBEZHR L
has two reportable operating segments as follows: B ED
(a) the property development and investment (a) MEBBRBRKREEBSIH  #F
business segment engages in the property EELEFEEBNYERE &

development of residential and commercial
projects; and

(b)  the trading business segment engages in the by BREBESH HBERMEREH
trading of raw materials and auxiliary materials. BMEZES -
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

During the year, the Group disposed of the knitting
and textile business. Accordingly, the comparative
segment information related to the knitting and textile
business is reclassified as “profit/(loss) for the year from
a discontinued operation” in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss. Details of which are set out in note 11
to the financial statements.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s
operating segments separately for the purpose of
making decisions about resources allocation and
performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on reportable segment profit/(loss),
which is a measure of adjusted profit/(loss) for the year
from continuing operations. The adjusted profit/(loss)
for the year from continuing operations is measured
consistently with the Group’s profit/(loss) for the year
from continuing operations except that certain income
and gains or losses relating to investments in a joint
venture and associates and financial instruments, as well
as head office and corporate expenses (including reversal
of impairments/impairments of loans to associates
and related companies and an investment in a joint
venture, and recovery/impairment of other receivables)
and unallocated income tax are excluded from such
measurement.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue UTAEREBREFELEER 2 W
and results from continuing operations by reportable NEELBSMIEEEBRIEL 2D -

operating segments.
Year ended 31 December 2016

BE_ZT-A"E+-A=1+—-HLFE

Property
development
and investment Trading
business business Total
NEBER
REXHK RS &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET FET
Segment revenue: S
Sales to external customers NI R P IHE 85,987 - 85,987
Gross rental income e KA ON 16,799 = 16,799
Revenue from continuing REFEREEL 2
operations Wz 102,786 - 102,786
Segment results PEHEE (47,058) - (47,058)
Reconciliation: R -
Unallocated other income ROBEMUA 5,985
Corporate and other PrEREMADEAX
unallocated expenses (38,592)
Net gain on deemed disposal BERLEBRERR 2 F
of associates b 3,386
Share of profits and losses of: DM R EE
Joint venture VS (215,369)
Associates il l/NE] (3,013)
Impairment of an available- Al HERNIRE ZRIME
for-sale investment (134,107)
Fair value loss of available- AEHENREZATE
for-sale investments i (490)
Fair value loss on derivative MESRIAZATLES
financial instruments, net BFEE (108,558)
Fair value loss on an equity BAFAERTABZ 2B
investment at fair value through &7 AFEERE
profit or loss (198,094)
Unallocated income tax expense KA BEFTISHITS (383)
Loss for the year from continuing & B 15 B K& 58 2 NE
operations 518 (736,293)
Other segment information: HipHER .
Bank interest income SRITA B UL A 1,789 = 1,789
Unallocated bank interest RABIRITFIBUA
income 385
2,174
Depreciation wE = - -
Unallocated depreciation AOBINE (2,174)
(2,174)
Finance costs M= (77) = (77)
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31 December 2016 —E—"XF+-_A=+—H

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

Year ended 31 December 2015

BE_Z—HF+-A=+—HLEEE

8. @ES

mr

Property
development

D ERE R ()

and investment Trading
business business Total
MEERER
BEES U ES BE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
& FET FET
(Restated)
(Z3))
Segment revenue: DM
Sales to external customers NI fEE 2,137,619 7,644 2,145,263
Gross rental income ESi: AL ON 9,725 - 9,725
Revenue from continuing RERBBEREER 2
operations Wzs 2,147,344 7,644 2,154,988
Segment results DEEE 35,065 175 35,240
Reconciliation: FEEn -
Unallocated other income KA REAWA 4,461
Corporate and other PEREMRIERT
unallocated expenses (15,957)
Net gain on deemed disposal WRALEHENRZF
of associates lpiEd 433,380
Share of profits and losses of: DR REE
Joint venture SN UNE] (27,278)
Associates NG| (41,337)
Impairment of an available- AEHERNRE ZRE
for-sale investment (311,137)
Gain on derecognition of RIEERAHEENRE
available-for-sale investments Z )8 224
Fair value gain of available- AEHENREZATE
for-sale investments lpiEd 19,091
Fair value gain on derivative TESBRTIAZATETR
financial instruments, net I 28,146
Fair value loss on an equity ZRFER A B BA
investment at fair value K& 7N FEEE
through profit or loss (1,204)
Unallocated income tax expense  RABFIEHFX (26,113)
Profit for the year from REFECEER 2 RE
continuing operations gl 97,516
Other segment information: HipHER -
Bank interest income RITH BUA 769 9,010 9,779
Unallocated bank interest RAEBITFIBUA
income 2,114
11,893
Depreciation e (1 (1,225) (1,226)
Unallocated depreciation AOBINE (1,294)
(2,520)
Finance costs MBH= (47,638) - (47,638)
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4., RBELIER (&)

(continued)
Geographical information

(a) Revenue from external customers

(a) KESNEEF Wi

2016 2015

—E-ARF —T—AF

HK$°000 HK$°000

FET FET

(Restated)

(&%)

Mainland China R B A B 102,786 2,154,988

The revenue information of continuing operations i EREEE IS ERTY
above is based on the location of the customers. HEBREZEE S -

(b)  Non-current assets (b) FHBEE

2016 2015

—E-REF —E-TE

HK$°000 HK$'000

FETT FET

Hong Kong e 23,211 24,411

Mainland China A B A 389,610 688,668

412,821 713,079

The non-current asset information above is based
on the locations of the assets and excludes
financial assets and deferred tax assets.

Information about major customers

Revenue from continuing operations of approximately
HK$44,390,000 (2015: Nil) was derived from sales by
the property development and investment business
segment to two customers of HK$31,100,000 and
HK$13,290,000, respectively.

LASERBEEERDREE L
& D I TBREUBEE

MEERBEE -

EREFZEH

4944,390,000/8 7T (— B —FHF : &) »
REFELEEB 2 RETIRE M
BREKEXEGEHHEMETP 2HE -
3 Bl A31,100,0005% 7T 513,290,000

ﬁo
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31 December 2016 —E—"XF+-_A=+—H

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. Wz > Eau A R FE
Revenue represents the sale of properties; the net WHTHIEFERNYEEEE PEER
invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for returns BRERE (KB EERESHTH) kB
and trade discounts; and gross rental income received HEMELE W EERAEHES WA -
and receivable from investment properties during the
year.
An analysis of revenue, other income and gains from KEFELLER 2 WE - Hi WA &
continuing operations is as follows: FBEOMMOT -
2016 2015
—E-RE —E—hF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAET
(Restated)
(&%)
Revenue Wz
Sale of properties MEEE 85,987 2,137,619
Sale of raw materials and auxiliary R K 8 By RS B
materials = 7,644
Gross rental income FEHS WA 16,799 9,725
102,786 2,154,988
Other income Hiug A
Bank interest income HRITH B A 2,174 11,893
Interest income on a convertible bond  A[ AR &S 2 F 2 U A 1,036 518
Interest income on loans to associates  [AH#& A FIREHER 2 2
WA 577 1,229
Interest income on loans to related MEEE A FIRENERZFE
companies A 1,076 1,994
Government grant* BB 5 * 7,534 17,800
Others HAtb 146 359
12,543 33,793
Gains FE
Fair value gains on investment WEME 2 N HERHE
properties (note 14) (KizE14) - 757
Gain on disposal of items of HEWE  BEMZEER 2
property, plant and equipment AE 222 -
12,765 34,550
* This represents subsidies from municipal government in * LIEFE R BN TR TR B) - XS
Mainland China. There are no unfulfilled conditions or B R 2 BV RS AT o

contingencies relating to these subsidies.
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6. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX 6. BBIADERN (EE)

140

The Group’s profit/(loss) before tax from continuing
operations is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

AEBREFELEET 2 HRB AR
R/ (BR) Bk (GHA) ¢

2016 2015
—E-XE —T-hfF
Notes HK$000 HK$°000
Hrgt FET FHET
(Restated)
(Z5))
Cost of properties sold* eSS N 74,269 1,967,041
Cost of goods sold* EYEER AR - 7,413
Depreciation e 2,174 2,520
Minimum lease payments under Ytk oa Ylivika
operating leases 2,511 5,080
Employee benefit expense (excluding EERMER (TREESH
directors’ remuneration (note 8)): & (H:28)) -
Wages and salaries TERES 26,204 21,562
Pension scheme contributions** RINE TR~ 2,382 617
28,586 22,179
Other operating expenses/(income), net:  E&EF% /(WA ) 25
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEDE  BMEMRE
plant and equipment HEZER - 105
Fair value losses on investment BEME L ATERE
properties 14 34,047 -
Impairment of an investment BERRIZREZRE
in a joint venture 17 7,745 -
Reversal of impairment of mEE A AR ER
loans to associates ZR{ERE 18 = (11,677)
Provision for impairment of B R AR ER
loans to related companies ZREE R 25 12,608 -
Provision for impairment/(recovery) of B 3018 R A i FEUTEE X
prepayments and other receivables ZRERE /(YE) 233 (3,727)
54,633 (15,299)
Auditor’s remuneration ZER € 1,500 2,380
Foreign exchange differences, net IME R EREFRE (51) 10,716
Direct operating expenses (including EROESHRENMEREE
repairs and maintenance) arising on WEEZEZ2EER (piEEE
rental-earning investment properties R1E) 790 479
* Included in “cost of sales” in the consolidated statement of * BETEGEEERT [HEXE] A -

profit or loss.

**

*x At 31 December 2016, the Group had no forfeited
contributions available to reduce its contributions to the

pension scheme in future years (2015: Nil).
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FINANCE COSTS

An analysis of finance costs from continuing operations

31 December 2016 —E—"XF+-_A=+—H

7. WM¥ERX
KEBECLEBZHBEL SN

is as follows: T
2016 2015
—E-RE —ZT—hHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
(Restated)
(&%)
Interest on bank loans and other loans  $R{TEF R EME K 2 F|E 156,816 266,319
Less: Interest capitalised o BB (156,739) (218,681)
77 47,638

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant
to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the

8. EERTHARZHE

RIE ETARR - BB QAGDIFE383(1)
(@~ () (OROERAR (KEEEFH
@mER) ROIF2MRBECFRNEETHE

Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of mT
Directors) Regulation, is as follows:
2016 2015
—E-XRE —T—hEF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Fees we 840 836
Other emoluments: Hup 4 :
Salaries, allowances and benefits e RMEEYAZR
in kind - 1,993
Pension scheme contributions BIREFHEIHE R = 119
- 2,112
840 2,948
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION (continued)

8.

EERTHRARZME (&)

(a) Independent Non-executive Directors (a) BIUFBITES

The fees paid to Independent Non-executive REREZNTEIINITESZ

Directors during the year were as follows: wmamn
2016 2015
ZE-RF —T—AfF
HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FEr
Chu Yu Lin, David N 240 240
Li Ka Fai, David FREF 240 240
Li Zhaoxi ZFIRER 60 60
540 540

There were no other emoluments payable to the
Independent Non-executive Directors during the
year (2015: Nil).
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
PEfZE TEEBREZER (§8) GRAH

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mi &
31 December 2016 —Z—~"FE+=-A=+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8. EERTHERZHME ()
REMUNERATION (continued)
(b) Executive Directors and Non-executive (b) BITEERFHTES
Directors
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind contributions remuneration

A3 BikE
ik BN STEHRR Hemsm

2016 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$'000
“E-RE FET FAT FEx FET
Executive Directors: HTEE:
Liu Hongde (appointed on 30 s (R-T—AF
December 2016) TZA=TREZA) = - - -
Pan Linwu EE 36 - - 36
Lai Weixuan BEE 36 - - 36
Zhou Chunhua (appointed on 30  E&E (WZZ— 4%
December 2016) TZA=THEZH) = = - -
Xu Hongge* R 36 - - 36
Wu Guangquan (resigned on 30 E3%# (R-Z—~F
December 2016) TZAZTHEHE) 36 - - 36
Xiao Nan (resigned on 30 Bl (W%
December 2016) +-A=1tHEHF) 36 - - 36
180 - - 180
Non-executive Director: FHTES:
Chow Wai Kam EE% 120 - - 120
300 - - 300
* Xu Hongge is also the chief executive of the Group. * IR IR EEITEREE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mt &

31 December 2016 —E— X F+_-_A=+—H

AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
REIfZE TEEREZER (58) BRAA

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

REMUNERATION (continued)

(b) Executive Directors and Non-executive

Directors (continued)

EERTHRARZME (&)

(b) BTESRIBTES ()

Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees inkind  contributions  remuneration
He 28 Eike
we  REDNE SR B¢ @8
2015 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-HF FET FET FET FET
Executive Directors: HTES:
Wu Guangquan R 36 - - 36
Pan Linwu B 36 - - 36
Lai Weixuan BET 19 - - 19
Xu Hongge TRt 19 - - 19
Xiao Nan =L 19 - - 19
You Lei (resigned on 23 HE(N-Z-1fF
June 2015) NAZtTZHER) 17 - - 17
Ji Guirong (resigned on 23 ZER(W-Z-1F
June 2015) NAZT=HET) 15 1,613 91 1,719
Zhang Chuanjun (resigned on 23 REE (R-Z—R%F
June 2015) ANRZtT=AEL) 15 380 28 423
176 1,993 119 2,288
Non-executive Directors: FHES:
Chow Wai Kam Fig% 63 - - 63
Ip Tak Chuen, Edmond BEmp 57 - _ 57
296 1,993 119 2,408

There was no arrangement under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the

year (2015: Nil).
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited

TEMZETERREZER (F8) ARLA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mi &

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9.

The five highest paid employees did not include
executive directors (2015: two). Details of the
remuneration for the year of the five (2015: three)
highest paid employees who are not a director of the
Company are as follows:

31 December 2016 —E—"XF+-_A=+—H

hEREHEE
AAEEHREENTBERTES (=
T—RE ML) AFEREL(ZET—F
F:ZR)BRSHREE (LA DAE
E) ESHENT

2016 2015
—E—RE —E—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FET

Basic salaries, allowances and HEAFH & 2B NEWI =
benefits in kind 2,333 3,743
Pension scheme contributions RIRESET B 79 87
Performance related bonuses TVERIBHEBIEA 610 220
3,022 4,050

The number of non-director, highest paid employees
whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as

MeETIBE R IFESTEEH
B :

follows:
Number of employees
EEHE
2016 2015
—E-XRE —E—AF
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ 21,000,000/ 7T 4 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 8L E
1,500,000/ 7T 1 -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 L E
2,500,000 7T - 1
5 3
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
REIfZE TEEREZER (58) BRAA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mt &
31 December 2016 —Z—~FE+=-A=+—H

10. INCOME TAX 10.

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made
as the Group did not generate any assessable profits
arising in Hong Kong during the year (2015: Nil). Taxes
on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at
the rates of tax prevailing in the countries/jurisdictions in
which the Group operates.

The provision of LAT has been estimated according to
the requirements set forth in the relevant PRC laws
and regulations. LAT has been provided at ranges of
progressive rates of the appreciation value, with certain
allowable deductions.

Fri&®i
HRAREEARFE AL BERBREEZ
JERTUE A - ML AF I BB RIS B
B(ZE—RF: &) HMHRER
B M 2 MIER IR A RE R LM ER
R/EEEHERZHERGE

TR ER < BECREBTEIAN K
MR Z MR AT o LR ED
BIREEERRE TAHMRZERR
BRIEHR R Z EE A -

2016 2015
—E-RE —T—hEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FETT FEIT
(Restated)
(&%)
Current — Elsewhere: BVER — E b [

Charge for the year ARERE 1,155 100,216
Deferred JEIE (15,225) (67,024)
LAT in Mainland China R A 2 G E R 7,385 74,865
Total tax charge/(credit) for the year REHIERY (HR) 25 (6,685) 108,057
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10.

11.

AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited

TEMZETERREZER (F8) ARLA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mi &

INCOME TAX (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense/(credit) applicable to
profit/(loss) before tax from continuing operations at the
statutory rates for the countries/jurisdictions in which
the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are
domiciled to the tax charge/(credit) at the effective rate
for the year is as follows:

10.

31 December 2016 —E—"XF+-_A=+—H

Frig8 (&)

BARBRETEMBARMERK,
BEREOEENFFHEARKER
BIREEBZBRBBNAN,/(BR) 85
ARX (%) BAFZERE R ZH
HX (ER) 28RN

2016 2015
—EB-RF —T—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FET
(Restated)
(&%)
Profit/(loss) before tax from continuing R BB E ¥4 2 BRI ADR
operations F(EE) (742,978) 205,573
Tax at the statutory tax rates BEEMEFTE A (148,280) 29,434
Effect of withholding tax at 5% on REE 2 BB ARz Al
the distributable profits of the DIRFEIZS % R R E 2
Group's PRC subsidiary SR e = 26,113
Profits and losses attributable NMhEE R RBERRZ R
to the joint venture and associates A & E51E 54,596 13,403
Income not subject to tax AP A (1,385) (83,435)
Expenses not deductible for tax TS 2 X 80,999 47,677
LAT in Mainland China H i 2 I (E T 7,385 74,865
Tax charge/(credit) at the Group’s BAEBEEBEREHE0I%
effective rate of 0.9% —E—HF :52.6%)
(2015: 52.6%) E‘I‘%CZ%RIE%E‘Z/(?&%) (6,685) 108,057

Share of tax charge attributable to associates of
HK$67,000 (2015: HK$1,399,000) is included in “Share
of profits and losses of associates” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

There was no tax charge attributable to the joint venture
shared by the Group during the year (2015: Nil).

DISCONTINUED OPERATION

During the year, the Group disposed of Zhejiang
Dongyang Jinniu, a 51%-owned subsidiary, to an
independent third party. Zhejiang Dongyang Jinniu
engaged in the production and distribution of knitting
and textile products, knitted fabrics and clothing. The
Group decided to dispose of this subsidiary and cease
its knitting and textile business because it had been
loss-making in recent years.

11.

Db EEE R F 2 BIEF 67,0000 7T

—Z—FH%F 1,399,000 T) 2EFA
ReEBmERZ [DhBERR 2R R
Bl A -

FR - AEBUESEEE QR ZHIA
A% (ZZ—RF 8\ -

BAIEEEER

FR AEELEEEBS1%ZH B
REAMIRGEF T —BBILE=T] °
MIRGEFREHEROER  #H8E
ERRRENEERDH - AEBRE
HEZMME QR KA I E AN
% ARREBOIEF—BEER -
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited

REIfZE TEBERER (F8) BRAF

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mt &

31 December 2016 —E— X F+_-_A=+—H

11.

DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued) 11.

The results of Zhejiang Dongyang Jinniu included in the
Group’s consolidated statement of profit or loss as a

ERIEEEXER (F)

ERERIREXHITALRKESSE
BRANNIRGSFNEEZY W

discontinued operation are presented below: ™
2016 2015
ZE-ARF —Z—nfF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
REVENUE I & 18,616 43,602
Cost of sales $HE R 2N (17,621) (41,145)
Gross profit EF 995 2,457
Other income EH AW A 112 479
Administrative expenses THERER (882) (3,110
Other operating expenses, net H i & & X F %8 (4,112) (11,370)
Finance costs s (1,188) (2,715)
Loss before tax from the REDRIEEEEE 2R
discontinued operation A& 18 (5.,075) (14,259)
Income tax credit/(expense) FrisRiEe /(Fx) (16) 203
Loss after tax from the REDRIEEEER BRI
discontinued operation BEE (5,091) (14,056)
Pre-tax gain on disposal of HEM B AR ZFATFE
a subsidiary (note 41) (K1st41) 32,453 -
Tax expense HIEMX - -
After-tax gain on disposal HEWNBARZHEFE
of a subsidiary 32,453 -
Profit/(loss) for the year from the KB RIEELEETE 2 NF
discontinued operation wmAl L (Es18) 27,362 (14,056)
Attributable to: THIALRES
Owners of the parent ISYNE) iV EE 29,857 (7,169)
Non-controlling interests IR R (2,495) (6,887)
27,362 (14,056)
Earnings/(loss) per share: BREF (EE)
Basic and diluted, from the ERRESE - REE &I HKO0.54 cent (HKO0.13 cent)
discontinued operation GRS 0.54784l (0.1374L)
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12.

AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited

TEMZETERREZER (F8) ARLA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mi &

DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued) 11.

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per
share from the discontinued operation is based on:

31 December 2016 —E—"XF+-_A=+—H

ERIEEEER (B)

KECRUIEREXEB BRERNNEE
&M, (BER) Bt E R

2016 2015
—EB-RF —T—hF
Profit/(loss) attributable SRR RERTE AR
to ordinary equity holders KEDRIEREER
of the parent from the wmF L (EE) HK$29,857,000 (HK$7,169,000)

discontinued operation

Weighted average number FREETEERZ
of ordinary shares in issue hniEF g

during the year

29,857,000 T (7,169,000 7T)

5,519,591,000 5,519,591,000

The net cash flows incurred by Zhejiang Dongyang Jinniu
are as follows:

FIRGEFEENBRESREFED
T

2016 2015

—EB-RE Bl S

HK$'000 HK$°000

FET FEr

Operating activities KEEY 5,354 3,070
Investing activities REEH (2,814) 16
Financing activities BEEE (962) (3,052)
Net cash inflow WEMAFE 1,578 34
EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE 12. BRAEERSRAARGEER

ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings/(loss) per share
amounts is based on the profit/(loss) for the year
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent,
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
5,519,591,000 (2015: 5,519,591,000) in issue during
the year.

&R, (&8)

BREXARFN (BB 2cBEHRES
NAEBESHBEABGEFEFRNGERN
(BE) RERERITLBERZ METF
9 $15,519,591,0000% (= & — 7 & :
5,519,591,0000% ) 5+ & -
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REIfZE TEBERER (F8) BRAF

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mt &

31 December 2016 —E— X F+_-_A=+—H

12. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited

12.

ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE PARENT (continued)

No adjustment has been made to the

basic earnings/

(loss) per share amounts presented for the years ended

31 December 2016 and 2015 in respect

of a dilution as

the Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in

issue during those years.

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per

share is based on:

BRAAERRESEEARGER
&R (ER) (&)

AEERBE-_FT - FR-FT—0F
ToA=+-HALFEIEEAAERE
BERECORTERER AHYEY
REFEERITRERRN,(BE)
SRIFLAREE 2 HE -

BREAREERT (ER) WErET
R

2016 2015
—E-RF —E—ARF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Profit/(loss) attributable to ordinary AR ERERESA ABER
equity holders of the parent: (&)
From continuing operations RERFBECEED (715,699) 48,989
From a discontinued operation BB EETE 29,857 (7,169)
(685,842) 41,820
Number of shares
RHOEE
2016 2015
—EB-RE —T-hF
Weighted average number of ordinary ~ FRE 1T E @AY 2
shares in issue during the year I 15 85 5,519,591,000 5,519,591,000
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
PEfZE TEEBREZER (§8) GRAH

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mi &

31 December 2016 —E—"XF+-_A=+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. Y% BENRE
Furniture,
Land and Plant and fixtures and Motor
buildings  machinery  equipment vehicles Total
B KB
THREF HERES SET RE At

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$°000
TET TET FET TEx TET

31 December 2016 “E-R"E+ZA=t-H
At 31 December 2015 and R-E-HEFT-A=1—H

1 January 2016: RZZ—RE-R—-H

Cost A 34,565 11,493 5,223 10,385 61,666

Accumulated depreciation and ~ EREHE kA

impairment (7,567) (11,493) (3,879) (7,132) (30,071)

Net carrying amount REFE 26,998 - 1,344 3,253 31,595
At 1 January 2016, net of RZZ—R"E-A—0 Nk

accumulated depreciation ZENERAE

and impairment 26,998 - 1,344 3,253 31,595
Additions AE - - 96 - 96
Disposals HE - = = (524) (524)
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 41) HEMBAE (ff541) (3,004) - (36) (488) (3,528)
Depreciation provided FRTERE

during the year (901) - (490) (1,096) (2,487)
Exchange realignment fE 5 % - - (57) (120) (177)
At 31 December 2016, netof ~ R-E—RF+-A=t—H"

accumulated depreciation Nk 2EHE 23,093 - 857 1,025 24,975
At 31 December 2016: RZE—E+-A=1+—-1:

Cost KA 30,350 - 4,958 4214 39,522

Accumulated depreciation Z2RNE (7,257) - (4,101) (3,189) (14,547)

Net carrying amount FREFE 23,093 - 857 1,025 24,975
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
REIfZE TEEREZER (58) BRAA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mt &
31 December 2016 —Z—~FE+=-A=+—H

13.

152

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. Y% BEMR®E (&)
(continued)
Furniture,
Land and Plantand fixtures and Motor
buildings ~ machinery  equipment vehicles Total
B RE
THRET  BERES PE "E CH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
31 December 2015 “E-EF+ZA=1-H
At 1 January 2015: RZZ-hF—-A—-H8:
Cost AR 34,782 12,228 5,160 11,696 63,866
Accumulated depreciation ZRME (6,633) (4,496) (3,435) (8,005) (22,569)
Net carrying amount ERTE 28,149 7,732 1,725 3,691 41,297
At 1 January 2015, net of RZE-R%-A-0 Nk
accumulated depreciation ZENE 28,149 7,732 1,725 3,691 41,297
Additions NE - - 165 1,761 1,926
Disposals HE - - - (515) (515)
Depreciation provided FRTERE
during the year (1,049) (802) (496) (1,622) (3,969)
Impairment BE - (6,924) - - (6,924)
Exchange realignment 5 R (102) (6) (50) (62) (220)
At 31 December 2015, RZB-R%tZA=1+-H"
net of accumulated MR 2B/NERAE
depreciation and impairment 26,998 - 1,344 3,253 31,595
At 31 December 2015: RZE-RF+-A=1+—H:
Cost A 34,565 11,493 5,223 10,385 61,666
Accumulated depreciation ZRMERAE
and impairment (7,567) (11,493) (3,879) (7,132) (30,071)
Net carrying amount FHFE 26,998 - 1,344 3,253 31,595
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13.

AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited

TEMZETERREZER (F8) ARLA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mi &

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2015, impairment
of HK$6,924,000 had been recognised for plant and
machinery because the knitting and textile business had
been loss-making in recent years. The impairment had
been determined based on a value in use calculation
using cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by senior management covering a five-year
period. The discount rate applied to cash flow
projections was 15%.

Assumptions used in the cash flow projections to
undertake impairment testing of plant and machinery
are as follows:

Budgeted gross margins — The basis used to determine
the value assigned to the budgeted gross margins
was the average gross margins achieved in the year
immediately before the budget year, increased for
expected efficiency improvements.

Discount rate — The discount rate used was before tax
and reflected specific risks relating to the relevant unit.

The values assigned to key assumptions were consistent
with external information sources.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s building located
in Mainland China with net book value of HK$3,148,000
had been pledged to secure general banking facilities
granted to the Group (note 35(b)(i)).

13.

31 December 2016 —E—"XF+-_A=+—H

M BENRE (&)

HE-_Z—AFt+-_A=+—HLF
B AR BRNBER R ORTF —
EEBE BXBREREEBBRBE
6,924,000/ 7T ° RETERKAR®
REBANEREEAENEE  BH
HENERSAEREEMEN AT
BEE BHenEEAMERZITAE
A15% °

HBELESECREANRAZESRER
BIFER 2 & T

FREENE - BEENKZ BETDRE
BEFEA—FMERNFHENEG
B - WHREFAMMEEE Mg -

FHRFE — RAZ IR ERTIRNERIEA
¥ RREREERIE T 25 TR -

A B 2 BEEINDEIERIR—E
RZEBE-—RAFE+-A=+—H0 E@F
E3,148,000/8 7T 2 A S B A B Ay

ZEFEBIER - EAAEE—MIRTT
SEZHER (WFE35(b)3))
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
REIfZE TEEREZER (58) BRAA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mt &

31 December 2016 —E— X F+_-_A=+—H

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14. REY=
2016 2015
—E-ARF —ET—h%F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Carrying amount at 1 January R—RA—BZEEE 373,425 -
Transfer from properties under ERBERPME

development - 374,445

Net gain/(loss) from a fair value NEEFAZHFE S (FBE)
adjustment (notes 5 and 6) TR (K5 k6) (34,047) 757
Exchange realignment PE 8% (23,512) (1,777)
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ A=+—HBZ2EAE 315,866 373,425

154

The Group's investment properties consist of commercial
properties in Mainland China. The Group's investment
properties were revalued on 31 December 2016 based
on valuations performed by LCH (Asia-Pacific) Surveyors
Limited, independent professionally qualified valuers, at
HK$315,866,000. Each year, the Group's chief financial
officer decides to appoint which external valuer to be
responsible for the external valuations of the Group's
properties. Selection criteria include market knowledge,
reputation, independence and whether professional
standards are maintained. The Group’s chief financial
officer has discussions with the valuer on the valuation
assumptions and valuation results twice a year when the
valuation is performed for interim and annual financial
reporting.

The investment properties are leased to third parties
under operating leases, further summary details of which
are included in note 42(a) to the financial statements.

Further particulars of the Group’s investment properties
are included on page 225.
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
PEfTZE TEEBREZER (§8) BRAT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mi &
31 December 2016 —E—~F+-_A=+—H

14.

The following table illustrates the fair value

measurement hierarchy of the Group’s investment

properties:

RENR (7)
DFEERHE
TRIVRAEBHREMENRTE

BER:

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2016 using

RIB-AF+-A=t-ARAUTEEETAVENE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
RERT & EXTBE EXTUEE
HEHE BARE BWABE
(B—%) (B=8) (B=4) G
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FET FET
Recurring fair value mEUHATENE
measurement for:
Commercial properties EAE - - 315,866 315,866
Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2015 using
RZZE-RE+-_A=+T—BERUTSEETLATEHE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
RS R BATEE EATIEE
HRME BABE BWABE
(B—#&) (B=%) (B=H) A&t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT FHET FHET
Recurring fair value MEUATETE -
measurement for:
Commercial properties 2R ES - - 373,425 373,425
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
REIfZE TEEREZER (58) BRAA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mt &
31 December 2016 —Z—~FE+=-A=+—H

14.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 14.

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 (2015: Nil).

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used

REME (&)
DAFEERHFE (&)

FRN - F-—HRE-R2EERFET
BEER NEBAFEBLRE=A(=F

—hF &)

AT BREMFREEMANEET AR

and the key inputs to the valuation of investment FEHABBIHE
properties:
Valuation Significant Range or
techniques unobservable inputs weighted average
BER%E EXTUERBARE EEREMETFIY
2016 2015
ZE-KRE —Z-1F
Commercial properties  Term and reversion Term yield 6% N/A
[ElikIES method FHEE i
FHRERE Reversionary yield 6.5% N/A
EElEE TER
Market rent (per sg.m. and HK$102 to N/A
per month) HK$108 A
mEfRe (B¥IAREA) 10287 £ 1088 7T
Commercial properties  Discounted cash Estimated rental value N/A HK$108 to
[EhiEkES flow method (per sq.m. and per month) T HK$120
BERREREE e EERE (BFHAREAR) 1088 E120/ETT
Rent growth (p.a.) N/A 2.5%
HeER (8F) TEM
Long term vacancy rate N/A 2%
RPEEX TEA
Discount rate N/A 5.6%
EipR:S PER

Annual Report 2016 —Z — /XFEH



14.

AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited

TEMZETERREZER (F8) ARLA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mi &

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The term and reversion method measures the fair value
of the property by taking into account the rental income
derived from the existing leases with due allowance for
the reversionary income potential of the leases, which
are then capitalised into the value at appropriate rates.

A significant increase (decrease) in the term yield and
the reversionary yield in isolation would result in a
significant decrease (increase) in the fair value of the
investment properties. A significant increase (decrease)
in the market rent would result in a significant increase
(decrease) in the fair value of the investment properties.

Under the discounted cash flow method, fair value is
estimated using assumptions regarding the benefits and
liabilities of ownership over the asset’s life including
an exit or terminal value. This method involves the
projection of a series of cash flows on a property
interest. A market-derived discount rate is applied to
the projected cash flow in order to establish the present
value of the income stream associated with the asset.
The exit yield is normally separately determined and
differs from the discount rate.

The duration of the cash flows and the specific timing
of inflows and outflows are determined by events such
as rent reviews, lease renewal and related reletting,
redevelopment or refurbishment. The appropriate
duration is driven by market behaviour that is a
characteristic of the class of property. The periodic
cash flow is estimated as gross income less vacancy,
non-recoverable expenses, collection losses, lease
incentives, maintenance costs, agent and commission
costs and other operating and management expenses.
The series of periodic net operating income, along with
an estimate of the terminal value anticipated at the end
of the projection period, is then discounted.

14.

31 December 2016 —E—"XF+-_A=+—H

REME (&)
DAFEERFE (&)

FHRERZEERREBBAFHONA
TWA - WEF RO EREERA
FHEENZERRAEVENRFE
ARIDEENEBEERFTEARN -

FHR SR RER W R EFAE LT
(TF) BEHREMERFERNRERD
(3mm) - mEFHEHSEBARLEA (T
) HEEIREME L FEREEM O

L) o

RIEFRBRRSREL  AFEDNEAR
RHEESTANEEMERARN NS
kB BEETH (BRELERRKR
BE) - ZIDES R EERN —E S
REeRENER - MBITENTREE
ARBARS RENERLEEESRH
Ml RMIRE - RH iR am BT EEE
REBTRRITEE

B RnENFRERRE MR AR HE
ARERDHAFWNESRN HOE
BRBEER EEHBHEFEMHR
Ee BEMNREREITSTR (BY
FRHN—ERE) & EHEENR
BREWSNBRZEE  TARKRER -
WikEX - HERE  ®#EER K12
MEEALEMEEMERER - &
—ERTEHRLEWAFER - ERER
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31 December 2016 —E— X F+_-_A=+—H

14.

15.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 14. REYHE ()
Fair value hierarchy (continued) NEEERFNE (&)
A significant increase (decrease) in the estimated rental HEHEBERTSHEFEREXER
value and the market rent growth rate per annum in RN CRLD) BEBIREMENRDT
isolation would result in a significant increase (decrease) BEA@EMN CRD) - REEEREITH
in the fair value of the investment properties. A KEBAREM ORL) BB EYZE
significant increase (decrease) in the long term vacancy R FERERD (M) o —RimE
rate and the discount rate in isolation would result AT HEEEELENRENEEHEH
in a significant decrease (increase) in the fair value HEeEFERETREHREUSTRE
of the investment properties. Generally, a change in MEYRATEERHRARMELS] 5 -
the assumption made for the estimated rental value is
accompanied by a directionally similar change in the
rent growth per annum and the discount rate and an
opposite change in the long term vacancy rate.
As at 31 December 2016, the Group has adopted the RZE-RE+ZA=+—08  K&H
term and reversion method (2015: the discounted cash ERTEHRERE(ZE—0F 8
flow method) to value the investment properties as in RIS RERE) FREMERE BA
the opinion of the directors, the term and reversion EERR HRAEBEZIREMER
method is a more appropriate valuation technique for B FHRERZEIEEAGBZEES
the Group's investment properties. o
PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 15. BANLHHEER
2016 2015
—E-KE —T-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BZEEE 2,885 3,032
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 41) LEMBRAR (KiF41) (2,872) -
Exchange realignment P H FE R - (74)
Recognised during the year FRER (13) (73)
Carrying amount at 31 December R+t A=+—HZEAE - 2,885
Current portion included in FTATENKIE - ke RHEME
prepayments, deposits and WBR SR A Y 7 B 3010
other receivables - (71)
Non-current portion e BB - 2,814

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s leasehold land
located in Mainland China with net book value of
HK$2,885,000 had been pledged to secure general
banking facilities granted to the Group (note 35(b)(ii)).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mi &
31 December 2016 —Z—~"FE+=-A=+—H

INTANGIBLE ASSET 16. BEEE
Customer
relationship
EFBR
HK$'000
FET
31 December 2016 —E-XE+=ZA=+—8
Cost at 1 January 2016, net of RZE—RE—A—BZHEAN - MKRER
accumulated amortisation 5y 380
Amortisation provided during the year F NS (95)
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 41) HEMBRAR (KiF41) (285)
At 31 December 2016 RZBE-—RF+ZA=+—H —
At 31 December 2016: RZB-—RF+ZA=+—8:
Cost %N =
Accumulated amortisation SiEEY _
Net carrying amount FREFE =
31 December 2015 —E-AFE+=-A=+—H
Cost at 1 January 2015, net of RZE—RF—A—HZKA  IKREE
accumulated amortisation b 570
Amortisation provided during the year R S R (190)
At 31 December 2015 R-E—RF+-_A=+—H 380
At 31 December 2015: R-E—RF+_-_A=+—H":
Cost B AR 1,141
Accumulated amortisation RIEH (761)
Net carrying amount ARIEHE 380
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17.

Annual Report 2016 ==

INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE 17. EERTZRE
2016 2015
=F-REF —h%F
HK$000 HK$°000
FET FET
Share of net assets DIEEEFE 58,602 282,876
Goodwill on acquisition WIS PEE 2 & 7,745 7,745
66,347 290,621
Provision for impairment B (7,745) -
58,602 290,621

The investment in a joint venture represents the Group’s
right to enjoy certain economic benefits derived from
a 69.4% (2015: 69.4%) equity interest in CATIC
Siwei Co., Ltd. ("CATIC Siwei”) held by third parties
through trust arrangements. CATIC Siwei is registered
as a co-operative joint venture under PRC law and
is holding an investment in China which operates in
aero-technology business and in investment holding.

In the opinion of the directors, notwithstanding that the
Group has the right to enjoy certain economic benefits
from the 69.4% equity interest in CATIC Siwei, none of
the shareholders of CATIC Siwei has unilateral control
over the economic activity of CATIC Siwei pursuant to
the provisions in the articles and association of CATIC
Siwei. Since the Group does not have any power to
control the financial and operating activities of CATIC
Siwei, the directors consider it is appropriate to account
for this right as an investment in a joint venture using
the equity method of accounting as at 31 December

2016 and 2015.
The above entity was not audited by Ernst & Young,

Hong Kong or another member firm of the Ernst &
Young global network.

—NFER

B @TZ&%%$EEE%$ﬁm%
ZHEBEARHRAE 2 NEMEE
BRAR ([HHEERK]) 69.4% E—
FF 69.4%) RAREZ 2 & T EF
o MHEERRBERBEEMNTFMAEE
E - WRPBREE & EM T R ER
FIEEERZIZE o

EEZRA HAXNEEHBNEE
69.4% % AN #E 7 00 B T 4L U s 1
RIEMEERNARERRETE  HED
HIERRRE NG ER B EEHE
BT EESIRE o RS B TS| Y
BERMBERECETEY  EFRAHE
HiLZBERAERSERE - WK
E-RNEERZFE-AF+=-A=+—H
HAEERTZIRE -

LA EEEIERL KB BRELKEIRBLE
H bk B AREX o
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited

TEMZETERREZER (F8) ARLA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mi &

INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE
(continued)

During the year, impairment of HK$7,745,000 (note 6)
has been recognised for investment in the joint venture
because the joint venture has been loss-making in recent
years. The impairment has been determined based on
value in use calculation using cash flow projections
based on financial budgets. The discount rate applied to
cash flow projections was 16%.

The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information of CATIC Siwei adjusted for any differences
in accounting policies, and reconciled to the carrying
amount in the consolidated financial statements:

17.

31 December 2016 —E—"XF+-_A=+—H

BERAZRE (&)

HRAEEARROEHF—EFE " B
REERAZERERFARAERBE
7,745,000/ 7T (H1i#6) ° sZBETIER
RABRSREEANEREETEME
EABReREBRNTUMEEE R
A -HEenEBAMERZTEAXRA
16% °

TRIEMgERZHBHEMRE (B
REFBRRERERELAE S E
RAMBHRERANZREEETEHR)

2016 2015
—E—XRE —E—ARF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Cash and cash equivalents B4 hBEEEE 7,140 15,058
Other current assets EMnsEE 49,494 163,000
Current assets MEEE 56,634 178,058
Non-current assets EREEE 149,490 353,185
Current liabilities mENAE (115,380) (116,062)
Non-current liabilities FEnBaE (828) (1,293)
Net assets BEFE 89,916 413,888
Less: Net assets attributable to B FEERERELEEFE
non-controlling interests (5,475) (6,286)
84,441 407,602
Reconciliation to the Group’s interest HAEENEE A AR
in the joint venture: ZHER
Proportion of the Group’s ownership REBERRE 2L 69.4% 69.4%
Group's share of net assets of the joint AEBHREERNRIZEEF
venture & 58,602 282,876
Goodwill on acquisition WHEFTEA 2 8 7,745 7,745
Provision for impairment BERE (7,745) -
Carrying amount of the investment ®EZREE 58,602 290,621
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REIfZE TEEREZER (58) BRAA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mt &
31 December 2016 —ZE— R F+_-_A=+—H

17. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE 17. G¥RAZRE (&)
(continued)
The following table illustrates the summarised financial TR B ER BB ERNBE (2
information of CATIC Siwei adjusted for any differences e RFEIEMEEEE AR FE
in accounting policies, and reconciled to the carrying SEAMBHRERANZEREBEETYHE)
amount in the consolidated financial statements: (4&)
(continued)
2016 2015
—EB-RE —E-RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHTT
Revenue Wz 17,756 17,833
Interest income =N ON 2,900 1,091
Depreciation and amortisation WrE R (17,380) (18,683)
Impairment provision* B (224,155) (78,295)
Interest expenses FERX - -
Tax | - -
Loss for the year REEE (311,141) (39,330)
Other comprehensive income Hih 2w (12,831) -
Total comprehensive income for the year ZAREZ2E U5 4258 (323,972) (39,330)
* The impairment has been determined based on a value * ZREDEREKARREEROER
in use calculation using cash flow projections based on BEMAEMET  EETEDERSR
financial budgets approved by senior management covering BEREEHAEANTFHUBEE - BEnR
a five-year period. The discount rate applied to cash flow SERAFERZITRER16% ©

projections is 16%.

Assumptions used in the cash flow projections to undertake FESBEeReEAF ER Y BR
impairment testing are as follows: mE :

Budgeted gross margins — The basis used to determine FEEERZ — FBEENR Y HUETHIRE
the value assigned to the budgeted gross margins is the BEEEN —ERERNTHENRST
average gross margins achieved in the year immediately G Y E FETE RN E AL AN o
before the budget year, increased for expected efficiency

improvements.

Discount rate — The discount rate used is before tax and i E — FRE R R ANG A
reflects specific risks relating to the relevant unit. IR ABERET S SRR

The values assigned to key assumptions are consistent with BRESR T BERIPEE B —5 -

external information sources.
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
PEfZE TEEBREZER (§8) GRAH

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mi &

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

31 December 2016 —E—"XF+-_A=+—H

18. BELQRZRE

2016 2015
—E-RF —E—NEF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FAET
Share of net assets NIEEEFE 13,204 13,792
Goodwill on acquisition WHEFTE A 2 2 7,500 8,265
20,704 22,057
Less: Provision for impairment T ORE RS (7,326) (8,091)
13,378 13,966
Loans to associates — non-current M QR E R = 40,120
— R
Less: Impairment of loans to associates & : MEE R AHREHER - (29,940)
ZRE
- 10,180
13,378 24,146
Loans to associates included in FAREBREBEEY

the Group’s current assets: MR RIRENEN
Loans to associates — current MEEE N ERENER — RE 37,430 -
Less: Impairment of loans to associates & : [ A FIIRHER & (27,933) -

ZRE

9,497 -

The loans to associates are unsecured and bear
interest at 4.5% to 6% (2015: 4.5% to 6%) per
annum. Included in the loans to associates are loans
of HK$27,933,000 (2015: HK$29,940,000) which have
convertible options allowing the Group to convert
the loans into ordinary shares of the associates at an
established conversion rate (i.e. RMB1 per share). In the
opinion of the directors, the fair values of the convertible
options do not have significant financial effect and were
therefore not recognised in these financial statements.

The loans to associates which are not repayable within
one year were classified as non-current and were
included in the investments in associates. The loans to
associates which are repayable within one year were
classified as current and were included in the Group's
current assets.

MEERARIRROERDERE  BFHX
ASE Z6E (T — L F:45F R6E) =t
Boeit AMBERRRENERN K
AL B 327,933,000 T (Z T —RHF ¢
29,940,000/ 7T) + AEE AR EERE (8]
BRITARE) BEREBR AR E AR LB
fR-ZBERA  AIMREZAFELESE NG
BRE B2 BEERMBHRERER o

BAN—FRAEBENABRE QR RENERD
BRFRDAFABMERARZINE - AR —F
NEENFEEARRENERIBERRB A
AFARKBZRBEE
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18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 18. K& ATZRE (&)

As at 31 December 2016, impairment losses of RZE-—R"F+ZA=+—H" B2
HK$27,933,000 (2015: HK$29,940,000) have been A ENRRENERERRE
recognised for the loans to associates. Impairment has /&5 827,933,000 T (Z & — f & :

been recognised for loans to associates because the 29,940,000/ 7T) « HRZEH LR ARN
associates have been loss-making in recent years. BB —EEE - ERmEE A RE

HHERHERIRIE -

The movements in the provision for impairment of the MEEE N FIRENER O REREZD
loans to associates are as follows: m

2016 2015

—E—REF =R

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

At 1 January w—HA—H 29,940 86,750

Exchange realignment (ER RS (2,007) (3,217)

Reversal of impairment loss (note 6) B OURERE (f76) - (11,677)

Reclassified to other receivables EF OB EMEWERR
(note 26) (H5#26) - (41,916)
At 31 December R+—A=+—H 27,933 29,940
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
PEfTZE TEEBREZER (§8) BRAT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mi &

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Particulars of the material associate are as follows:

Place of

incorporation/

Particulars of

registration and

31 December 2016 —E—"XF+-_A=+—H

BMENRZRE (7)
BAMENRZHENT :

Percentage of

ownership

interest
attributable Principal

Name issued shares held business to the Group activities
FsHEE#1T By A rEERGERE
=L R4 1E B3y E-—E$ 4 EZESL TEEHR
It REES TR Registered capital PRC/Mainland China 35.6 (2015: 45) Research and
BRAA of RMB1 each FE BRI 35.6 development
(MtRZEEHR]) *  BRITAREBH (ZZ—H%F : 45) of engineering
FERIIE=N technology
and electronics
communication
technology
IREMREF
AIERMTEV T
Pk
* Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another * W IR T KRB R LK BB H MK

member firm of the Ernst & Young global network.

The above table lists the associates of the Group which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the
results for the year or formed a substantial portion of
the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
associates would, in the opinion of the directors, result
in particulars of excessive length.

The Group has discontinued the recognition of its
share of losses of an associate, E ¥ @ it = A R
/A Al, because the share of losses of the associate
exceeded the Group’s interest in the associate and the
Group has no obligation to take up further losses. The
amounts of the Group’s unrecognised share of losses
of this associate for the current year and cumulatively
were HK$10,574,000 (2015: HK$15,051,000) and

HK$54,995,000 (2015: HK$44,421,000), respectively.

BRAEZ -

ERIHEER AL EY B RM
NERAEEEEFELEHH 2R
MBS AT o EERA M H AR
ARERBBHIE -

AEEDRIEERDEHE AR 2B
BMZEBRARMEE  WIBARDE
ZHERR BB Ba RSN &
ERRMED  MASECEETRIE
B EE . ANEBARERMNENZ
BMERNRAFTFEBEBECERRESLE
2 B A10,574,0008 70 (ZF — R F ¢
15,051,000% 7©) K&54,995,000/# 7T
(ZZ—F%F : 44,421,000/ 7T) °
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18.

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

During the year, the Group's equity interest in 1t &
# {Z ZE has been diluted subsequent to the capital
contribution by other shareholders of 4t REZZE. A gain
on deemed disposal of an associate of HK$3,386,000
was recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss for the year.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group’'s
equity interests in two associates, AVIC Joy Holdings
(HK) Limited (“AVIC Joy”) and /@& MM RIEHZAR (7
ARG (" HEEST”), had been diluted and the Group
no longer had any significant influence over them. As
such, the Group’s investments in these two companies
had been reclassified from investments in associates
to available-for-sale investments, and the Group had
discontinued to apply the equity method to share the
results and other comprehensive income of these two
companies. The reclassifications had been accounted
for as disposals of the entire interests in AVIC Joy and
F/8EH and re-acquisitions of the retained interests
at their fair values. As a result, an aggregate net gain
on deemed disposal of associates of HK$433,380,000
had been recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2015.
Since then, the fully-impaired loans to /8% were
reclassified to other receivables.
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited

TEMZETERREZER (F8) ARLA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mi &

31 December 2016 —E—"XF+-_A=+—H

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 18. HMERRZRE (&)
The following table illustrates the aggregate financial TRINTAEBEERIEEREERF 2
information of the Group’s associates that are not BRI ER -
individually material:
2016 2015
—E—XRF =R
HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FEIT
Share of the associates’ losses for the year S {GHE& QT 2 AEEE (3,013) (41,337)
Share of the associates’ other DREEE A E 2 B2 E RS
comprehensive income - 16,028
Share of the associates’ total DIEEE R E 2 2 HE N B
comprehensive income (3,013) (25,309)
Aggregate carrying amount of REEBRBERRZREZ
the Group’s investments in AREEMAEE
the associates 13,378 24,146
FINANCIAL ASSET UNDER PROJECT EC120 19. EC120 B ZHIBEE

The balance represents the carrying value of the Group’s
interest in 80% of the interest of AVIC International
Holding Corporation (“AVIC International”), a
substantial shareholder of the Company, in the net
income in relation to Project EC120, a jointly-controlled
operation established by AVIC International and certain
independent third parties, to develop, manufacture and
globally distribute the multi-purpose EC120 helicopters.

AVIC International’s net income derived from Project
EC120 is limited to AVIC International’s share of income,
net of all expenses, to be derived from its interest in
Project EC120.

BHREAARZEERERPEMER
MEEZERER AR (FMEER]) B
EC1201E B BT 2 F WA 280% % 2
FERERTEEECI20EB 2 —HABTM
BB S TIB = A 2 LR
HE - ZERREBILIBE S ERE
Bl N R IREIEECI208 R 2 2 R E
FH# o

A EIER R BEC12018 B 2 F WA - R

R fBEIBRAEECI200B B R EE 2
PRI AIRPT B FISE
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31 December 2016 —E— X F+_-_A=+—H

19. FINANCIAL ASSET UNDER PROJECT EC120 19.

(continued)

The investment represents a contractual right to receive
cash in the future from another enterprise and has been
classified as a non-current available-for-sale financial
asset and stated at cost less any impairment losses
because the range of reasonable fair value estimates is
so significant that the directors are of the opinion that
its fair value could not be measured reliably.

As at 31 December 2016, the directors has made a full
provision for impairment of the value of the financial
asset and the cost less accumulated impairment losses of

EC120 BB 2 i EE (&)

HERARARNR - FOERRRE
ZAMEF - LEHBAERB TS
EOM AR BRSO E R
BOIE - U TR A R AT A 2 8
EBA - MEFRAEETRHBHA
i -

R-ZF-—R"F+-A=+—H0 BEFC
RZBRIBEEZBEELDZERER
- BHEEZRARRBEREBRZ

the financial asset is analysed as follows: DT -
HK$'000
FET
At 1 January 2015, 31 December 2015, RZE—AF—H—H ZZT—Hh%F
1 January 2016 and 31 December 2016: +ZA=+—8 ZF—X~F
—A—BRkZZ—RF
+ZA=+—H
Cost B Ax 39,759
Accumulated impairment 2ERE (39,759)
Carrying amount AREE =
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31 December 2016 —E—"XF+-_A=+—H

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 20. IHHENRKRE
2016 2015
—B-RE —T-ARF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FRET FHET
Non-current: IERB
Unlisted investments, at fair value: JELEMIRE  mATE
PMH Bonds (note (a)) RXTEERES (M5 @) 83,420 70,998
AVIC Joy Bond (note (b)) ERIERES (H7Eb)) 45,744 43,445
Club debentures (note (c)) GHES (Wit () - 2,290
129,164 116,733
Listed equity investment, EHRAKRE - BATE
at fair value (note (d)) (B1:£(d)) 149,581 283,688
Unlisted equity investment, EEMBAETE @ LKA E
at cost (note (e)) (Ht5tee)) = -
278,745 400,421

Notes:

Peace Map Holding Limited (“PMH") is a company
whose shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The convertible
bonds issued by PMH (“PMH Convertible Bonds”) held
by the Group are non-interest-bearing, convertible into
400,000,000 ordinary shares of PMH at HK$0.25 per share
(subject to adjustment upon the change in the capital
structure of PMH) and will mature in five years from the
date of the issuance.

PMH Convertible Bonds are hybrid instruments that include
non-derivative host contracts and embedded derivatives.
The non-derivative host contracts, representing the bond
components (“PMH Bonds”), have been designated as
available-for-sale investments. The embedded derivatives,
representing the conversion options which allow the Group
to convert PMH Convertible Bonds into ordinary shares
of PMH at an established conversion rate (i.e., HK$0.25
per share), have been designated as derivative financial
instruments (“PMH Derivatives”) as detailed in note 21(a) to
the financial statements.

=

(a) ATEZEEERAA (RTEZRER])
RREEONEEBHEAISMER
A ([BRA]) Lz AR AEH
FAZARTEZERETOAREE
FURTEZRAZRES]) T&
B AR ER.258 T (HEEXTE
EREARBZEHTURE) BRn
400,000,0000% R T B f& 2 & 3@ A% -
BRETREFTRIERH -

RTEZEBRABRESBBEEIFTET
BT RBARNTETAZRAT
B FTETRTIANRRESAND
(TRTEZEERES]D - SWEEAAH
HEMNKRE - RARITETAERKRAF
REBILBTEBRE (AEM0.2587T)
BRTEZERA SRR ESERRRTE
PR BB A CREER
MIBwMRME21(@F R 2 ITESRT A
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
REIfZE TEEREZER (58) BRAA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mt &

31 December 2016 —E— X F+_-_A=+—H

20.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(a)

(b)

(continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group
had converted certain PMH Convertible Bonds (“PMH
Converted CB") with a principal amount of HK$66,000,000
into 264,000,000 shares of PMH at the conversion price
of HK$0.25 per share. On the date of the conversion,
the market value of the shares of PMH received was
HK$120,120,000 while the fair value of the PMH
Converted CB was stated at HK$123,880,000 based on
a valuation performed by an independent professionally
qualified valuer. A loss on derecognition of HK$3,760,000
was resulted. At the same time, the corresponding fair
value gain of HK$8,573,000 previously recorded in the
statement of comprehensive income was released from
the available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve. As a
result, a net gain on derecognition of an available-for-sale
investment of HK$4,813,000 was recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended
31 December 2015.

As at 31 December 2016, the fair value of PMH Bonds was
stated at HK$83,420,000 (2015: HK$70,998,000) based
on a valuation performed by an independent professionally
qualified valuer, and a fair value gain of HK$12,422,000
(2015: HK$2,381,000) in respect of PMH Bonds was
recognised as other comprehensive income for the year
ended 31 December 2016.

AVIC Joy is a company whose shares are listed on the Stock
Exchange. The convertible bond issued by AVIC Joy (“AVIC
Joy Convertible Bond”) bears interest at 2% per annum, is
convertible into 225,112,487 ordinary shares of AVIC Joy at
HK$0.23 per share (subject to adjustment upon the change
in the capital structure of AVIC Joy) and will mature in
three years from the date of the issuance.
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20.

AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
PEfZE TEEBREZER (§8) GRAH

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mi &

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b)

(continued)

AVIC Joy Convertible Bond is a hybrid instrument that
includes a non-derivative host contract and an embedded
derivative. The non-derivative host contract, representing
the bond component (“AVIC Joy Bond"”),

designated as an available-for-sale investment. The

has been
embedded derivative, representing the conversion option
which allows the Group to convert AVIC Joy Convertible
Bond into ordinary shares of AVIC Joy at an established
conversion rate (i.e., HK$0.23 per share) before the maturity
date of AVIC Joy Convertible Bond, has been designated as
a derivative financial instrument (“AVIC Joy Derivative”) as
detailed in note 21(b) to the financial statements.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the maturity
date of AVIC Joy Convertible Bond was extended from
6 March 2015 to 6 March 2018 as agreed by the Group
and AVIC Joy, and the conversion rate was changed from
HK$0.235 per share to HK$0.23 per share. On the date
of the extension, the market value of the new AVIC Joy
Convertible Bond was HK$76,691,000 while the fair value
of the original AVIC Joy Convertible Bond was stated at
HK$72,707,000 based on a valuation performed by an
independent professionally qualified valuer. A gain on
derecognition of the original AVIC Joy Convertible Bond
of HK$3,984,000 was resulted. At the same time, the
corresponding fair value gain of HK$10,518,000 previously
recorded in the statement of other comprehensive income
was released from the available-for-sale investment
revaluation reserve. As a result, an aggregate net gain
on derecognition of an available-for-sale investment
of HK$14,502,000 was recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31 December
2015.

As at 31 December 2016, the fair value of AVIC Joy Bond
was stated at HK$45,744,000 (2015: HK$43,445,000)
based on a valuation performed by an independent
professionally qualified valuer, and a fair value gain of
HK$2,299,000 (2015: HK$1,566,000) in respect of AVIC
Joy Bond was recognised as other comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 December 2016.
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
REIfZE TEEREZER (58) BRAA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mt &

31 December 2016 —E— X F+_-_A=+—H

20.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(0

(d)

(e)

During the year, the Group disposed of club debentures
for cash consideration of HK$1,800,000. As a result, a
fair value loss of HK$490,000 was recognised as other
comprehensive income and the same fair value loss was
then released from the available-for-sale investment
revaluation reserve to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss for the year.

As detailed in note 18 to the financial statements, the
Group’s equity interest in AVIC Joy was diluted during the
year ended 31 December 2015 and the Group’s investment
in AVIC Joy was reclassified to available-for-sale investment.
This investment was designated as an available-for-sale
financial asset and has no fixed maturity date or coupon
rate.

During the year, a fair value loss of HK$134,107,000 (2015:
HK$311,137,000) in respect of the Group’s investment in
AVIC Joy was recognised as other comprehensive income
for the year.

There has been a significant decline in the market value of
AVIC Joy shares during the year. The directors consider that
such a decline indicates that the investment in AVIC Joy has
been impaired and an impairment loss of HK$134,107,000
(2015: HK$311,137,000), which included a reclassification
from other comprehensive income of HK$134,107,000
(2015: HK$311,137,000), has been recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year.

As detailed in note 18 to the financial statements, the
Group's equity interest in LE/BEEJH was diluted during
the year ended 31 December 2015 and the Group no
longer had any significant influence over it. The Group's
investment in /8EEM was reclassified to available-for-sale
investment. This investment was designated as an
available-for-sale financial asset and has no fixed maturity
date or coupon rate.

As at 31 December 2016, the investment in _EJ& & i
was stated at cost less impairment because the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that the
directors are of the opinion that its fair value cannot be
measured reliably. The investment has been fully impaired
in the prior year. The Group does not intend to dispose of
it in the near future.
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20.

AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited

TEMZETERREZER (F8) ARLA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mi &

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
(continued)

During the year, net fair value loss of HK$119,876,000
(2015: HK$307,190,000), in aggregate, in respect
of the Group’'s available-for-sale investments was
recognised as other comprehensive income for the
year, of which fair value loss of HK$490,000 (2015:
gain of HK$19,091,000) and HK$134,107,000
(2015: HK$311,137,000) were reclassified from other
comprehensive income to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss for the year on derecognition and
impairment, respectively.

The fair values of certain of the unlisted available-for-sale
investments have been estimated using valuation
techniques based on assumptions that are supported by
observable market prices or rates. The valuation requires
the directors to make estimates about the expected
future cash flows including expected future dividends,
the risk-free rate and the credit spread of the underlying
shares. The directors believe that the estimated fair
values resulting from the valuation techniques, which
are recorded in the consolidated statement of financial
position, and the related changes in fair value, which are
recorded in other comprehensive income, are reasonable,
and that they were the most appropriate values at the
end of the reporting period.

20.
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
REIfZE TEEREZER (58) BRAA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mt &

31 December 2016 —E— X F+_-_A=+—H

21.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 21. TE&mI A
2016 2015
=F-REF e
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Non-current assets: IERBEE
PMH Derivatives (note (a)) RATEIERITETA
(B1iz(a) 9,277 90,444
AVIC Joy Derivative (note (b)) ERERSTETIA
(Me# b)) 2,061 29,452
11,338 119,896

The Group's derivative financial instruments are
managed and their performance is evaluated on a fair
value basis. Any fair value gain or loss is recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The fair values of the derivative financial instruments
have been estimated using valuation techniques based
on assumptions that are supported by observable market
prices or rates. The valuations require the directors to
make estimates, including expected cash flows and
volatility of the underlying securities. The directors
believe that the estimated fair values resulting from
the valuation technique, which are recorded in the
consolidated statement of financial position, and the
related changes in fair value, which are recorded in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, are reasonable,
and that they are the most appropriate values at the end
of the reporting period.
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
PEfZE TEEBREZER (§8) GRAH

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mi &

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

Notes:

(@) The PMH Derivatives represent the derivatives embedded
in PMH Convertible Bonds as detailed in note 20(a) to the
financial statements.

As at 31 December 2016, the fair value of PMH Derivatives
was stated at HK$9,277,000 (2015: HK$90,444,000) based
on a valuation performed by an independent professionally
qualified valuer, and a fair value loss of HK$81,167,000
(2015: gain of HK$40,868,000) in respect of PMH
Derivatives was recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss for the year.

(b) AVIC Joy Derivative represents the derivative embedded
in AVIC Joy Convertible Bond as detailed in note 20(b) to
the financial statements. As at 31 December 2016, the fair
value of AVIC Joy Derivative was stated at HK$2,061,000
(2015: HK$29,452,000) based on a valuation performed by
an independent professionally qualified valuer, and a fair
value loss of HK$27,391,000 (2015: HK$12,722,000) was
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
for the year.

During the year, aggregate fair value loss of
HK$108,558,000 (2015: gain of HK$28,146,000) in
respect of the Group’s derivative financial instruments
was recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss for the year.
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
REIfZE TEEREZER (58) BRAA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mt &

31 December 2016 —E— X F+_-_A=+—H

22. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT AND 22. BRAFYERFEHEZETK

COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE LS
The analysis of the costs of the Group’s properties under AEEBMRFPREZERTYERSBED
development and completed properties held for sale EZETERYMEZRESTWT -

situated in the PRC is as follows:

2016 2015
—E-RF —E—ARF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Properties under development TEERUL Bl 2 B R AP
expected to be recovered:
Within one year —FR 1,239,303 -
After one year —FE P 2,150,603 3,334,352
3,389,906 3,334,352
Properties held for sale HBiERE 2E 715,411 736,296
4,105,317 4,070,648
At 31 December 2016, certain of the Group’s properties R-ZB—RE+-A=1+—H Xx&E
under development with an aggregate carrying amount BRE{E#855491,658,082,000/8 L2 & T
of approximately HK$1,658,082,000 were pledged to BRTYELEER - ERAKEIRTT
secure the banking facilities granted to the Group (note EEZER (K17#35@a)) -
35(a)).
23. INVENTORIES 23. =&
2016 2015
—E-RE —ET-ARF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET TFET
Raw materials R¥} - 930
Finished goods BUA% G - 3,634
- 4,564
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
PEfZE TEEBREZER (§8) GRAH

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mi &

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

31 December 2016 —E—"XF+-_A=+—H

BWEZERRARERE

2016 2015
—B-RE —T-hF
HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FET
Trade and bills receivables EWE SRR RER 89,620 188,763
Impairment RIE = (11,685)
89,620 177,078

Less: Trade receivable, W FEWE SRR
non-current portion FETRENER R (20,178) (21,628)
Current portion TEENEL D 69,442 155,450

The Group has different credit policies for different
business operations depending on the requirements of
the markets and businesses in which the subsidiaries
operate. Trade receivables from sale of properties in
respect of the property development and investment
business are payable pursuant to the terms of sale and
purchase agreements. The Group’s trading terms with
its customers for the knitting and textile business and
for the trading business are mainly on credit, except for
new customers, where payment in advance is normally
required. The credit period is generally one month,
extending up to three months for major customers. Each
customer has a maximum credit limit.

The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed
regularly by senior management. In view of the
aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s trade and
bills receivables relate to a large number of diversified
customers, there is no significant concentration of credit
risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements over its trade receivable balances.
Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

AEBTRBHEB ZEEBRETR -
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
REIfZE TEEREZER (58) BRAA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mt &

31 December 2016 —E— X F+_-_A=+—H

24,

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued) 24. EWEZRIFRERE (&)
An aged analysis of the trade and bills receivables as at REBEERR - BREFIERRERIRE
the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice FHHRMBRBEZRRS AT
date and net of provisions, is as follows:
2016 2015
—E-AF —ZT—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Within 1 month — @A R 2,089 168,800
1 to 2 months —Z=MEA - 1,184
2 to 3 months —E={AHA - 2,858
Over 3 months BB =18H 87,531 4,236
89,620 177,078
The movements in the provision for impairment of the FEWE SEZRERE VRBEREZEN
trade and bills receivables are as follows: T
2016 2015
—E-AF —T—h%F
HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET
At beginning of year F1) 11,685 5,361
Disposal of a subsidiary HE BT A A (11,685) -
Impairment losses recognised EHERREERE = 6,871
Exchange realignment PE 5 5% - (547)
At end of year F4R - 11,685

Included in the above provision for impairment of
trade and bills receivables as at 31 December 2015
was a provision for individually impaired trade and bills
receivables of HK$11,685,000 with the same carrying
amount before provision. The individually impaired trade
and bills receivables related to customers that were
in financial difficulties or were in default in principal
payments and were not expected to be recovered.
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
PEfZE TEEBREZER (§8) GRAH

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mi &
31 December 2016 —Z—~"FE+=-A=+—H

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued) 24. EWESENRREE (£)

The aged analysis of the trade and bills receivables that RERRERNEBEERELEKRES
are not individually nor collectively considered to be BERREEZRROTOAT

impaired is as follows:

2016 2015

—E—XRF =R

HK$'000 HK$°000

FET FAET

Neither past due nor impaired AR ER N ARE 22,266 169,984

Less than 1 month past due 80 2R — (& A 21,940 2,858

1 to 3 months past due mE—Z==1EA 45,414 4,236

89,620 177,078

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired RBH AR EZERETZSIRRESL S

relate to a large number of diversified customers for THEER - EEPIWERITENFESE o
whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate C A R R R B ENETS R RS

to a number of independent customers that have a good HAEBREAEBR T BAREZBYER

track record with the Group. Based on past experience, P iBERAF&ER  ARAEERE

the directors of the Company are of the opinion that no 4B R Ay S vk e e (T AR E A

provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these CEEBENES RS IR E

balances as there has not been a significant change in Ar UL E o
credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable.
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REIfZE TEEREZER (58) BRAA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mt &

31 December 2016 —E— X F+_-_A=+—H

25. LOANS TO RELATED COMPANIES 25. MEEBATRMNER
The loan to a related company represents the loan to 5 MEABARIREMNERTIE S A2 IX
HEFELOMEBER AR (" HHEIR"), an associate of (b)) RIBAERDR ([HERIK] - —
an intermediate holding company, which is unsecured, R AR 2 BN T BREMNE
bears interest at 6.15% per annum and is repayable R AEEA . RFEFNXR6ISESF AR
within one year. BR—ERNEE o
As at.31 December 2015, the Iga\r/ws tcilrv?lated coarinpanies RoE—FE+-—A=+—0  HEK
aIsoEF!udeE the Ioan.t‘o il:)?tﬂ%*ﬂ&ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ;fi@ﬁ AN SRR AEEL LA
(”il:,?\%%ﬂhflli”), a subsidiary of the. joint venture of the 21 B 2 Sk S BN B R A IR B
Group, Whollch was unseETredftﬁore interest at Z.l?%l per AT (T EBEAIE]) B EH S A
annum and was repayable within one year; and the loan i . e T A
to FSEBEREERMARAN" HEERER"), an FOLTR R REE ISR B AR
associate of the joint venture of the Group, which was ,,,,EWEE Y ,&rﬁj$7ﬁ - E,zf "2
unsecured, bore interest at 5.25% per annum and was %Qﬁ{;l&ﬂﬁﬁ%%ﬁ '%\&@iﬁ_ﬁﬁ?
repayable within one year. During the year, impairment =] HL;iEHﬁ%%%D %?i\m’g‘?k \' G
losses of HK$12,608,000 (note 6) have been recognised ﬁﬁ%\;&¢$‘J$E'\25Ei’?&€m\_
for the loans to JtREEFEE and EIGEHE S because EFWE’E c FA Eﬁiﬂit?@%\%ﬂﬁ;)}%{
JEFRBERIE has been loss-making in recent years and ?E%%%E%E}‘Jg‘ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ;ﬁ_ﬂﬁ
HIEERE S was liquidated during the year ended 31 12,608,000/ 7T (A7it6) - B R IL R s
December 2016, and the related loans have then been Mg AT —EBHEA R EBERE SR
written off. HE-_Z—R"F+-_A=+—HLFE
BHE - BEEENRERD IS -
Particulars of loans to related companies, disclosed RIEEB R REPISE383(1)(d) 5 K 2 A
pursuant to 383(1)(d) of the Hong Kong Companies (BFEEZEENmER) ROIFE3FMHFEZ
Ordinance and Part 3 of the Companies (Disclosure of MR A RREN ERFEHIIAT
Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, are
as follows:
Maximum At 31 Maximum
amount  December amount
At outstanding  2015and outstanding At
31 December during 1 January during 1 January
2016 the year 2016 prior year 2015
i
“E-1F
R tZA
“E-RE =+—Bk B IS
+=B FhkAE ZT-~F FE&s Z—T-1%
=t-B AKFEE —-A-B KXFEE —A-H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET TET TET TET
HAER HHER 16,760 16,760 16,272 18,750 18,750
tRBNE ERBMNE - 958 958 1,000 1,000
LEERES LBERER - 11,976 11,976 11,976 -
16,760 29,206 19,750
Less: Non-current portion A EREEHR - (11,976) (18,750)
Current portion EEED 16,760 17,230 1,000
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
PEfZE TEEBREZER (§8) GRAH

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mi &
31 December 2016 —Z—~"FE+=-A=+—H

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 26. ANFIE > HERHMBERERR
RECEIVABLES

2016 2015

—E-RF —E—ARF
HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Prepayments A IR 27,571 50,530
Deposits and other receivables Be KA MR 52,516 85,376
Impairment A (37,109) (73,914)
42,978 61,992
Less: Prepayments, non-current portion B AR - FERBE = (278)
Current portion meE D 42,978 61,714

Deposits and other receivables that were not impaired
relate to receivables for which there is no recent history

of default.

The movements in the provision for impairment of

W RRE 2 & K B Al B AR 08 IR
RO K S B R YR

TR SR IR Be B At B KRR R 2 BB B e

prepayments and other receivables are as follows: AT
2016 2015
ZE-XRF —E—AfF
HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FAET
At beginning of year F9] 73,914 38,880
Disposal of a subsidiary i BT A Al (38,501) -

Reclassified from loans to an B E R aRENER

associate (note 18) BN (K77E18) = 41,916
Impairment losses recognised/(reversed) BRI (BE) REEE 4,345 (6,152)
Exchange realignment (R (2,649) (730)
At end of year FE 37,109 73,914
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
REIfZE TEEREZER (58) BRAA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mt &

31 December 2016 —E— X F+_-_A=+—H

26.

27.

28.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 26. ANFIE - RERHEMEWIERR
RECEIVABLES (continued) (#)
Included in the above provision for impairment is a AU ERE T E R B RE 2 E A U
provision for individually impaired other receivables of BR 3k 2 #44%37,109,0008 0 (ZF— 1
HK$37,109,000 (2015: HK$40,312,000), with the same % : 40,312,000/ 7T) - HE B AT 2 AR
carrying amounts before provision. As at 31 December EEMRAR - R_T-—AF+-A=+—
2015, the provision for impairment of prepayments B - BT 3RI8 B H e 48R 5k 2 R (B B
and other receivables also included full provision for HEITREG THEN CENRIEBLZEH
impaired prepayments to suppliers of HK$15,331,000 415,331,000 T MR EIH B 28N
and prepayments for an investment project of FRIBZ 2 HUE#18,271,0008 7T ° B R
HK$18,271,000. Both the impaired prepayments to BzHrTHERRIEEEEB 2 FENRIAE
suppliers and for the investment project arose from the HEEBHEBRNBES - BRBEZS
knitting and textile business. The impaired prepayments T E P 2 TR RIS N T e B 7 IR 2
to suppliers related to suppliers that were in financial AR RER - TRER A AULE - REIEE
difficulties and were not expected to be recovered. The BRNFENREEAREERAERE
prepayment for the investment project was impaired RABBEKESEIRE -
as, in the opinion of the directors, its cost exceeded its
recoverable amount.
EQUITY INVESTMENT AT FAIR VALUE 27. BAFEFABRBZRARE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
2016 2015
—B-XF —T—NfF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Listed equity investment, at market value  FTRAIKRE W 87,619 285,713

The above equity investment is managed and its
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis. The
Group designated this investment as a financial asset at
fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition.

PREPAID TAXES

Balance represents taxes and surcharges prepaid for the
sales deposits received from pre-sales of properties in
the PRC.
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
PEfZE TEEBREZER (§8) GRAH

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mi &

31 December 2016 —E—"XF+-_A=+—H

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 29. RERREZFEURERER
PLEDGED DEPOSITS
2016 2015
—F-REF i
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Time deposits TEIFEX 298,710 12,335
Less: Pledged short term time deposits B LR EAERITEEm T A
for short term banking facilities IR 2 58 B BifE X
(note 35(b)(iii) (B 5E35(b)iii) = (359)
298,710 11,976
Cash and bank balances RENBITETF 307,215 461,354
Cash and cash equivalents B NESEE 605,925 473,330

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances and time deposits of the Group denominated
in Renminbi (“RMB"”) amounted to HK$253,965,000
(2015: HK$120,275,000). The RMB is not freely
convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted
to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are
made for varying periods of between one day and one
year depending on the immediate cash requirements of
the Group, and earn interest at the respective short term
time deposit rates. The bank balances and time deposits
are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent
history of default.

RBREPR AEBUARE AR
B iEzReREBTETREHT
M /253,965,000 7L (Z & — R F -
120,275,000 7T) - AR B HE
BREEMEY - AWMBRESPBE A2 I
EERGD LR  SERNEEER
EAEEEBERERRIING KR
(B2 RITBARE LR AHMEE -

RITFREEARITERMNEGFENF
B XL - BFAKRENARERSH
ko FENF—HE-—FETIEHM[H
RHEHER  WIREBEHERER
MEEE - RITBEFREREFRIEN
RETEAHE R RS2 A5 B IR E 2 RTT
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
REIfZE TEEREZER (58) BRAA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mt &

31 December 2016 —E— X F+_-_A=+—H

30.

31.

32.

Annual Report 2016 ==

BALANCES WITH NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The balances are unsecured, non-interest-bearing and
have no fixed terms of repayment.

BALANCES WITH AN INTERMEDIATE
HOLDING COMPANY

The loans from an intermediate holding company are
unsecured, bear interest at 6% (2015: 10%) per annum
and are not repayable within one year.

The amount due from/to an intermediate holding
company is unsecured, non-interest-bearing and has no
fixed terms of repayment.

BALANCES WITH FELLOW SUBSIDIARIES

All amounts due from fellow subsidiaries are unsecured,
non-interest-bearing and repayable within one year
except that an amount due from a fellow subsidiary
of HK$3,178,000 as at 31
repayable on 31 January 2017 and had been included in

December 2015 was

non-current assets as at 31 December 2015.

The amounts due to fellow subsidiaries are unsecured,
non-interest-bearing and have no fixed terms of
repayment.

The loans from fellow subsidiaries are unsecured and
bear interest at 6% (2015: 10%) per annum.

The loans from a fellow subsidiary which are not
repayable within one year were included in the Group's
non-current liabilities. The loans from fellow subsidiaries
which are repayable within one year were included in
the Group’s current liabilities.

—NFER

30.

31.

32.

ENBLARZFERRR &6

AAERTYEERR . AR AEEEEE
HARR -

BREER AT Z A8

KB REERA
FHE6E (ZF—
BAR—FREE -

RIME R A®EINT - 1%
RAFE:108) ;HER

FEU A< R PR R 2 B FROE R SRR
TP EREETERDR -

BEERNE QR 2 &6

FrBERWRZWEA *—x BREEM -
TErERABER—FRNEE  HRZ=ZZ
ﬁ¢+fﬂ:+—aﬁ§\uﬁz@§m¢%ﬂﬁ
FKIE3,178,0008 TLhR SN + sZKIAAR =
T—tHF—HA=1T—HEE YE2FA
—E-RF+-_A=+—BZkRHE
ENR -

ENRAMBRRRASERR - 5t
EREETEEDRR -
KERZMBARNERAEER 2

FHZX6E (ZT—0F : 10E) R -

BEANR—FABEZXRERRMERF

MERFARNEEFERPEE - AR —
FREEZRE R ZMNE QBN E R

)\$%.m§bﬁ1ﬁ °©
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
PEfZE TEEBREZER (§8) GRAH

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mi &
31 December 2016 —Z—~"FE+=-A=+—H

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

An aged analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the

end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date,

is as follows:

33. BENEZERRRERE

RBERK > BHESERRERIZE

SEMZ RO

2016 2015

—E—XRF =R

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

Within 1 month —@ANAN 10,249 80,197
1 to 2 months —Z=m1{EA 28,005 2,307
2 to 3 months —z==1{@A - 1,841
Over 3 months BB =18 H 2,959 8,013
41,213 92,358

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are
normally settled on 90-day terms.

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

ZERMNE SRR T B R —#&RI%Z90
HHRBE -

34. HtENREREFER

2016 2015

= —

HK$°000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Other payables H A FE T FRIE 10,918 18,416
Accruals FEETER 6,305 14,328
17,223 32,744

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an

average term of three months.

HEMRBE A E R FEHR A=

@A -
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
REIfZE TEEREZER (58) BRAA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mt &
31 December 2016 —Z—~FE+=-A=+—H

35. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 35. :TEHRITER
2016 2015
ZE-RE “T-RHF
Effective Effective
interest interest

rate (%) Maturity HK$'000 rate (%) Maturity HK$'000
BERIE(%) F#mA FET BBEFE%) EEd= FET

Current: e
Bank loans - secured  $R1TEH — HEA - - - 5.88-7.275 2016 37,964
“ERF
Non-current: R
Bank loans - secured  fR{TEFH — AL 5.4625 2018 230,134 - - -
—E-N\f

Notes: Wiat -

(@  As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s banking facilities @ RZF-AF+ZA=+—8 A%
were secured by pledges of certain of the Group's B2 SRITEE AR IR A & B AR W 48 70
properties under development with an aggregate carrying 1,658,082,000/& 7T (—F — fLF : &)
value of HK$1,658,082,000 (2015: Nil) (note 22). ZETHRPMEERER (Hat22) -

(b) As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s banking facilities had (b) R-ZF-—RF+-A=+—H ~%E
also been secured by: ZIRTTIEEU TS AERER :

(i) a pledge of the Group’s building in Mainland China (i) 4R 2R 5 (B AR T $E 3,148,000
with net book value of HK$3,148,000 (note 13); BILZ N BN ZEF (M5T

13) s

(ii) a pledge of the Group's leasehold land in Mainland (i) R 2R 5 [ AR T %18 2,885,000
China with net book value of HK$2,885,000 (note BLZRHEAMZ BE i
15); (Hii#15)

(iii) pledges of certain of the Group's short term time (iif) HEIRA S B A 8359,000/8 L2
deposits amounting to HK$359,000 (note 29); and ATRBERER (MiT29)

%

(iv) pledges of certain properties owned by a director (iv) KRB —HMNBRARICES -
of a subsidiary, his spouse, his spouse’s family HEM® HEBIREXER
member and his acquaintance. HAPTEEZETWE

As at 31 December 2015, a director of a subsidiary, the R-F-RF+-A=+—8 —HH

spouse of the director, the spouse’s acquaintances and the BRARZEERZERZEM  ZEMB

companies controlled by the acquaintances had guaranteed ZAANERZERANEZ AR AE

repayment of certain of the Group’s bank borrowings [ /5 %£23,952,000/& 7T 2 & TIR1TE K

amounting to HK$23,952,000. ZEEIRHAELR

(0 All bank borrowings are denominated in RMB. (© FRASRITEEIUAAREEE -
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
PEfZE TEEBREZER (§8) GRAH

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mi &

31 December 2016 —E—"XF+-_A=+—H

DEFERRED TAX 36. ELEBIE
The movements in the Group's deferred tax liabilities AEERLEHBEEEREERNFALE
and assets during the year are as follows: N

Deferred tax liabilities

EEHEAE
Fair value
adjustments
Revaluation arising
of from
investment acquisition
properties of subsidiaries Total
WEB I A Al
BEEW
REMEZEM ATFEAR &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FHET FAET FAET
At 1 January 2015 RZZE—RF—A—H - 262,583 262,583
Deferred tax charged/(credited) FERHE S (GEA)
to the statement of profit or Bk ZIELERE
loss during the year 189 (66,385) (66,196)
Exchange realignment P o, L (7) (9,179) (9,186)
At 31 December 2015 and RZZE—RF+—-A8
1 January 2016 —t—HERZZE—RF
—H—H 182 187,019 187,201
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 41) HEHE QR
(Hiat41) = (548) (548)
Deferred tax credited to FRFTAEBREXZ
the statement of profit or EAET IR
loss during the year (182) (3,026) (3,208)
Exchange realignment PE 5 F % - (11,686) (11,686)
RZT—RF+ZA
Gross deferred tax liabilities at =+—HZELERHIEA
31 December 2016 BERR - 171,759 171,759
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
REIfZE TEEREZER (58) BRAA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mt &

31 December 2016 —E— X F+_-_A=+—H

36. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 36. EBELEHIE (&)
The movements in the Group's deferred tax liabilities AEERLEHBEEEREENFALE
and assets during the year are as follows: (continued) BT : (&)

Deferred tax assets

BEREEE
Losses
available for
offsetting
Revaluation against
of future
investment Provision taxable
properties for LAT profits Total
AT R 3 85 R 3R
REME TR ER FER B R
ZEMh B% B8 &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
& FET & FET
At 1 January 2015 R-ZE—RF—A—H - - 44,030 44,030
Deferred tax credited/ FREEA/(BR)
(charged) to the BRERZELHE
statement of profit or
loss during the year - 6,002 (4,914) 1,088
Exchange realignment [E N A - (216) (1,668) (1,884)
At 31 December 2015 R-ZE—RF+—-A
and 1 January 2016 —+—HERZE—RF
—HA—H = 5,786 37,448 43,234
Deferred tax credited to FRFABREZ
the statement of profit ELERITE
or loss during the year 8,330 473 3,264 12,067
Exchange realignment [E 5 AR (372) (409) (2,656) (3,437)
Gross deferred tax assets R ZZT—XE+ A
at 31 December 2016 =+ —HZELEHE
BERH 7,958 5,850 38,056 51,864
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36.

AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited

TEMZETERREZER (F8) ARLA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mi &

DEFERRED TAX (continued)

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets
and liabilities have been offset in the statement of
financial position. The following is an analysis of
the deferred tax balances of the Group for financial
reporting purposes:

31 December 2016 —E—"XF+-_A=+—H

36. EEFIE (&)

BITEINR  ETELEHEAEERAE
ERM IR KFE - AT RAEE
BT IR R B RS R P E D
e

2016 2015
ZE-XRF —E—hF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Net deferred tax assets recognised in REFE MR RER 2
the consolidated statement of BRI EEFRE
financial position 10,025 9,685
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in REB AR IER
the consolidated statement of RIETHIEE EF5
financial position (129,920) (153,652)
(119,895) (143,967)

At 31 December 2016, the Group had aggregate
tax losses arising in Hong Kong of approximately
HK$15,456,000 (2015: HK$15,456,000) that are
available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable
profits of the companies in which the losses arose and
tax losses arising in Mainland China of HK$14,934,000
(2015: HK$528,000) that will expire in one to five years
for offsetting against future taxable profits. Deferred
tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these
losses as they have arisen in the companies that have
been loss-making for some time and it is not considered
probable that taxable profits will be available against
which the tax losses can be utilised.

RZEBE-XRE+-_A=+—8 K
EETERELECHEBEREY
#15,456,0008 T (= T — 7 F:
15,456,000/ 7T) + 0] f% R B A /E 4K 8
LIREIB AR 2 R RERBOER + R
W B A4 2 T 1E JE5 514,934,000%8
T (ZZT—FH4F :528,00087L) * AR
—ZERAFAREEERRERBRF
HRZEBERERFHHEBEZA
A+ i B R AR B FE R B ) A
HEAFAEEE ST ERRELTH
BEE -
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REIfZE TEEREZER (58) BRAA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mt &

31 December 2016 —E— X F+_-_A=+—H

36.

DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in Mainland China. The requirement is
effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings
after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate
may be applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland
China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For
the Group, the applicable rates range from 5% to 10%.
The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on
dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established in
Mainland China in respect of earnings generated from 1
January 2008.

At 31 December 2016, no deferred tax has been
recognised for withholding taxes that would be
payable on the unremitted earnings that are subject
to withholding taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries, joint
venture and associates established in Mainland China.
In the opinion of the directors, it is not probable that
these subsidiaries, joint venture and associates will
distribute such earnings in the foreseeable future. As at
31 December 2016, the aggregate amount of temporary
differences of approximately HK$117,573,000 (2015:
HK$346,729,000) is associated with investments in
subsidiaries in Mainland China for which deferred tax
liabilities have not been recognised.

There are no income tax consequences attaching
to the payment of dividends by the Company to its
shareholders.
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BRI B P EETE - B A A
SMZINERERINEIEEET IR ZRE
AEKI0%TEHNT - ZHER_ZEE
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FHZA=t+—HAz2HE - WPEA
BN 3 B A 2 AR R T B B U
E S AIERARK ZEINRE - $AE
Eims  EAMNER%EI0% - A%
ERE A AT R E A2 KB A A
RE_TENF-—A—ABELEZKE
By ik 2 A% BAYETEHOH -

RZEBE—XRF+_A=+—H LER
AEBEFEAMKLZHBEAR &
ERR RIS AR 2 ARE L WS FTER
ZTENMERELERIE - EERA - Z
EMBERE - AEAA RBEARTAK
SHEARBRDERZERTD - RZF—
ANE+TZA=Z+—H WABRRFEA
HZMBEARZIRERRAZELTHEA
BB EEA £ A117,573,000%8
T (ZZE—F : 346,729,000/ 7T) °
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited

TEMZETERREZER (F8) ARLA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mi &

31 December 2016 —E—"XF+-_A=+—H

SHARE CAPITAL 37. BAR
Shares
[ 8
2016 2015
—E-REF —E—RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Authorised: JRIE ¢
10,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 10,000,000,000 & F A% E1E
HK$0.10 each 0.10% 7L 2 LAk 1,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRAR
5,519,591,000 ordinary shares of 5,519,591,000 FAXEE
HK$0.10 each 0.108 T2 LAk 551,959 551,959

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

38.

At the annual general meeting held on 28 May 2014,

the Company adopted a share option scheme (the

“Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and

rewards to eligible participants to contribute to the

business development and growth of the Group and

to enable the Group to recruit high-calibre employees

and attract or retain human resources that are valuable

to the Group. Since the adoption of the Scheme, no

options have been granted, exercised, lapsed, cancelled

or outstanding thereunder as at 31 December 2016.

Major terms of the Scheme include:

1. The purpose of the Scheme is to provide

incentives to the participants.

2. The participants of the Scheme are any individual

being employees, officers or consultants of the

Company or any of its subsidiaries including

any executive or non-executive directors thereof

whether employed in Hong Kong or any part of

the world.

BT E

RIEBE—NERA-+N\BHRITZRE
BFERE L ARARMNT —BRERE
FTE| ([5%ETE]) - B REARERE %
BEREAREHERMZEGERKRSEE
RELBE & EEE) - A AR e IE1E
BHFEEBIUWSIIHEBEHAEEABE
B2ZAL - BERMFZETEILR - R=ZF
—NF+ZA=+—8 HMEREZ
B - 1T KRR FESESMARITE
2 HEARE o

ZETBlZ EBIERBHE

1. ZET R EMSHE R -

2. ZAtBlz2HEBRNRAHEME
KB A AR B okt R & R
AZREE "EBExEREE

AL BREREMATIIERT
%o
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
REIfZE TEEREZER (58) BRAA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mt &

31 December 2016 —E— X F+_-_A=+—H

BRESTE (2

ZRTEZ T B IRRERE - (B)

38. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 38.

Major terms of the Scheme include: (continued)

192

The total number of shares of the Company (the
“Shares”) which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the Scheme,
together with all options to be granted under
any other share option schemes of any member
of the Group, must not in aggregate represent
more than 10% of the total number of the
Shares in issue as at the date of adoption of the
Scheme. The Company may refresh this 10%
limit at any time subject to prior approval given
by its shareholders at a general meeting. The
overall limit on the total number of Shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under
the Scheme, together with all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under
any other share option schemes of any member
of the Group, must not exceed 30% of the total
number of the Shares in issue from time to time.
No options may be granted under the Scheme
and any other share option schemes of any
member of the Group if such grant will result
in the said 30% limit being exceeded. As at the
date of this annual report, the total number of
securities available for issue under the Scheme is
461,959,100 Shares, representing approximately
8.37% of the total number of the Shares in issue
as at the date of this annual report.

The total number of Shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the options (whether
exercised, cancelled or outstanding) granted or
to be granted under the Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company to each
eligible participant under the Scheme in any
12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the total
number of the Shares in issue as at the proposed
grant date.
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RITERBZTER L AR
Bt ERBERNEEBEMKE
A B A ) B A B AR A AT B R
ZHTEBREmMAEETIAR
ARG, ([RRm]) B T8
MR ZATEIRME A BITRG
BB Z10% > ARG BERE
HZ10% R HERBRREKX
gLERRELHE - AITEIR
B g8 mERITE LA
BRI AR - ERITEIRE
REBERKE AR EREAD
REAR RS BB B M & R AT 2 T
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited

TEMZETERREZER (F8) ARLA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mi &

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Major terms of the Scheme include: (continued)

An option may be exercised in accordance with
the terms of the Scheme at any time during a
period of 10 years commencing on the date
which the Board may determine at its discretion
but such date shall not be earlier than three
months after the date of the grant of such option
is made.

An option granted shall remain open for
acceptance by eligible participants for a period
of 28 days from the date of the grant of such
option together with a non-refundable payment
of HK$1.00.

The exercise price of an option shall be the
highest of:

(a) the closing price of the Shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet
on the date of the grant of the option,
which must be a business day;

(b) the average of the closing prices of the
Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of
the grant (subject to acceptance) of the
option; and

(c) the nominal value of the Shares.

The Scheme shall be valid and effective for a
period of 10 years commencing on 28 May
2014 and thereafter for as long as there are
outstanding options granted and accepted
pursuant thereto prior to the expiration of the
said 10-year period and in order to give effect to
the exercise of any such options.

31 December 2016 —E—"XF+-_A=+—H

38. BRESTE (&)

ZETElZ T B IRRERE - (B)

5. B R IEZAT 8 2 RN A
ExedNBEETHA S (HEME
MRS ENERERER
AHR=1EA) €5t +FHER
BERFTTEE ©

6. R R EREN K L B H1%28H
HENER AT HEe AR HEEE
- WA AR B FIAT.00
BT e

7. BREZTFEEEATIZES
%

(a) MERERLAH (AR
EER) BRXAEHARE
RS2 W E

(b)) REZBERERDL (RE
&) AEE REE XA
RE X8 A RERHMD
ZBRA R TE - K

(0  B{EE-

8. ZAtEAR-E-MERA TN
HEFtFHEAR LA
R L+ 4 B E m AT 2 5% H &
B2 MARTTR BN RIATE -
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REIfZE TEEREZER (58) BRAA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mt &

31 December 2016 —E— X F+_-_A=+—H

38.

39.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Share options did not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

At the end of the reporting period and at the date of
approval of these financial statements, there were no
share options outstanding (2015: Nil).

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
pages 68 to 71 of this annual report.

Pursuant to the articles of association of certain
subsidiaries operating as foreign-owned enterprises in
Mainland China and the relevant PRC Company Law,
the subsidiaries shall make an allocation from their
profit after tax at the rate of 10% to the statutory
surplus reserve fund, until such reserve reaches 50%
of the registered capital of the subsidiaries. Part of
the statutory surplus reserve may be capitalised as
the subsidiaries’ registered capital, provided that the
remaining balance after the capitalisation is not less than
25% of the registered capital of the subsidiaries. The
statutory reserve will be reclassified to retained profits
upon the disposal of the subsidiaries.
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40.

AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited

TEMZETERREZER (F8) ARLA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mi &

PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY WITH

31 December 2016 —E—"XF+-_A=+—H

40. FERFEREDZHZEWS

MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS NG
Details of the Group’s subsidiary that has material BERFERER 2 AEEBWEB QR
non-controlling interests are set out below: BEWBEAT -
2016 2015
—E-AF —T-hF
Percentage of equity interest held by RNEMFEFERERFEN
non-controlling interests of A& fi%E RAEZBE DL 47.92% 47.92%
2016 2015
—EB—XRE -t e
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Profit/(loss) for the year allocated to DT REMEIEE R E S
non-controlling interests of A1 ZARFRF S (EE) (20,560) 48,775
Dividend paid to non-controlling B AREME IR RS
interests of KB - -
Accumulated balances of non-controlling AR B HIR) AEME
interests of A:EMEE at the FEIERR s RAE MR
reporting date 548,868 611,218
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
REIfZE TEEREZER (58) BRAA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mt &
31 December 2016 —Z—~FE+=-A=+—H

40. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY WITH 40. FERFERERZIZENS
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS AT (&)
(continued)
The following table illustrates the summarised financial TRFAE LB R R A% E RS
information of the above subsidiary. The amounts Z o IEENSBELARNBRERNAEHE
disclosed are before any inter-company eliminations: Cokiiniz
RE M
2016 2015
—EB—XRE —E—hF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FEIT
Revenue Wz 102,786 2,147,344
Cost of sales and total expenses SHER AN M AERM S (145,691) (2,045,561)
Profit/(loss) for the year REFR (E38) (42,905) 101,783
Total comprehensive income for the year  ANF2HE AR (130,113) 45,969
Current assets MENEE 3,424,363 3,314,071
Non-current assets EMENEE 368,913 430,767
Current liabilities MEBA & (1,606,924) (625,068)
Non-current liabilities EmeaE (1,040,968) (1,844,273)
Net cash flows from operating activities KEEHEAVIRGR=E 55 553,053 159,470
Net cash flows from investing activities KEEHEECREREFHE — -
Net cash flows from financing activities B EHELE RS RE T (414,003) (152,375)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 8% NIR &S (EIEINFRE 139,050 7,095
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41.

DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

During the year, the Group disposed of its 51% equity
interest in Zhejiang Dongyang Jinniu. An analysis of the

AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited

TEMZETERREZER (F8) ARLA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mi &

31 December 2016 —E—"XF+-_A=+—H

41. HEMBRQE

TR AEELEEREESI %R AHE
BmZATIREET - BRLEZ2 0

disposal is as follows: N
2016 2015
—E-ARF —T—0fF
Notes HK$’000 HK$7000
k3 FET FEIT
Net assets disposed of: HEZEEFHE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB MR 13 3,528 -
Prepaid land lease payments AL ER 15 2,872 -
Intangible asset BEAE 16 285 -
Inventories ey 4,062 -
Trade receivables FEWE 5 8RR 3,151 -
Prepayments, deposits and ENHIE - B2k
other receivables HAth fE AR 5% 2,174 -
Pledged time deposits 2R E B R 3,174 -
Cash and cash equivalents RekfleEE 1,934 -
Due to a non-controlling ENHEA R Z
shareholder of a subsidiary FEPE PR AR B (18) -
Trade and bills payables ERTE SRR MEER (13,420) -
Other payables and accruals H fth B 5B R FEEH B A (19,017) -
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FFERITER (37,964) -
Tax payable FERIBEIE (371) -
Deferred tax liabilities RIETRIEE & 36 (548) -
Non-controlling interests SRR = 24,578 -
(25,580) -
Exchange fluctuation reserve P& R R B (1,223) -
(26,803) -
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HEMB AR ZFE 11 32,453 -
5,650 -
Satisfied by: XA
Cash REXM 5,650 -
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
REIfZE TEEREZER (58) BRAA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mt &
31 December 2016 —ZE— R F+_-_A=+—H

41. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued) 41.

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash

HEMBLAR (&)

ERTENRBARNE e RRSEFER
equivalents in respect of the disposal of a subsidiary is as NFEDWT -

follows:

2016 2015
—E-AF —T-RF
HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FEIT
Cash consideration REREB 5,650 -
Cash and bank balances disposed of & 2R e RRITHER (1,934) -
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in &8 EME QT
respect of the disposal of a subsidiary ReERBeFERNFE 3,716 -
42. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 42. REHEORH
(a) As lessor (a) MEAHBA

AEBRBLEHEOLHHER
BEWE (MBHRRWT14) - &
EMRBR—ZE1TF - BOKKR—
BIMERBFPHRXRES RATE
REBEFRTHAERHERS -

The Group leases its investment properties (note
14 to the financial statements) under operating
lease arrangements, with leases negotiated for
terms ranging from 1 to 10 years. The terms of
the leases generally also require the tenants to
pay security deposits and provide for periodic
rent adjustments according to the then prevailing
market conditions.

At 31 December 2016, the Group had total future
minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable
operating leases with its tenants falling due as
follows:

R-F-—R"F+-_A=+—8"
RIFEBPETZ 2 TR BEHE =
B# AEEBAZARENR
EEWESEBEHIIAT

2016 2015

—E-REF —E—hF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Within one year —F R 19,441 11,908
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_FZFERE

(RREERMT) 39,724 19,483

After five years AFE 7,385 9,757

66,550 41,148
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited

TEMZETERREZER (F8) ARLA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mi &
31 December 2016 —Z—~"FE+=-A=+—H

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 42, REMNZTH (&)
(continued)
(b) As lessee (b) {EHRFEFMAA

The Group leases certain of its office premises
under non-cancellable operating lease
arrangements with terms ranging from one to —E==fF-
three years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
had total future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases falling due as

AREERBETATHELEHOR
BFHEBERAEYE  HMAH

RI|BEHR - RENFATEH
B ARG E ML - NE
EFARREORERNES®

follows: BERINT -
2016 2015
—E-RF —E—ARF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Within one year —F R - 3,677
In the second to fifth years, inclusive $F_-_ZE01F (BIEERE
M) - 1,367
- 5,044
COMMITMENTS 43. EIE
In addition to the operating lease commitments in note K E ST sF42(b) 2 &2 F 4 AFESN » K
42(b) above, the Group had the following commitments EERRE ARG A TR
at the end of the reporting period:
2016 2015
—E-RE —T—hF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FEIT
Contracted, but not provided for: ERTAV B A R BE A
Establishment of a joint venture (note) [PAVA=RWNCIRE 15z ) - 47,904
Property development expenditure MIERE 328,655 338,402
328,655 386,306
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
REIfZE TEEREZER (58) BRAA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mt &

31 December 2016 —E— X F+_-_A=+—H

43. COMMITMENTS (continued) 43. E¥E (&

Note: et -

On 4 January 2006, Sino-Aviation Investments, a wholly-owned RZZETRE—AEBE  ARAZ2EMREBER
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a joint venture agreement AJSino-Aviation Investments Limited 2282 R] 2
(the “JV Agreement”) with AVIC International, a substantial TERERPMBERKEBRETE (£F) BR
shareholder of the Company, and Chengdu Aircraft Industry (Group) EERAT ([RERE]) 5T &% hE ([6EH
Corporation Ltd. (“Chengdu Aircraft”), for the establishment of a #FD O OUARY—ZREERA REHARKS
joint venture to engage in the research and development, design BB 2 AR - RRET R BUIE - LA MR R AR B R Al
and manufacture of parts and components for commercial aircraft, fR7% - IBIEEEWHE  AEARIZHEEMERS
and provision of related technical services. According to the JV 100,000,0007C A R ¥ (55 5447120,000,0007%
Agreement, the total registered capital of the joint venture was JC) © H A Sino-Aviation Investments + /i BB
RMB100 million (equivalent to approximately HK$120 million), of MR BB S 2 B E40% ~ 15% N45% © &
which 40%, 15% and 45% respectively, would be contributed LIRHEAFUTEHEREFEED  B1E0O=
by Sino-Aviation Investments, AVIC International and Chengdu FEBESAIE - R>NVESERTEKEZ
Aircraft. The JV Agreement was conditional upon (i) the internal B -BE_ZT—RAF+T_A=1T—H BHRE
approval obtained by each of the three parties; and (i) the approval AR R AREN - FLZE EHE B RER -

from the relevant PRC authorities. As at 31 December 2015, the JV
Agreement had not become effective as the conditions stated above
had not been fulfilled.

During the year, all parties entered into a termination agreement to FER - FARIHN AR IEHZE AR LS &
terminate the JV Agreement, details of which have been disclosed - ABFBERARR ZE—ARFLA=T+H
in the Company’s announcement dated 30 September 2016. ZRERE -
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
PEfZE TEEBREZER (§8) GRAH

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mi &

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

31 December 2016 —E—"XF+-_A=+—H

44, HAREE

At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities R EBR - WA BFHRERAIE L BE
not provided for in the financial statements were as ZHABBENT
follows:
2016 2015
—E-XE —E—h0F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FEr

Guarantee given to banks for housing
loans extended by the banks to the
purchasers of the Group’s properties

IAREMEZBEFTEER

FEEERMABITREZ
ER - EREHERE

for a period from the date of loans BRZBREERESR

being granted to the purchasers up to MEREEAIE

the date of issuance of property title

certificates to the purchasers 76,085 36,489
The fair value of the guarantees is not significant ZERZATFELTER MEEER
and the directors consider that in case of default in R B—EBEREREF - B@EMEZT
payments by the purchasers, the net realisable value FRFERCHAEEEERR 2ERK
of the related properties will be sufficient to cover the A& A REFFEFMENK - Bt I KRR
repayment of the outstanding loan principals together BHE-Z—R"F+-_A=1T—HILEFE
with the accrued interests and penalties and therefore B HMERZEREARNEE (ZF
no provision for the guarantees has been made in the —hF E) o

financial statements for the year ended 31 December

2016 (2015: Nil).
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
REIfZE TEEREZER (58) BRAA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mt &
31 December 2016 —Z—~FE+=-A=+—H

45. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 45,

(a) In addition to the transactions described
elsewhere in these financial statements, the

BB L RS

(@) BUBRERAZBMRZZHIN
AREBERFRSETATEE)

Group had the following transactions with related R -
parties during the year:
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—RF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
k=3 FET FET
Interest income on loans to FEE A RIRENER
related companies ZHBUWA (i) 1,076 1,994
Interest income on loans to Mg R RRHEANER
associates ZFBUA (ii) 577 1,229
Fellow subsidiaries: EESIEINGIE
Interest expense on loans from KB RRME AR
fellow subsidiaries BRzAESH (iif) (130,038) (225,058)
Management fee paid to S HERIRHT B A A
a fellow subsidiary HNEIREE (iv) (6,619) (6,178)
Agency fee paid to a SN EES VNG
fellow subsidiary HREE (iv) (177) -
Purchases of materials BEMR v) (8,035) -
Interest expenses on loans A R A B
from an intermediate holding BB H
company (vi) (7,548) (14,691)
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited

TEMZETERREZER (F8) ARLA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mi &
31 December 2016 —Z—~"FE+=-A=+—H

45. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)
(a) (continued)
Notes:
(i) Details of the loans to related companies are set

out in note 25 to the financial statements.

(i) Details of the loans to associates are set out in note
18 to the financial statements.

(iii) Details of the loans from fellow subsidiaries are set
out in note 32 to the financial statements.

(iv) The management fee and agency fee paid to fellow
subsidiaries are determined between the Group and
the fellow subsidiary.

(v) The cost of purchases from a fellow subsidiary was
made at pre-determined prices agreed between the
parties.

(vi) Details of the loans from an intermediate holding

company are set out in note 31 to the financial
statements.

Outstanding balances with related parties:

(i) Details of the Group’s loans to associates
are disclosed in note 18 to the financial
statements.

(ii) Details of the Group’s loans to related
companies are disclosed in note 25 to the
financial statements.

(iii) Details of the Group’s balances with non-
controlling shareholders of subsidiaries
are disclosed in note 30 to the financial
statements.

45. BEBAERS (2

(a)

(&)
Hiit -

)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

N

(iii)

B A FIIR G AV B K2 E 1
MRIEREI 25 -

M & R BRENERZFIS
NP TEWRMFE18

KERFZMBERARNERZF
TBEN I B IRERMFEI2

XNERAMBARNERER
KARIEE T A R R R M
BRRIEE -

KERFMEAREEKA
TRFTR T HEM AL EE B
1%

KEFEZERARNERZF
TBEN BB IRERMTES

b2 RBERER

ZN SN0 - FNSIEp)
AR 2 1B I B 5 Rk Y
FE18HER -

AEEREE QRN
B I 0 B 35 Rk i
25 -

ZN- e )N e
PR IR 2 ik 2 F IR B
BIRARFEI0RKE
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REIfZE TEEREZER (58) BRAA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mt &

31 December 2016 —E— X F+_-_A=+—H

45, RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 45. BBAERS (&)
(continued)
(b)  (continued) by (&)

(iv) Details of the Group’s balances with
an intermediate holding company are
disclosed in note 31 to the financial
statements.

(v) Details of the Group’s balances with fellow
subsidiaries are disclosed in note 32 to the
financial statements.

(iv) AEEEPEZEERIFZ
R BRI R M
FE3THEE -

(v) AEEEFRRMBEBAFZ
RERR 2 1B 0 B 75 Rk Y
FE32WEE -

(0 Compensation of key management personnel of (0 AEEBEREEAS 2R -
the Group:
2016 2015
—E—XRE —E—hF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Short term employee benefits EHIEEET 370 3,262
Post-employment benefits ERA%ET 14 183
Total compensation paid to key YEREEEAEZ
management personnel Wi ER 384 3,445

Further details of directors’ emoluments are
included in note 8 to the financial statements.

EREFEME 2 E—PFHBRAR
BTSSR MY AE8 o

The related party transactions in respect of item (a)(iv) B EQ)(vVEZ @RS IMEK E
above also constitute continuing connected transactions MHRANFUAZEFTEE 2 BERS °

as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited

FEMZETXEREZER (58) BRAF

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mi &

31 December 2016 —E—"XF+-_A=+—H

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 46. SR TEDHE
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of RFERR  SEF M ITARTE
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting LU
period are as follows:
2016
—E-XRF
Financial assets
MBEE
Financial
assets at
fair value
through Available-
profit or for-sale
loss - held  Loans and financial
for trading receivables assets Total
BAYHE
FFABEZ
BMBEE - EXRk AHEEN
BEEE FE WL AR BMBEE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Loans to associates mEEENTIRENER = 9,497 = 9,497
Available-for-sale investments  A[{tEEMNHE - - 278,745 278,745
Derivative financial instruments {74 ¢TI & 11,338 - - 11,338
Trade and bills receivables EWEFRERANEE - 89,620 - 89,620
Due from fellow subsidiaries A EER =N - 10,960 - 10,960
Loans to related companies M EAEE A RIRIER B - 16,760 - 16,760
Due from an intermediate FEN R fE R PR A
holding company - 5,282 - 5,282
Financial assets included in FTAEMNFOE &
prepayments, deposits and K E A U BR TR
other receivables BBEE - 15,407 - 15,407
Equity investment at fair value 3R AFEFALRZZ
through profit or loss B E 87,619 - - 87,619
Cash and cash equivalents RekfeEE = 605,925 = 605,925
98,957 753,451 278,745 1,131,153
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REIfZE TEEREZER (58) BRAA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mt &
31 December 2016 —Z—~FE+=-A=+—H

46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 46. SRMIEDE (&)

(continued)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of REpEHIk - RBRIZSM T EE®RE
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting mT (&)

period are as follows: (continued)

2016 (continued)
—EB-RE (&)

Financial liabilities

MikaE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
R 8 R A 5 BR
et A&
HK$'000
FAET
Due to non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries &1 B A 7 2 FEFERR AL ER 88,444
Due to fellow subsidiaries ANIEES =N 1,643
Loans from fellow subsidiaries REAR R ERTHER 1,234,637
Trade and bills payables FERTE SEREARER 41,213
Other payables and accruals Hith e~ 708 K BT & 17,223
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FFERITER 230,134
Loans from an intermediate holding company REFEIERARBNER 475,419
2,088,713
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited

TEMZETERREZER (F8) ARLA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mi &
31 December 2016 —Z—~"FE+=-A=+—H

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 46. SRTEDHE (&)
(continued)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of RE|ERAR SEMNzeMIAREE
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting W (&)
period are as follows: (continued)
2015
—EB—HF
Financial assets
MBEE
Financial
assets at
fair value
through Available-
profit or for-sale
loss - held Loans and financial
for trading receivables assets Total
BAYE
FFABHZ
BB EE - Xk AHEED
RKEER JEUSBR X MBEE &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Loans to associates MBS N FIRENER - 10,180 - 10,180
Available-for-sale investments AHHENEE - - 400,421 400,421
Derivative financial instruments MTEESMTA 119,896 - - 119,896
Trade and bills receivables EWE SRR REE - 177,078 - 177,078
Due from fellow subsidiaries JEWR R M B A A - 49,194 - 49,194
Loans to related companies AIRAEE D AR E R - 29,206 - 29,206
Due from non-controlling B AT 2
shareholder of a subsidiary FEERR AR R - 323 - 323
Financial assets included in STAEMNFUE - &
prepayments, deposits and R H Ao U BR FR A
other receivables B & E - 45,064 - 45,064
Equity investment at fair value BAFEGFABRZ
through profit or loss BRI E 285,713 - - 285,713
Pledged time deposits EEREBRES - 359 - 359
Cash and cash equivalents ReMEeEE - 473,330 - 473,330
405,609 784,734 400,421 1,590,764
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46.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 46. SRMIEDE (&)

(continued)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of REpEHIk - RBRIZSM T EE®RE
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting m : (4&)

period are as follows: (continued)

2015 (continued)

—E-RE (&)
Financial liabilities
i 3=R

Financial liabilities
at amortised cost

R SHR RS BR

W% aE
HK$'000
TFET

Due to non-controlling shareholders of JE ST BT BB A B) 2 FEFE AR AR R
subsidiaries 64,301
Due to an intermediate holding company JE At R R4 AR A &) 14,164
Due to fellow subsidiaries NI ER VNG 4
Loans from fellow subsidiaries RERZMERRHER 1,864,671
Trade and bills payables BN E HERRER 92,358
Other payables and accruals H At ET R IE R FERHE A 31,892
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTRIRITER 37,964
Loans from an intermediate holding company kKB EIZR A BN E K 509,581
2,614,935
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FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
A 22 TR PR IE AR

(F#&) BRAA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mi &

31 December 2016 —E—"XF+-_A=+—H

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group's

47.

financial instruments, other than those with carrying

amounts that reasonably approximate to fair values, are

as follows:

EMTAZAFERLIFEER

HE

AEEEMIAZERELRR
FEAEMBEERI) &I

FREEREA
s

FiE (B

Carrying amounts Fair values
HREE DNFE
2016 2015 2016 2015
—E-XF —hF ZE-XxF ZT-HF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK3$'000
FHET FET FET FET
Financial assets BEEE
Trade receivable (non-current JEUE F R
portion) (FEREIEB ) 20,178 21,628 18,862 19,356
Due from a fellow subsidiary JEW R BB A A
(non-current portion) (FERBEMD) - 3,178 - 3,022
Loans to associates MBS A BHR A
(non-current portion) BX GEREEHD) - 10,180 = 10,373
Loans to related companies Bl NGIE 0l
(non-current portion) (GEmRBM) - 11,976 = 12,065
Available-for-sale investments At ERERE 278,745 400,421 278,745 400,421
Equity investment at fair BATEFAER
value through profit or loss R AN E 87,619 285,713 87,619 285,713
Derivative financial instruments PTHESmI A 11,338 119,896 11,338 119,896
397,880 852,992 396,564 850,846
Financial liabilities BEasE
Loans from a fellow subsidiary R E H =Nk o
(non-current portion) A GEREEMD) 648,045 1,658,683 646,682 1,791,586
Interest-bearing bank uf g ﬁEﬂ%ifK
borrowings (non-current (FEmE M)
portion) 230,134 - 227,430 -
Loans from an intermediate REpEERDA
holding company HE 475,419 509,581 473,114 607,026
1,353,598 2,168,264 1,347,226 2,398,612
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47.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Management has assessed that the fair values of trade
and bills receivables (current portion), balances with
fellow subsidiaries (current portion), an intermediate
holding company, non-controlling shareholders of
subsidiaries, associates (current portion) and related
companies (current portion), financial assets included
in prepayments, deposits and other receivables,
pledged time deposits, cash and cash equivalents,
trade and bills payables, other payables and accruals
and interest-bearing bank borrowings (current portion)
approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the
short term maturities of these instruments.

The Group’s finance department headed by the chief
financial officer is responsible for determining the
policies and procedures for the fair value measurement
of financial instruments. At each reporting date, the
finance department analyses the movements in the
values of financial instruments and determines the major
inputs applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed
and approved by the chief financial officer and then
reported to the chief executive officer. The valuation
process and results are discussed with the audit
committee twice a year for interim and annual financial
reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could
be exchanged in a current transaction between willing
parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

The following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values:
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited

TEMZETERREZER (F8) ARLA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mi &

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The fair values of the non-current portion of trade
receivables, loans to related companies, loans from a
fellow subsidiary, interest-bearing bank borrowings
and loans from an intermediate holding company have
been calculated by discounting the expected future cash
flows using rates currently available for instruments with
similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. The
Group’s own non-performance risk for loans from a
fellow subsidiary, interest-bearing bank borrowings and
loans from an intermediate holding company as at 31
December 2016 was assessed to be insignificant.

The fair values of listed equity investments are based
on quoted market prices. The fair values of unlisted
available-for-sale investments and derivative financial
instruments, including PMH Derivatives and AVIC Joy
Derivative, have been estimated using a valuation
technique based on assumptions that are supported
by observable market prices or rates. The directors
believe that the estimated fair values resulting from
the valuation technique, which are recorded in the
consolidated statement of financial position, and the
related changes in fair values, which are recorded in
other comprehensive income and consolidated statement
of profit or loss, are reasonable, and that they were
the most appropriate values at the end of the reporting
period.

The Group enters into derivative financial instruments
with various counterparties. Derivative financial
instruments were measured using valuation models
which incorporate various market observable inputs
including the credit quality of counterparties and
interest rate curves. The carrying amounts of derivative
financial instruments were the same as their fair values.
As at 31 December 2016, the marked to market value
of the above derivative asset position was net of a
credit valuation adjustment attributable to derivative
counterparty default risk.

47.
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EMTACZATFERLAFESER
HE (&)

EREZER MEBRARRENE
K REBRRMEBARNER AR
TERRKEFREERARNERNIE
mE R B R E TR A B BEUERSK
EERREFGER 2 TARTZHEX
FRERARKREREFTE - R _F—
RNETZA=+—H AEEAXFKRA
RAMEARNER  SHERITERR
KEFHEHZERARNERNTEAORR
WRHERSTERX -

ERRAKRE 2 R ETIARRTHEE
AE - FEMAHLENRERITE
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R RAE  ZEERMRAZ RRE
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EMITAZAFERAFEER
HE (&)

AFPEERHE
TRITARESBIAY APEE

47. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 47.
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement

212

Annual Report 2016 ==

hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:

EH

UAFEFIEZEE -
Fair value measurement using
ERANTRHEETATEFE
Quoted
prices  Significant  Significant
in active  observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
WERMS BATER EXTAIEE
HIRE BAEE BAHE
(8B—1#) (B=#&) (B=4) &t
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET & FET FET
As at 31 December 2016 R-ZB-—XREF
T=A=t+-H
Available-for-sale investments:  A[{ B ERIRE ¢
Equity investments BRAEE 149,581 - - 149,581
Debt investments ERIRE - 129,164 - 129,164
Equity investment at fair value  RAF{EFFABZEZ
through profit or loss B E 87,619 - - 87,619
Derivative financial instruments $T£ &R T A - 11,338 - 11,338
237,200 140,502 - 377,702
As at 31 December 2015 R-BE-RE
+=A=t-~H
Available-for-sale investments: Al N ERIRE ¢
Equity investments AR E 283,688 - - 283,688
Debt investments BEEEE 2,290 114,443 - 116,733
Equity investment at fair value  RAF{EFFABZEZ
through profit or loss A E 285,713 - - 285,713
Derivative financial instruments #1744 T A - 119,896 - 119,896
571,691 234,339 - 806,030
The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured RZE-—REFRZE—RF+ZA=+
at fair value as at 31 December 2016 and 2015. —B AREVELAIZATFEFEZ
MBaE -
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value FN - BBEERMBARZE B R

measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets

and financial liabilities (2015: Nil).

—NFER

“RZEHEBEATESE - TE
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FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
PEfTZE TEEBREZER (§8) BRAT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mi &

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments: (continued)

Assets for which fair values are disclosed:

ERELAFEZEE -

31 December 2016 —E—"XF+-_A=+—H

47. €RMIBEZAFERLAFEER
FIE (&)
DNREEREE (2)
TEIRALEESHTAY AT EHE
E o (B)

Fair value measurement using

ERUTREETAFETE

Quoted
prices  Significant Significant
in active  observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
RWERTE EBEATEE EBEATAUHEE
HIRE BAHE BAgE
(F—&) (B=&) (B=8) &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK3$'000
FHET FET FHET FET
As at 31 December 2016 R-EB—XE
+t=ZA=+—-8H
Trade receivable (non-current EME F R

portion) (EmEED1H - 18,862 - 18,862
As at 31 December 2015 R-Z2—1&

+=ZA=+-H
Trade receivable (non-current EWE SRR

portion) (GERE ) - 19,356 - 19,356
Due from a fellow subsidiary GRS =NG]

(non-current portion) (FEmEhEr ) - 3,022 - 3,022
Loans to associates [RE & A BlIR R B R - 10,373 - 10,373
Loans to related companies RN AR E R

(non-current portion) (FEFRE D) - 12,065 - 12,065

- 44,816 - 44,816
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47. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 47, 4R TE>ATERATEEZR

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) HIE ()

Fair value hierarchy (continued) ARPEZEREE (&)

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement TRINTAEBESBMT A ATFEE
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments: (continued) =4 ()

Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed:

BHELAFEZEE
Fair value measurement using
FANTSEETATETE
Quoted
prices  Significant  Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
REBTE EBEATBERE EATTEER
MWERE WARE BARE
(F—%) (=) (=) &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK3$'000
FET FHET FET FET
As at 31 December 2016 RIE—RE
T=A=+-
Loans from a fellow subsidiary RERZMBARMHER
(non-current portion) (FEmBE D) - 646,682 - 646,682
Interest-bearing bank STRIRITER
borrowings (non-current (GER BN LD )
portion) - 227,430 - 227,430
Loans from an intermediate REFEZERARHER
holding company - 473,114 - 473,114
- 1,347,226 - 1,347,226
As at 31 December 2015 R-E—FE
t=ZA=+—H
Loans from a fellow subsidiary 3 & R Z M B A & &)
(non-current portion) Ex GErs ;.IST&}) - 1,791,586 - 1,791,586
Loans from an intermediate BB A
holding company HE R - 607,026 - 607,026
- 2,398,612 - 2,398,612
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited

TEMZETERREZER (F8) ARLA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mi &

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments, other
than derivatives, comprise bank loans and cash and
short term deposits. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s
operations. The Group has various other financial assets
and liabilities, such as trade and bills receivables and
trade and bills payables, which arise directly from its
operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are foreign currency risk, interest rate risk,
credit risk, liquidity risk and equity price risk. The board
of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing
each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s foreign currency exposures primarily arise
from certain sales or purchases by operating units in
currencies other than the units’ functional currencies.
In view of the fact that the Group tries to match its
assets and liabilities with the same currency, the Group's
exposure to foreign currency risk is minimal.

Interest rate risk

The Group has no significant interest rate risk because
the Group’s interest-bearing debts, including loans from
fellow subsidiaries and an intermediate holding company
and interest-bearing bank borrowings, are arranged on a
fixed rate basis.

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group's
exposure to bad debts is not significant.

48.
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48.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets,
which comprise cash and cash equivalents, time deposit
with original maturity of more than three months,
pledged time deposits, available-for-sale investments,
derivative financial instruments, deposits and other
receivables, an amount due from non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary, and loans to associates
and related companies, arises from default of the
counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the
carrying amounts of these instruments.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement for
collateral. Concentrations of credit risk are managed by
customer/counterparty, by geographical region and by
industry sector. There are no significant concentrations
of credit risk within the Group as the customer bases
of the Group’s trade and bills receivables are widely
dispersed in different sectors and industries.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and bills
receivables are disclosed in note 24 to the financial
statements.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using
a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the
maturity of both its financial instruments and financial
assets (e.g., trade and bills receivables) and projected
cash flows from operations.

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of
bank loans and loans from fellow subsidiaries and an
intermediate holding company. The Group’s policy is to
minimise borrowings.

Annual Report 2016 —Z — /XFEH
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
PEfZE TEEBREZER (§8) GRAH

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mi &

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities
as at the end of the reporting period, based on the
contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows:

31 December 2016 —E—"XF+-_A=+—H

48. BHIERAMREEEEREE (£)

REERER (F)

RIBEHR > NREBERDFTHERE
BNRZHHRESIRERDT -

2016
“E-RE
Less than 3 to less than
On demand 3 months 12 months 1-5 years Total
=ZEANL
ROR
REXE SR=EA +={8R —-Z5F &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FE FE7
Due to non-controlling ENHBARZ
shareholders of subsidiaries FERBRR 88,444 - - - 88,444
Due to fellow subsidiaries ERIEE NG 717 - 926 - 1,643
Loans from fellow subsidiaries &R ZHIE A
&S - 566,006 30,922 707,765 1,304,693
Trade and bills payables ENESIERREE - 41,213 - - 41,213
Other payables and accruals HiEFER
St ER - 17,223 - - 17,223
Interest-bearing bank borrowings &t £ R1TER - 3,143 12,571 242,705 258,419
Loans from an intermediate REPRERAR
holding company KER - 7,131 21,394 553,863 582,388
Guarantee given to banks MBITIREC ER
(note 44) (Hiita4) 76,085 - - - 76,085
165,246 634,716 65,813 1,504,333 2,370,108
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48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 48. BIHEBEERBERBEK (#)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) REERR (2)
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities RIRERR  AEBENRDETLEKRE
as at the end of the reporting period, based on the BRRZHBEEDNRABERAT - (&)
contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows:
(continued)
2015
—Z-RfF
Less than 3 to less than
On demand 3 months 12 months 1 -5 years Total
ROR
REXE  PR=MEA +=f8R —Ehf At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FETL FHET FET
Due to non-controlling ENHBARZ
shareholders of subsidiaries 3l 64,301 - - - 64,301
Due to an intermediate holding  FEf s AR A A
company 14,164 - - - 14,164
Due to fellow subsidiaries ENRRHTBAR 4 - - - 4
Loans from fellow subsidiaries R ERZHBAF
HER - 46,617 335539 1,807,322 2,189,478
Trade and bills payables ENEIESREE - 84,345 8,013 - 92,358
Other payables and accruals Hits BfIHIER
EStER - 31,892 - - 31,892
Interest-bearing bank borrowings 5 E3R1TE - 609 39,238 - 39,847
Loans from an intermediate REFREERAF
holding company MER - 12,739 38,219 700,674 751,632
Guarantee given to banks TR R
(note 44) (Hi:244) 36,489 - - - 36,489

114,958 176,202 421,009 2,507,996 3,220,165
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TEMZETERREZER (F8) ARLA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mi &

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of
financial instruments decrease as a result of changes in
the levels of equity indices and the value of individual
securities. The Group is exposed to equity price risk
arising from a listed equity investment classified as
trading equity investment (note 27) as at 31 December
2016. The Group's listed equity investment is listed on
the Stock Exchange and is valued at quoted market price
at the end of the reporting period.

The market equity index for the following stock
exchange, at the close of business of the nearest trading

48.
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BEZFMESHTARFERENE
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day in the year to the end of the reporting period, and R REAEREENT ¢
its respective highest and lowest points during the year
was as follows:
31 December High/low 31 December High/low
2016 2016 2015 2015
“B-RE &5/& -T-IfF &/
+=ZB=t+-8H ZE-RE TZA=T-H —T-0fF
Hong Kong - Hang Seng Index &8 — B4 22,001 22,070/21,819 21,914 21,970/21,864
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31 December 2016 —E— X F+_-_A=+—H

48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 48. BIHEBEERBERBEK (#)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Equity price risk (continued) RERE (&)
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to TREY - EFRBEEMAZEERZRERT
every 1% change in the fair values of the listed equity SBHTFAMBALENGRET - ERWE
investments and the underlying equity investments HREMRALERITESRT A 2 H
of the derivative financial instruments, with all other kAR E 2 REE  HATFESHE
variables held constant and before any impact on tax, 1% BB o

based on their carrying amounts at the end of the
reporting period.

Carrying Increase/

amount (decrease) Increase/
of financial in profit (decrease)
instruments before tax in equity*

¢WMIAZ BiATEF  AEmiEm
RREE #8m Ofd) (R) *

HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FHET
2016 —E-XRF
Investment listed in Hong Kong REBLMZ’E
- Available-for-sale — A HEENKE 1,496/
investment 149,581 - (1,496)
- Equity investment at fair —BATERA
value through profit BazBRAEE 877/
or loss 87,619 (877) -
PMH Derivatives RTBEZERTAET A 176/
9,277 (176) -
AVIC Joy Derivative FERERTETA 70/
2,061 (155) =
2015 —E-EF
Investment listed in Hong Kong REBLTMZ®E
— Available-for-sale investment —AHEENERE 2,837/
283,688 - (2,837)
— Equity investment at fair — BAFEFABR 2,857/
value through profit or loss Z A& 285,713 (2,857) -
PMH Derivatives RTEZERTET R 1,130/
90,444 (1,130) -
AVIC Joy Derivative FEREERITETLA 342/
29,452 (3) -
* Excluding retained profits * TEEBFREF
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited

TEMZETERREZER (F8) ARLA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mi &

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital
management are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The
Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements. Except for the composition of debt in the
calculation of the gearing ratio, no changes were made
in the objectives, policies or processes for managing
capital during the years ended 31 December 2016 and
31 December 2015.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio,
which is the interest-bearing debts divided by
equity attributable to owners of the parent plus the
interest-bearing debt. Interest-bearing debts include
loans from fellow subsidiaries, interest-bearing bank
borrowings and loans from an intermediate holding
company.

48.

31 December 2016 —E—"XF+-_A=+—H

BBEREEERERBE (&)

EXEH
FEREEXAEENBEERR  RERAE
SEABRERRMRES  BEFRR
MBARLLE  UXFHEEEE - FE
RARBREE -

AEBERBEEBELANEY RBEEE
BE R - BEEEARNEEILIEL S
B BB IABRERGERE - NEETA
EERARMRERENRE - MRRR
Bl EARLEITHR - AEBTE2ZHIR
EANBIEN 2 BEARFR - lRETEE R
BEERZAERKIN  BEZZT—N
F+-A=+—HEZZE—HF+=A
=T—HALFEARA EXEBZEE -
R A2 7 e o

AEENEABBER GHREBHRNE
NAEIPTEERIGER NG BER) &EE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mt &

31 December 2016 —E— X F+_-_A=+—H

48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management (continued)

The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting periods

were as follows:

EAER (&)
BERRZERBERET

BHEREEEERBE (&)

2016 2015
—E—XRF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET
Loans from fellow subsidiaries RERRMBRARNER 1,234,637 1,864,671
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FHEIRITER 230,134 37,964
Loans from an intermediate holding xR EERATRER
company 475,419 509,581
Interest-bearing debts 1,940,190 2,412,216
Equity attributable to owners of B RBIABEEGER
the parent 1,973,272 2,737,534
Equity attributable to owners of B AAIFAEE L E
the parent plus the interest-bearing
debts 3,913,462 5,149,750
Gearing ratio 50% 47 %
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 49,

THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position

AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
PEfZE TEEBREZER (§8) GRAH

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mi &

31 December 2016 —E—"XF+-_A=+—H

AR A B BARR &R

BRARRRARRE RO BEARERD

of the Company at the end of the reporting period is as BRI -
follows:
2016 2015
—E-REF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment YIE - BB FRE 23,211 24,411
Investments in subsidiaries WEARZRE 1,726,465 849,550
Total non-current assets IERBEERE 1,749,676 873,961
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Prepayments, deposits and TERFIE ~ e REM
other receivables JFE I BR 3R 840 4,016
Due from a subsidiary JRE LS Bf BB B 955 954
Cash and cash equivalents RekHeEE 346,020 320,589
Total current assets MBNEELE 347,815 325,559
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Other payables and accruals H b eI FRIE R FERHE A 2,358 3,302
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEERE 345,457 322,257
Net assets BEFE 2,095,133 1,196,218
EQUITY =
Issued capital BEITIRA 551,959 551,959
Reserves (Note) i (M) 1,543,174 644,259
Total equity = BE 2,095,133 1,196,218
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf ¥ 3R & Mt &
31 December 2016 —Z—~FE+=-A=+—H

49,

50.

51.

Annual Report 2016 ==

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 49. ARQRFHMRREK (&)
THE COMPANY (continued)
Note: Htat
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: RATHEEBRNT
Share
premium  Contributed Retained
account surplus profits Total
B% 17 323 fE B O3 B1EEF &t
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FHETT
At 1 January 2015 R-_ZE—HF—H—H 609,080 5,243 96,944 711,267
Total comprehensive income AFE2EK BT
for the year - - (67,008) (67,008)
At 31 December 2015 and R-ZET—RFE+_-A
1 January 2016 =t+—HARZZE—RF
—H—H 609,080 5,243 29,936 644,259
Total comprehensive income AE2EW BT
for the year - - 898,915 898,915
At 31 December 2016 MNZE—RF
+-A=1+— 609,080 5,243 928,851 1,543,174
The contributed surplus of the Company represents the excess RARABZHARBRABARARBEERSEHL
of the consolidated net asset value of Far East Aluminium (B.V.l.) R —NLNL—F+— A=+ HE AFar East
Limited on 20 November 1991, when its entire issued share capital Aluminium (B.V.1.) LimitedZ #8E 247 J% ABS
was acquired by the Company pursuant to a group reorganisation, Far East Aluminium (B.V.L) Limited 2 fr & & E
over the nominal amount of the Company’s shares issued in FEBBARTERKEREMETZRNEE
consideration for such acquisition, net of accumulated losses of 2% YEHBNBEFEEHEZAQRRE
the Company set off in the prior years. Under the Companies Act B - RIBAREQRTE—NN— ARFZH
of 1981 of Bermuda, the contributed surplus of the Company is ABHREETERTAIHD IR TERE ©
distributable to shareholders under certain circumstances.
The Company’s share premium account of HK$609,080,000 (2015: ARBR-EBE—ARF+_A=+—BHZERHMHHE
HK$609,080,000) as at 31 December 2016 may be distributed in #5609,080,000% 7T (ZZ— A4 : 609,080,000
the form of fully paid bonus shares. HBIL) AIABUR AR A A DK °
COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS 50. LLEHEF
The comparative consolidated statement of profit or loss hEERAIEBRREEN  BORAFE
has been re-presented as if the operation discontinued WEiﬁﬁé%%%fkﬂﬁéttﬁﬁﬂﬁaﬁﬁﬁéﬁ
during the current year had been discontinued at the ILEs & (HaEn1) e
beginning of the comparative period (note 717).
APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL 51. BBHmRHLE

STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 14 March 2017.

—NFER
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
PEfZE TEEBREZER (§8) GRAH

PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES #1% %

31 December 2016 —E—"F+-_A=+—H

REWH
Attributable
interest of
the Group
Location Use Tenure AEE
b B A HE PEih Rz
3/F to 13/F, Phase A Office Medium term 52.08%
The International Square FE/NE A HA
Shahekou District
Dalian City
Liaoning Province
The PRC
HREE A KEm I A&
o fii BB B2 55
ABI=E+=1
PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT/PROPERTIES FOR SALE
BREPYE BEHEZETRYE
Attributable
Expected interest of
Gross Stage of completion the Group
Location Use Site area floorarea  completion date PN |
ok itk =3 WEEE HEEEAR IEREKER R T RS iR
(sq.m.) (sq.m.)
(F5K) (FK)
The International Square Commercial/ 46,935 435,609 Partly completed December 2019 52.08%
Shahekou District residential and partly work in  —ZE—AF+ A
Dalian City GEYAEE= progress
Liaoning Province BHERIR
The PRC Hip T2 TH
REREE KED
DA AE
RHERES
Liangjiangxin District Commercial/ 375,252 401,514 Work in progress December 2019 99%
Chongging City residential TRETH “T-NETZA
The PRC BE/EE

PEEET R LHE
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AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
PEMZEIXEREZER (B8) ARAFH

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY f F &=

A summary of the results and the assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial
years, as extracted from the published audited financial
statements and restated/reclassified as appropriate, is set

out below. This summary is not part of the audited financial

AEEBELBMBFENRENEE  BE
MR EafmT - DHEaE TIERER
R HE - YEEEEES EFRHE - Ut

EMBAFRERIBEREROD -

statements.
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=1+-RHLEE
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
—E-XE —Z-hF ZZ-QmF =ZZ—=fF =ZT—=F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$"000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FEr FET FEr FET
RESULTS £
CONTINUING OPERATIONS BEREER
Revenue Uz 102,786 2,154,988 17,443 - -
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX BREARA(FE) (742,978) 205,573 50,025 483,143 419,155
Income tax credit/(expense) FERES,/ (A%) 6,685  (108,057) (569) (81,117) (60,903)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR REBERSERY
FROM CONTINUING RERF(FE)
OPERATIONS (736,293) 97,516 49,456 402,026 358,252
DISCONTINUED OPERATION BRILEEEHK
Profit/(loss) for the year from KREBRHEEER
a discontinued operation AERH /(FE) 27,362 (14,056) (43,509) (5,351) 2,743
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR RERF(BE) (708,931) 83,460 5,947 396,675 360,995
Attributable to: THALRENR :
Owners of the parent SRAMAEE (685,842) 41,820 27,266 397,242 359,651
Non-controlling interests RS (23,089) 41,640 (21,319) (567) 1,344
(708,931) 83,460 5,947 396,675 360,995
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND BE 8K
NON-CONTROLLING RS
INTERESTS
Total assets EERE 5,703,073 6,417,546 8,680,613 2,348,352 2,086,453
Total liabilities BELE (3.176,320) (3,085,838) (5,318,852) (118,040) (128,254)
Non-controlling interests e £ (553,481)  (594,124) (578,390 (5,082) (5,582)
1,973,272 2,737,534 2,783,371 2,225,230 1,952,617
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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DIRECTORS

Liu Hongde (Chairman)
Pan Linwu (Deputy Chairman)

=2

BB ()
BAR (B/E/E)

Lai Weixuan BEE

Zhou Chunhua E&EE

Xu Hongge (Chief Executive Officer) AR (7TBA8E)
Chow Wai Kam* ISl

Chu Yu Lin, David** R B>~

Li Ka Fai, David** FRME**

Li Zhaoxi** ZJKER**

* Non-executive Director * HPNTEE

*x Independent Non-executive Directors *x BUHHTEE

AUDIT COMMITTEE BEREES
Chu Yu Lin, David (Chairman) K (£/5)
Li Ka Fai, David ERIE

Li Zhaoxi ZFIKER
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE SMEES
Chu Yu Lin, David (Chairman) KD (F/E)
Liu Hongde 2t

Li Ka Fai, David FRIE
COMPANY SECRETARY ATE
Tsui Choi Yee, Connie BwRAE
PRINCIPAL BANKERS FERIT

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

FELBESRITARAA

AUDITORS ZE AP
Ernst & Young LGSR BT
REGISTERED OFFICE HMBREERE

Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street
Hamilton, HM 12, Bermuda

Canon's Court, 22 Victoria Street
Hamilton, HM 12, Bermuda
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
DEEH

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS

Unit B, 15th Floor, United Centre
95 Queensway, Hong Kong

SHARE REGISTRARS
Principal registrars

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
The Belvedere Building

69 Pitts Bay Road

Pembroke HM 08

Bermuda

Hong Kong registrars

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Rooms 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong

WEBSITE

www.avic.com.hk

STOCK CODE
232
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69 Pitts Bay Road
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